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“~or about the 14th day of Nnvemher, 19932, at and w;thln ‘the County

'REX BELL S N o
DISTRICT ATTURNEY *

1
2
3

4
5
&

Nevada Bar 7001799 . NETE
200 S. Third Street ceth 1B 2 MW
Las Vegas, Nevada B9155 .
(702) 455-4711 S
Attorney for Plajintiff ogoiem e o o St ERATEREE,
THE STATE OF NEVADA R T
I.A. 1-25-93
10:00 A.M,
PD DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, aase vo. CAVISIR
Plaintiff, DEPT. NQ. IX

)
)
)
)
)
}
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

DOCKET NO, W

WILLIAM LESTER WITTER,

#i204227
I NFORMATION
Defandant.
STATE OF NEVADA )
)ss
COUNTY OF CLARK )

REX BELL, District Attorney within and for the County of
Clark, State of Nevada, in the name and by the authority of the
State of Nevada, informs the Court:

That WILLIAM LESTER WITTER, the Defendant, having committed
the crimes of MURDER WITE USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Felony - NRS

200.010, 200.030, 193.165); ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY

wlhrom (Felony ~ MRS 193.330, 200.010, 200.030, 193.165); ATTEMPT

SBIUAL ASBAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Felony - NRS 193.330,

'200 364, 200.366, 193.165); and BURGLARY (Fslony - NRS 205.060), on

' of Clark State ot Havada, cnntrnry to the form, force and effect '_55*
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of'statutes in such cases made and provided, and against the peace
and dignity of the State of Nevada,
COUNT I - MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did then and there wilfully, feloniously, without authority of
law, with malice aforethought and premeditation and/or while in the
commission of a burglary and/or while in the commissjon of the
attempt sexual assault of KATHRYN TERRY COX, kill JAMES HAROLD cox,
a human being, by stabbing at and into the body of the said JAMES
HARCLD COX with a deadly weapon, to-wit: a knife.
COUNT ]I ~ ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did then and there, without authority of law and with malice
aforethought, wilfully and feloniously attempt to kill KATHRYN
TERRY COX, a human being, by stabbing at and into the body of the
sald KATHRYN TERRY COX, with a deadly weapon, to-wit: a knife.
COUNT III -~ ATTEMPT SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
attempt to sexually assault and subject KATHRYN TERRY COX, a female
persoii, to sexual penetration, to-wit: by telling KATHRYN TERRY
Cﬁx that he was going to rape her, by instructing her to suck his

penis, by cutting and tearing her outer garments, by pulling her

:pants and pantyhose down around her ankles and by fondling her

body, against her will, said defendant using a deadly weapon, to-

wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.
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COUNT IV - BURGLARY
did then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously

enter, with intent to commit sexual assault and/or murder, that
certain 1988 Mercury, bearing Nevada License No. 303 CRL, owned by

JAMES HAROLD COX and/or KATHRYN TERRY COX.

The names of witnesses known to the District Attorney’s office

at the time of filing this Information are as follows:

ALLRED, MARILYN R.N.
UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER
LAS VEGAS, NV

AOKI, MINORU
LVMPD #1592
CRIME LAB

AUTREY, J.
LVMED #4367
‘CRIME LAB

AVERY, J.
LVMPD #4367
CRIME LAB

BAYER, K.

| 'MERCY 'MEDIC

LAS VEGAS, NV
BOTELLO, JERRIE
3977 HAMILTON AVE #2
SAN JOSE, CA 95148

CALDWELL, ' JUAN

| 2362 GREEN. VALLEY PKWY
3| HENDERSON, NV 89014

REX BELL
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Nevada Bar #001799

BY

MELVYN ‘T, HARMON :
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #£000862

CANDIANO, B.
LVMPD #4412
SWAC

CARLSTCN, TERESA
CCDC - R.N.
LAS VEGAS, NV

CARROLL, M.
1704 PINTO LN - CORONER
LAS VEGAS, NV

CHASEY, T.
LUMPD #1789
G/A

COOK, TERRY
LVMPD #2545
CRIME LAB

COVELL, WILLIAM
16135 BARBATE RD.
LA MIRADA, CA

COX, KATHRYN
3771 PONDEROSA _
 LAS VEGAS, NV -
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CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS

'UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER

LAS VEGAS, NV

DALE, D.
LVMPD #4091
SWAC

DAVIS, R.K.
DAVIS MORTUARY
LAS VEGAS, NY

DIXON, JON
2701 N. RAINBOW #2089
LAS VEGAS, NV

DONAHUE, JOHN
LVMPD #3203
cCDC

DUBOSE, CHARLES
4909 RONAN
LAS VEGAS, ¥

FALVEY, D.
LVMPD #1176
HOMICIDE

FARRELL, J.
LVMPD #3539
SWAC

FASS,. LESLIE
LVMPD #3051
ccoe

GAGINIER, D.

CCFD -

LAS VEGAS, NV

'GALVAN, P.
‘LVMPD #2216
SWAC

GRIFFIN, DINAH

'HLVHPD #1744

GOIIDSHITH, Bo
'LVMPD #4599

CRIHE LAB

.Q:HH‘II“GTO“' Re
| LVMPD. #715

HICKMAN, RAYMOND
LUXOR - SECURLITY
LAS VEGAS, NV

HORN, DAVID
LVMPD #1928
CRIME LAB

JOLLEY, G.
LVMPD #4785
HOMICIDE

JORDAN, ROBERT
1704 PINTO LN - CORONER
LAS VEGAS, NV

KEETON, W.
LVMPD #505
HOMICIDE

KNUDSEN, A.
LVMPD #329
G/A

KRAMER, S.
MERCY MEDIC
LAS VEGAS, NV

LEE, S. DR.
UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER
LAS VEGAS, NV

LEMASTER, DAVID
LVMPD #4243
CRIME LAB

MCCARTHY, M.
LVMPD #4431
SWAC

MCCRACKEN, D.
LVMPD #2542
CRIME LAB

MCKINNON, THOMAS
2200 N. TORREY PINES #1010
LAS VEGAS, NV

MESINAR, DAVID
LVMPD #842
HOMICIDE

HILBRANDT, LORI
1704 PINTO LN - CDRDNER

- 1as vzcas, !
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0ZOBIA, N. DK.
UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER
'LAS VEGAS, NV

PETERSON, DANIEL

"LVMPD #4034

CRIME LAB

PUMMILL, THOMAS
EXCALIBER HOTEL
LAS VEGAS, NV

RAMSEY, D.
DAVIS MORTUARY
LAS VEGAS, NV

REDLIN, DONALD
EXCALIBER HOTEL
LAS VEGAS, NV

‘REED, GARY

LVYMPD #3711
CRIME LAB

REYES, D.
1704 PINTO LN - CORONER

'LAS VEGAS, NV

RILEY, THOMAS

-EXCALIBER - SECURITY

LAS VEGAS, NV
RUFFING, DAVID

" 'LVMPD #1502

‘CRIME LAB

)| SCHROEDER, TIM
2809 WILLOW WIND

';snonxs, SONYA

LVMPD #4270

-CRIHE LAB
_SHEENEY, B.

I corp .

24| Tas vecas, wv

'{;an9350394ox/kjh
'LVMPD DR£9311141809.

TERRY, DONALD
ADDRESS UNKNOWN
LAS VEGAS, NV

THOWSEN, T.
LVMPD #1467
HOMICIDE

WARREN, D,
LVMPD #425
SWAC

WEBB, WILLIAM
LVMPD #4094
UFSD

WEBB, W,
LVMPD #4094
SWAC

WELTE, J.
LVMPD #4091
SWAC

WRIGHT, ROBERT
LVMPD #3066
ceoe

WILLIAMS, RICHARD
LUXOR - SECURITY
LAS VEGAS, NV

MURDER W/WPN;ATT MURDER W/WEN;
ATT_SExrASSLT w/ﬂrn BURG - F
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REX BELL

DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Mevada Bar #001792

206 5. Third Street
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155
{702) 455-4711

attoruney for Plaintiff .
THE STATE OF NEVADA (;fﬁ -aéii~*~%“

CLERK
DISTRICT COURT

THE STATE OF NEVADA, | CASE NO.  C117513
Plaintiff, DEPT. NO. X
-ve~ DOCKET NO. 9
WILLIAM LESTER WITTER,
#1204227 !

pefendant.

NOTICE OF INTENT
TO_SEEK DEATH PENALTY
COMES NOW the State of Nevada, through REX BELL, Clark County
District Attorney, by and through MELVYN T. HARMON, Chief Deputy
pigtrict Attorney, pursuant to NRS 175.552 and NRS 200.033 and
declares its intention to seek the death penalty at a penalty
hearing. Furthermore, the State of Nevada discloses that it will
present evidence of the following aggravating circumstances:
i. The murder was committed by a person under sentence of
imprisonment. {Ses NRS 200.033(1)] The evidence of this

aggravating circumstance will consist of documentary proof and/or

/117
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' - testimony concerning prior convictions.

2. The murder was cammitted by a person who was previously

convicted of a felony involving the use or threat of violence to.Ele‘

$] the person of another. [See NRS_200¢033(2)] Thg-ev;dence_of thisf-'f g

' 'aggraﬁating circumstance will_conéist of documentary probf“éhdfé?g{f

'”'itestimony concerning prior'convictibns.

3. The murder was comnitted while the‘persdn was'engagéd'ih fﬂ°‘:

the commission of or an attempt to commit any Burglary. [NRS o

'200.033(4)] The evidence of this aggraﬁating circumstance wili-ff 

consist of testimony and physical evidence arisinq out_of the_ff 

aggravated nature of the offense itself.
4. The murder was committed while the person'was-engaged in

i the commission of or an attempt to commit a Sexual Assault. {NRS

200.033(4)] The evidence of this aggravating circumstance willﬁ_1ﬁ‘

consist of testimony and physical ev1dence arxsing out of ‘the
aggravated nature of the offense itsglf.

| 5. The murder was committed to avoid or prevent a lawful
arrest or to effect an escape fiow custody. [NRS 200.033(5)) The
evidence of this aggravating circumstance'will'consist of-testimonj B
- and physical evidence arising out of the_aggravated_nature of the
I offense itself. |

/1
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6.. The murder 1nvolved torture, depravity of mind or the
mutilation of the victim. [See NRS 200 033(3)] The evidence cf
this aqgravating circumstance will coneiet of testimony and:
phyelcal evidence arising out of the aggravated nature of.the
offense iteelf. | o |

: DATED thie-;zséi%hay of January, 1994._'.

REX BELL

DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Nevaca Bar f001799_

~ Chief Deputy District Attorney'tfif
Nevada Bar #000862 @

RECEIPT OF A COPY of the abcve and foreqoing NOTICE OF INTEHT

‘TO SEEK DEATH PENALTY is hereby acknowledged thmcﬁ day cf

o . January, 1994.
. 20%

PUBLIC DEFENDER’S OFFICE

S
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308°5. Third Street fzzsy»f_, R I
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 . = -
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MORGAN D, HARRIS ?F‘" ‘[”’F"D‘q
;UBaxazc DEFENDER - o

evada Bar #1879 g .
309 South Third Street, #226 3sa g5

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155 ' .
(702) 455-4685 G{.izf;_ ;

Attomey for Defendant

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA, ) Case No. C117513
Plaintiff, ; ' Dept. No. IX
v B ; NOTICE OF APPEAL
WILLIAM LESTER WI’ITER | g
Defendant, ;
)
TC: THE STATE OF NEVADA

STEWART BELL, DISTRICT ATTORNEY, CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA - |-~
and DEPARTMENT IX OF THE EIGHTH ] UDIC]AL DISTRICT COURT OF
THE STATE OF NBVADA IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CLARK. _
NOTICE is hereby given that WILLIAM LESTER WITTER, presently |
incarcerated in the Nevada State Prison, appeals to the Supreme Coust of the State of Nevada
from the judgment entered against said Defendant on the 3rd day of August, 1995, whereby he
was convicted of count 1 - murder of the first degree with use of a deadly weapon and |
sentenced to death by iethal injection; count II - attempt murder with use of a deadly weapon
and sentenced to twenty (20} years in the Nevada State Prison on the attempt murder charge
plus a consecutive twenty (20) years for use of a deadly weapon; count 11l - attempt sexual

assauit with use of a deadly weapon and sentenced to twenty (20) years on the attempt sexual

assault plus a consecutive twenty (20) years for use of a deadly weapon to run consecutive to

count I¥; count IV - burglary and sentenced to ten (10) years to run consecutively to count IIE; N

G,
00009



_credit for time served in the amount of 627 days,

e

DATED this 31st day of August, 1995,

MORGAN D, HARRIS L
CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER s

“"NEVADA BAR #1060 Al
DEPUTY PUBLIC DEFENDER ° |

L' -T - B S - S S L R

RECEIPT (3}'*’ A COPY of the foregoing Notice of Appeal is hereby
acknowledged this ‘.5?/ day of August, 1995,

STEWART L. BELL
20 CLARK COUNTY DISTRICT ATT’ORNEY

. o s (g/ﬂz
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STATE OF NEVADA, ss.

L, Janette M. Bloom, the duly appointed and quaiified Clerk of the Supreme Court of said State of

- Nevada, do hereby certify that the following is a full, true and correct copy of the Judgment in the

matter of yrryram LESTER WITTER vs. THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Case No, 27539,

JUDGMENT
The Court being fuilly adviscd in the premises and the law, it is now ordered, adjudged and

decreed, to the effect: YAFfirmed.®

Judgment, as quoted above, entered this 22ng day of July 19 46 -

JUDGMENT
The Court heing fully advised in the premises znd the law, i is now ordered, adjudged and

decreed, (o the effect:  “"Rehearing denied.®

Judgment, as quoted above, entered this 13th day of Decerber

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, 1 have hercunto set my hand andg
aftixed the Seal of said Supreme Court, ut my office in
Carson City, Nevada, this... ... L23rd L dsy of

- “i)cﬁunf_“ﬁw{"“" .




IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

WILLIAM LESTER WITTER,

Na. 27833

FILED

DEC 13 1936

Appellant,
V3.
THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent.

L P W

OR NYING R

Rehearing denied. NRAP 40(c).
It is 5o ORDERED.

Hon, Stephen L. Huffaker, pistrict Judge
Hon, Frankie Sue Del Papa, Attorney General
Hon, Stewart L. Bell, District Attorney
Morgan D. Harrils, Public Defender

Loretita Bownan, Clerk

7000012



1IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

WILLTIAM LESTER WITTER, HNo. 273539

Appellant, FELEB

VE.

JuL ¥
THE $TATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent.

hAppeal frowm a judgment of conviction purguant to a
jury wverdlct on one count of first-degree murder with use of a
deadly weapon and from sentence of death, attempted murder with
use of a deadly weapon, attempted sexual assault with use of a
deadly weapon, and burglary. Eighth Judicial District Court,
Clark County; Stephen L. Huffaker, Judge,

Affirmed.

Morgan 0. Harris, Public
befender, Robert L. Milier,
Deputy Public Defender, Philip
Kohn, Deputy Public pefender,
Clark County,

for Appeliant.

Frankie Sue Del Papa, Attornsy

Geperal, Carson City; Stewart L.

Bell, District Attorney, James

Tufteland, cChief Deputy District

Attorney, Gary Guymon, Deputy

Distriet Attorney, Clark County,
for Reppondent.

GCPINITION

PER CURIAM:

on June 28, 1995, a jury found William Witter guilty
of murder with use of a deadly weapon, attempted sewual assault
with use of a deadly weapon, and burglary. A penalty hearing
wag held on July 106, 1993, through July 13, 1995, after which,
by way of special verdict, the jury sentenced Witter to death by
lethal inijection. The district court entered an amended
judgment of conviction on August 2, 1995, based on the jury's
sentence of death for the first-deqree murder charge and

imposing a twenty-year sentence for attempted murder {plus a

RA000013



twenty-year sentence enhancenent for use of a deadly weaponj, a
twenty-year sentence for attempted sexuai assault {plus a
twenty-year sentence enhancement for use of a deadly weapon},
and a ten-vear sentence for burglary. a1l sentencas are *o run
consecutively. Witter raises numerous issues on appeal.
Although we conclude that the State has fajled to prove the
Prevention of lawful arcest statutery aggravator beyond a
reascnable doubt, we conclude that the remaining aggravators
outweigh the mitigating evidence presented by Witter. Since
Witterty repaining arquuments are without merit, we Aaffirm the

district court's judgment of conviction and sentence of death,

EACTS
On  November 14, 1933, Kathryn c¢ox {Rathryn) was
working as a retail clerk for the Park Avenue Gift Shop locateg
in the Luxer Hotsl in Las Vegas, Nevada. James Cox (James),
Kathryn's husband, drove a taxicab in the Las ¥Yegas area. At
about 10:25 p.m., Eathryn called Japes and informed him that she

was having trouble with her car and needed assistance. James

told her that he would be gver to pick her up in abeut twenty-

five to thirty minutes. Kathryn returned to her car, got in,
locked her door, and began to read a book.

About five to ten minutes later, the passenger side
door opened, and William Witter got into the car. Hitter
demanded that Kathryn drive him out of the lot. When Kathryn
informed him that she could not, Witter stabbed her just above
her left breast. Witter pulled Rathryn closer to him and tola
her that he waa geing to kill her, After stabbing Xathryn
several more times, Witter became quiet, unzipped his pants and
ordered Kathryn to perform oral BEX. Kathryn attempted to
comply with his demands, but because she had a punctured lung,
she kept passing out, Witter pulled Kathryn into a sitting

position and told her, "VYou're probably already dead." Kathryn

2
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managed to open her door and attempted to run away, but was only

akle to get about ten or fifteen feet before Witter caught her.

; Witter forced Kathryn back inte the car and forced her to kiss

him. He then used his knife to cut away Kathryn's pants and
began to fondle her vaginal area with hie finger.
Kathryn cbserved her husband's cab pull up next to the

driver's side of her car. Witter, not knowing that James wag

Kathryn's husband, held Kathryn close and stated, "Don‘t say

anything. I'm going to tell him that You're having a bad
cocaine trip." James opened the driver's side door of Kathryn'sg
car and told Witter to get out. Witter got out of the car,
walked over to James, and stabbed him numercus times. James
fell backwards and into Rathryn, who had gotten out of the car,
Rnocking her to the ground. Kathryn get up and ran for a bus
stop. Once again, Witter caught Xathryn and carried her back to
her car. After pulling the rest aof Kathryn's clothes off,
Witter attempted to stuff James® body underneath James' cab.
Kathryn then heard hotel security approaching her vehicle.

A security officer in charge of patrolling the
Excalibur Hotel's emploves parking lot approached Kathryn's car
and confronted Witter. After a short standoff, the security
cfficer's backup arrived, and Witter was subdued. Paramedics
arrived a sghort time later, and Kathryn was taken to the
hogpital where she eventually recovered from her injuries.

James was already dead when the paramedice arrived.

DISCUSSTON
Guilt Phase
duey. woir dive.
The scope of jury woir dire is within the sound
discretion of the trial court and will be given consjderable
deference by this court. Cunningham v. State, 94 Nev, 128, 575

P.2d 936 (1878). The critical concern of jury veir dire is to

3
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discover whether a juror “will congider and decide the facis
impartially ang cenacientiously apply the law as charged by the

court." Adams v. Texas, 448 U.S. 38, 45 {19880} .

gonviction.

In Witherspoon ¥. Illineis, 331 U.S. 510 {1968}, the
United States Supreme Court held that the prosecution could
properly ask a potential juror whether the duror would
antomatically vote against the death penalty regardless of the
facta of the case. Likewise, in Morgan v. T1iinois, 504 U.S.
719 {1992}, tha Court held that the dafense wag entitled to ask
a potential juror whether the juror would automatically vote for
death regardless of the facts of the case.

At trial, the district court denled Hitter's request
to ask potential jurors the foliowing: ©"If there was evidence
that Defendant had a prior felony convictioen involving the use
or threat of violence, would you s5till consider all three
sentencing alternatives in your deliberaticns?"® The district
court found that the guestion violated EJDCR 7.70." Witter
contends that the gquestion merely attempts te death gualify the
jury through the use of a Morgan type guestion, and if the
guestion vicolates EJDCR 7.70, then EJDCR 7.70 viclates due
Process CONnCerns.

tncorporated within Witter's question is the statutory

aggravator iisted in NRS 200,033({2) (prior felony conviction

lpIDCR 7.70 states, in pertinent part:

The following arsas of inguiry are net
properly within the scope of voir dire
examination by counsel:

-

Questions touching on anticipated
instructions on the law.

(o) Questions touching on the verdict
a jurer would return when bazed upon
hypothetical facts.

(b}
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involving the use or threat of viclence). If Witter were
allowed to ask such a question, he would be able to read how &
potential durer would vete during the penalty phase of the
trial. This goes well beyond determining whether a potential
jurer would be able to apply the lav to the facts of the cage.
We de not read either the Morgan or the fitherspoon decisions ta
a2llow for one gide to gain such an unfair advantage. Moreover,
the recerd shows that other questions asked during voir dire
properly death qualified the jury. Since the question touches
on an anticipated ingtruction of law during the penalty phase,

and inquires inte the verdict a juror would return based on

hypothetical facts, we conclude that the district court properiy

found that the questions violated EJDCR 7.70. We also conclude
that the restrictions of EIDCR 7.70 are cenaistent with the
holidings in Morgan and Hitherspoon and that the rule does not
offend due process concerns. For these reasona, wé conclude
that the district court gid net abuse its discretion when it
precluded Witter's counsel from asking his proposed quection of

prospective jurors.

2. Newspaper articile.

On one of the days during jury voir dire, a Las Vegas
newspaper published a letter to the editor authored by Deputy
Attorney General Victor H, Schulze, II. The article stated,
ameng other thinge, that criminals should take respongibility
for their crimes. The article did not mention, nor did i
allude to, Witter's case, The district court refused te allow
Witter to questiorn the jury about the article. Witter now
argues that the digtrict court abused its discretion. We
disgagree.

We have recognized that, in an effort to protect thea
defendant’s right to a fair triaj, procedural safequards should

be employed by the trial judge to insure that potentially

]
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prejudicial news accounts of the proceadings do not prejudice
the defendant. Crowe v. State, 84 Nev. 158, 441 P.24 90 (1968).
"The trial judge has large discretion in ruling on the issue of

possibie prejudice resulting from news articles cOncerning a

defendant on trial and each case must turn on its special

facts.® Id. at 363, 441 P.2d at 93 {citation omitted).

While we recognize that the trial court fajiled to
utilize any procedural protections to insure that the jury was
not tainted by Schulze's article, we alsc re¢ognize that the
article did not specifically refer to Witter's case. We beliave
that the district court would have run a greater risk of
contamination if it were to have allowed Witter's counsel %o
question the jureors about the article. Under the circumstances,
wa conclude that Witter was not prajudiced by the district
court's refusal to allow his counsel to gquestion the jury about

Schulze's articla.

Exciugion gf witnesses.

At the beginning of trial, Witter made a motion to
exciude all witnesses pursuant to NRS 50.155(1),° the witness
exclusion rule, including those who would be testifying at a
penalty hearing. The district court invoked the rule as to the
guiit phaze of the trial, but refused to invoke it with regard
to the penalty phase. Witter now argues that the district court
abused its discretion. We disagree.

NRS 47.020 states that the rules of evidence under NRS
Title 4 are to govern the precesdings of the courts of the State
of Nevada, but are not to apply to sentencing proceedings,

Witter argues that NRS 47.020 should be disregarded in capital

‘NRS 50.155(1) states that "[e]xcept as otherwise provided
in subsectiona 2 and 3, at the regquest of a party the Jjudge
shall order withesses excluded so they cannot hear the testimony
of other witnesses, and he may make the order of his own
motion, "
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Cases because of tha severity of the punishment. gee Griffin v.
Illinois, 3%1 1.8, 12 (1956} {those charged with capital offenses
are to be granted special congiderations). wa conclude that
this argument is without tmerit., Had the legislature intended to
exenpt death cases from the exclusion of NRS 47.020, we believe
it would have expressly provided for such an  exemption.
Moreover, we conclude that the district court properly faound
that the witness exclusion rule did not need to be invoked
against penalty phase witnesses in this casse. "The purpose of
sequestration of witnesses iz to prevent particular witnesseg
from shaping their testimony, and to detect falsehood by
exposing inconsistencieg.w Civens v. State, 99 Nev. 50, 55, 657
P.2d 97, 100 {1981} (vitations omitted), averralad on  other
grounds, Talancon v. State, 102 Nev. 294, 721 P.2d 764 (1986),
Kathryn Cox was the only witness to tegtify at both the quilt
phase and the penalty phase, and her presence at both
proceedings is Bpecifically provided for in NRS 50.155(¢2){d).
For these reasons, we conclude that the distyrict court did not
err when it refused to invoke the witness exclusion rule againmt

penaity-phase witneasses.

Jury instrucriops,

With regard to his first-degree murder conviction,

Wwitter argues that the instructions given to the jury failed to
Alstinguigh adequately the alements of maiice and prremeditation,
and that the district court erred when it refused his propoged

Jury instruction which attempted to define deliberaticn.?

Jury Instruction No. 7 stated:

Express malice is that daliberats
intentiocn uniawfully to take away the life
of a fellow cresture, which ig manifested by
external circumstances capable of proof.

Malice wmay be implied when no
conzlderable provocation appsars, or when
all the circumstances of the ¥illing show an

(continued.,.)
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We have previcusly held that the premeditation
instruction challenged here provides the jury with an accurate
definition of premeditation and deliberation. SGeg Powell v.
State, 108 Nev. 700, 708, 838 P.2d 921, 926 (1992}, yacatad an
Qihar grounds, 511 U.5. 79 {1594 . We concliude that this
court's reasoning in Powell remains sound. Furthermore, in Guy

v. State, 108 Nev. 776, 839 P.2d 578 {(1992), gert. denied, 507

U.$. 1009 (1993}, this court held that the very same malice jury

instruction accurately informed the jury of the distinction
between express malice and implied malice. Ses NRS 200.020. We
conclude that the jury instructions actually submitted to the
jury were proper, and that the district court did not err when

it refused Wwitter's instruction defining deliberation,

Suprene. Sourt Bule 250.

Part IYII, section B of SCR 25%C states, in relevant

After close of the evidence, the court
shall confer with the prosecuting attorney
and defense counsel, The conference shall
be raported.

*(...continued)
abandeoned and malignant heart.

Jury Instruction No. 9 stated:

Prepeditation is a design, a
determination to kill, distinctly formed in
the mind at any noment before or at the time
of the %killing.

Preseditation need not be for a day, an
hour oy even a minute. It may be as
instantanecus as successive thoughts of the
mind. For the killing has been preceded by
and has been the result of premeditation, no
matter how rapldly the premseditation is
followed by the act constituting the
kiiling, it is willful, deliberate and
premeditated murder,

Witter‘s proposed instruction stated: “deliberate means
formed or arrived at or determined upon as a result of careful
thought and weighing of considerations for and against the
proposed cause of action.?
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The fecllowing  matters shall be
concluded during the conference after close
of the evidence:

1. Proposed written instructions shall
be presented to the court for rulings. The
defandant need not be present when the
instructions are settled.

2. The court shall make a final ruling
on any issue properly raised as to which a
tentative ruling or ne ruling was mnade
during presentation of the evidence.

Toward the end of both the guiit and panalty phases of

the trial, counsel for both the prosecution and defense met with

the district court judge in chambers to discuss Jjury

instructions. After each meeting, when the proceedings were
back on the record, the court asked Witter's counsel if he had
any obiections. Witter's counsel objected to the procedure used
by the court, arguing that under SCR 250 the entire discussion
should have been on the record. The court found the procedure
to be proper. Witter now argues that he was deprived of a fair
trial.

We conclude that the procedures followed by the
district court were sufficient to guarantee that any legitimate
opjections Witter may have had about the jury instructions were
considered by the district court and were preserved in the
record. Acgcordingly, we conclude that the procedures used by

the district court satisfy the provisions of SCR 250.

Panality phaga

Mation. for ceatinuance.

on June 28, 1995, the 3jury returned a verdict of
guilty on all counts, and the district court scheduled the
penalty hearing to begin on July 10, 1995, with discovery to
occur eon July 6, 1935. In the course of the penalty hearing,
the State introduced evidence of Witter's gang affiliation, and
evidence that a shank (knife) was found in his jail cell while
he was awaiting trial. At the penalty hearing, Witter made a
moticn for continuance, arguing that he planned to have an
expert testify about gang viclence and that he needed mpors time

9
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to secure such an expert. ‘The district courrt concluded that
Witter had adeguate time to prepare for the penalty hearing and,
accordingly, denied Witter's motion. Witter now argues that the
district court abusged its discretion for the following reasons:
1) a shank was found in Witter‘s jail cell on Auguat 5, 1994,

yet the State did not inform him of its intention to use the

evidence at the penalty hearing until July S, 1995; 2} he only

had four days from the date of discovery until the date of the
penality hearing in which to zecure expert testimony regarding
gang violence; and 3) the district court unfairly denjed his
motion te continue the penalty phase because he was unable to
secure expert witness testimony during the guilt phase.

The granting of a motion to continue is within the
sound discretion of the trial court. Doleman v. State, 107 Nev.
409, 812 P.2d 1287 (1991). in Rogers v. State, 101 Nev. 457,
705 P.2d 664 (1983), gert. denjed, 476 U.85. 1130 {1986), we held
that one week's notive of the prosecution's intent to present
evidence of prior convictione invelving violence wasg sufficient,
In that case, we concluded that the defendant was not prejudiced
because he had actual knowledge of the aggravating circumstance

and had sufficient time to prepare a chailenge. See also
Browning v, State, 104 Nav. 269, 757 P.2d 3151 (19488) (six~day
notice of the State's intent o use an aggravating circumstance
found to be sufficient).

In the present case, on June 20, 19953, almost a full
year before the penalty hearing, the State notified Witter's
counsel that it was investigating an alleged discipline problen
{possession of a shank} involving Witter. In addition, Witter's
body displays a number of tatoos that are consistent with thoze
worn by members of street gangs in San Jose, Califernia,
Witter's hometown. From these facts, we conclude that Witter's
counsel bad, or should? have had, actual notice of Witter's
possessien of a shank while incarcerated, and his involvement
with straet gangs. We also conclude that even if Witter were

10
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akle to secure expert testimony regarding gang viclence in
Prisons, such testimony would have done little to mitigate his
invelvement, We therefore conclude that Witter was not
prejudiced by the district court's decision to allow only four
days between discovery and the penalty hearing. Accerdingly, we
conclude that the district court did not abuse its discretion

when it refused to grant Witter's motion for continuance.

Epnalty phace evidence.

Witter argues ¢hat the distriet court erred in
admitting evidence of his possession of a shank, since his
possession was an unadjudicated offense and he was net allowed
representation at the discipiinary hearing which he contends was
a violation of the Sixth Amendment to the United States
Constitution.

Under N¥RS 175,.552,' the trial court is given broad
discretion on questions concerning the admissibllity of evidence
at a penalty hearing. gGuy, 108 Hev. 770, 83% P.2d 578. In
Robins v. State, 106 Nev. 611, 7%8 P.2d 558 (1990), gert.
denlad, 499 U.S. 970 (1991), this court held that evidence of
uncharged crimes is admissible at a penalty hearing once any
aggravating circumstance has beenr proven beyond a4 reasonable
doubt.

In this case, the State proved beyond a reasonable

doukht that Witter had 3 previous felony conviction involving

viclence to the person of another, that Witter murdered James in

*HRS 175.552(3) states, in part:

3. 1In the [penalty] hearing, evidence
may be presented concerning agyravating and
mitigating circumstances relative to the
offense, defendant or victim and on any
other matter which the court deems relevant
to sentence, whether or not the evidence is
ordinarily admissible. . . . HNo evidence
which was secured in wviclation of the
Constitution of the United States or the
constitution of the State of Nevada may be
introduced. . , .

il




the commission of or an attenpt to comnit a burglary, and that

Witter murdered James while engaged in the commission of or
attempt to commit a sexual assault. we therefore concludes that
the district court pProperly admitted evidence of his possession
of a shank while he was incarcerated.

Furthermore, we conclude that Witter &id not have a
Sixth Amendment right to counsel at his disciplinary hearing.
While a prisoner may have a Siuth Amendment right to counsel at
a disciplinary hearing when the charge involves conduct that is
punishable under =ztate law, ses Wolff v, McDonnell, 418 U.5. 5189
{1974); Gagnon v. Scarpelli, 411 U.5. 778 (1871), Witter's
possession of the shank is not & punishable offense under the
laws of Nevada.

Witter also contends that the district court erred in
aduitting evidence showing that he is 2 member of a street gang.
According te Witter, the evidence iacked any probative value and
was offered only to inflame the passions of the jury.

KRS 48.035{1) states that #[allthough relevant,
evidence is not admissible if its probative wvalue ig
substantially cutweighed by the danger of unfair prejudice, or
confusion of the issues or of wisleading the iury.* wWhile this
court has cautioned that the introduction of gang membership
during a pepaity hearing may be unfairly prejudicial, see Young
v. State, 103 Nev. 233, 737 P.24 512 {188%); Lay v. State, 110
Hav., 1189, 88& P.2d 448 (19%4); ==e also Dawson v. Delaware, 503
U.8. 259 (1992}, this court has held that "{firom Dawson, we
derive the following rule: Evidence of a constitutionally
protected activity is adeissible only if it s used for
something more than general character evidence." Flanagan v.
Stat’._e, 109 Nev. 50, 53, 848 P.2d8 1653, 1056 (1993). In Dawsaon,
the United States Supreme Court reasoned that "fa) defendant's
wembership im an organization that endorses the killing of any

identifiable group, for example, might be relevant to a jury's




ingquiry into whether the defendant will be dangercus in the
futyre.”™ 503 U.8. at 1866.
in this case, the State presented tegtimony from the

arresting officers indicating that wWitter told them that he

could heighten his reputation if he were te kili police

officers, and from a second officer who stated that from the
clothing Witter was wearing and from the tatcos on his arm, he
believed that Witter was a member of a viclent California gang
known as the “"Nortenos." We conclude that this evidence tends
to show that Witter posed a threat of futurs violence to the
community. Mereover, we conclude that the probative valus of
the evidence was not substantially cutweighed by the danger of
unfair preijudice, or confusion of the jipsues or of miglieading
the jury. Accordirgly, we conclude that the district court
properly admitted evidence of Witter's affiliation with a straet

gang.

Mation for miatrial.

At the penalty hearing, Kathryn Cox read a prepared
statement to the jury in which she demanded that the jury show
ho mercy to the defendant, and in which she informed the jury
that she intended to do everything in her power to see that
Witter received no mercy. Witter made a motion for mistrial,
arguing that Xathryn's statements went beyond the scopa of what
is acceptable as a victim-impact statement since the statoments
unduly inflamed the passions of the jury and that they amounted
to a plea for the return of a death penalty sentence. The
district court denied Witter's nction. Witter now argues that
he was deprived of a fair trial and that the district court
abused its discretion when it denied hig motion for mistrial.

In Payne v. Tennessee, 501 U.5. 808, 827 {1591}, the
Supreme Court overruled prior precedent and held that if a State
chocses to permit the admission of victim impact evidence and
prosecutorial argument on that subject, the Eighth Amendment
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erects no per se bar. In Homick v. State, 108 Nev. 127, 825
P.2d 600 (1992}, we applauded the decisioen reached in Paype and
concluded that the decision comports with the principles of the
Nevada Constitution. HRS 175.552(3) states, in part, that *{iln
the {penalty] hearing, svidence may be presented concerning
aggravating and mitigating circunstances reijative to the
offense, defendant or victim and on any other matter which the
court deems relevant to sentence, whether or not the evidence is
ordinarily admissible. ™ Howaver, while a2 victinm may addreass the
impact that the crimes has had on the victim and the victim's
family, a victim can only express an opinien regarding the
defendant’'s zsentence in non capital! csses. Randell v. State,
1903 Nev. %, 846 P.2d 278 {1991},

We conclude that in asking the jury to "show no
mercy,” EKathryn was not expreszing her opinion as to what
sentence Witter should receive. Rather, we believe that Kathryn
was only asking that the jury return the mogt severe verdict
that it deemed appropriate under the facts and circumstances of
this case, Kathryn'a statements also enphasize the devastating
effact this crime has had on her and her familyt*s life. Such
sentiments are adpissible victim-impact statements NRS
175.552(3). We tharefore conclude that Witter was not deprived
of a fair trial and that the district court properly denied

Witter's motion for mistrial.

Hitrer's notion to argue last,

Witter contands that NRS 200.030(4}° shifts the burden

of proof to the defendant to prove that mitlgating circumstances
outweigh aggravating circumstances. Witter cites Griffin v,

Iilinois, 351 U.8. 12 (1956), and argues that the district court

‘MRS 200.030(4) states, in part, that #la] person convicted
of murder of the first degree is guilty of a category A felony
and shall be punished: {a} By death, only if ocne or more
aggravating clrcumstances are found and any mitigating
clrcumstance or circumstances which are found do not outweigh
the agqravating circumstance or circumstances.®

14
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should have allawsd him to argue last during closing arguments.

. We disagree.

First, we read MRS 200.030({4) as stating that the
death penalty ig an available punishment only if the state can
prove beyond a reascnable doubt at least one aggravating
circumstance exists, and that the aggravating circumstance or
circumstances cutweigh the mitigating evidence offered by tha
defendant. The statute does not shift the burden of preof to
the defendant. Second, unliess the case is mubmitted to the jury
by one or both sides without arqument, NRS 175.141° mandates that
the district attorney, or other counsel for the gtate, open and
conclude argument. Under NRS 175.141, the district court does
not have the autherity to grant Witter's regquest. Moraeover,
such & concession would unfairly disadvantage the prosecution.
Accordingly, we conclude that the district court did npot err
when 1t denied Witter's reguest to argue last during the penalty

phase.

Prasequtorial misconduct.

The trial court has a duty £o ensure that an accused
receives a fair trial, and to this end the court must exercise
its discreticnary power to control obvious prosecutorial
miscenduct sua sponte. Ceollier v, State, 101 Nev., 473, 705 P.2d4
1126 (1985), mert..denied, 486 U.S. 1036 (1388). In reviewing
a pregecutor's comments, the relevant inguiry is whsther the
comments were se unfair that they deprived the defendant of due

process. Darden v. Wainwright, 477 U.S, 168 {1%66). However,

*NRS 175.141 atates, in pertinent part:

The jury having been impaneled and sworn,
the trial shall proceed in the following
arder:

5. When the svidence is concluded,
unless the case is submitted to thea jury on
either side, or on both sides, without
arqgument, the district attorney, or other
counsel for the state, nust open and must
concliude the arqument.

15
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comments that are harmiess beyond a reasonable doubt do not
warrant reversal. Witherow v. State, 104 Nev. 72, 765 P.2d

1153 (1888}.

1. Community standards.

During the penalty phase closing argqument, the

prosecutor commented:

When we talk about the death penalty,
there are two scheols of thought as to why
society might have it. One  school of
thought is that of deterrence. Detarrence
is achieved through severity of punishment.
It ie important for the image of the
criminal justice system to have the death
penalty. It is important to send a message
to people in the community and to wouldi-ibe
rurderers that there are lines that vou do
not croes in Nevada; that there iz sope
conduct that simply will not be tolerated
and will be met with a wvery, very severe
penalty.

The other school of thought is one of
punishment. It is an expression of
seciety’s sense of moral outrage. Secliaty
has a right to feel that ouirage when
confronted with these crimes and to respond
to it. It flows frem the concept that
consequences follow actions; that there are
penalties for crimes; that punishment should
fit the crime; the worse the act, the worse
the penalty.

The prosecutor also commented that anything less than the death
penalty would be disrespectful to the dead and irresponaibiea to
the living. Witter argues that these statements amount to an
impermissible comment on community stangards. We disagree.

In Callier, we held that a prosecutor's statement that
if the jury was not angry with the defendant then "we are not a
moral commenity." improperly inflamed the jury and amounted to
presecutorial miscenduct. 101 Nev. at 479, 705 P.2d at 1129.
Nevertheless, the prosecutor may go beyornd the evidence to
discuss general theories of penclogy such as the merits of
punishment, deterrence and the death penalty. Id. at 418, 705
P.2d at ii29.

We conclude that the comments cited above were an

attempt to educate the jury about some of the theories

le
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supparting our criminal justice system, and why the death
penalty is an available option. Since these are proper areas
for prosecutorial comment, we conclude that the prosecutor did

not engage in mizconduct.

Duty ta.scciety at large.

buring the penalty phase closing argument, the

prosecutor comRented:
What message does this punishment send

today? Will we tell would{~]be murders,

will we tell this community, that you can

kil a man, thrust a knife intc his skull 16

times, one time through his skull, 16 times

into his bady, that ¥you <¢an perpetrate

unspeakable, despicable deeds upon his wife

in her own car and that you, the husband,

can drive upon that orime scene and witness

your wife bleeding to death, struggling for

your life, vhat message does it send te say

the man that perpetrates those crimes can

live his life in prison, ecan write hisg

family, see his family, speak to his family?

Witter argues that these statements amount to an improper piea
to a duty to society at lurge. See Haberstroh v. State, 105
Hev. 739, 782 P.2d 1343 (1989) (prosecutor commitisd misconduct
by referring to the jury as "the conscisnce of the community™y;
fallier, 101 Nev. 473, 705 P.238 1126; Flanagan v. State, 104
Nev. 105, 734 P.2d4 838 {1988}, vacated on arher grounds. sub
nam., Flanagan v. Kevada, 503 .5, 931 {1992} (prosecutor's
remark, "{i]f we don't punish, then society is going to laugh at
us®™ found te be improper). We disagres.

We conclude that these statements properly focus on
what would be an appropriate punishment under the facts and
eircumstances of this cage, as well as vwhat would be necessary
to deter others from committing such a brutal act. These are
entirely proper areas for comment. Accordingly, we conclude
that these statements did not constitute an improper plea to a

duty to soclety at large.
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The following exchange took place during the

prosecution's closing argument during the penalty phase:

MR. OWENS: And it's very subtle, and
you may not have noticed it, but in any
penalty hearing what the defense and gvery
witness that the defense calls wants you to
do is forget about --
MR, XOHN: I object, Your Honor,
THE COURT: Overruled.
MR. OWENS: What the defense has dene
in this case, ladies and gentlemen, is to
try to make you forget about Kathryn Cox and
James Cox. The whale case gets turned
upside down and they twist things around
until they ecan portray the vic -- the
defendant, William Witter, as if he is the
vietim.
Witter argues that in stating "in any penalty hearing what the
defense and every witnese that the defense calls wants you f[the
jury] to do is to forget about [the victims)," the prosecution
improperly referrsd to matters outside the record on appaal.
See State v. Kassablan, 69 Nev. 146, 242 P.28 264 {1952).
Witter also argues that these atatements improparly disparage a
legitimate defense tactic. Seges Williama v. State, 103 Kev. 106,
734 P.2d 700 (1987); Pickworth v. State, 95 Nev. 547, 598 p.24
626 (1973).
¥e conclude that both of Witter's argquments lack
merit, After the objection, the prosecutor modified his
gtatement to conform to the facts of this case. As such, the
statement did not refer to matters outside of the record.
Moreover, the statement did not disparage a legitimate defense
taetic, Rather, the statement merely attempted to keep the
jury's focus on the actual victims of Witter's crime. We

therefore conclude that the progecutor's statements were proper.

q. Commants aboul possible futitrs crimes.
The prosecutor made the fellowing comments during the

penalty phase closing argument:

18
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Don't let him go back where he can
murder again, and perhaps this time a
corrections officer, because that is aexactly
what he has threatened to do. He told the
police officers that "[t)ake these handcuffs
off of me so I can kill a police officer.
That's all I need to do to raise ny
reputation higher.®

Den't give him the chance. Don't let
it happsn because it wouldn’t be fair; it
wouldn't be justice.

+ =z s

But we are geing te place Willian
Witter -— at least if we do what the defense
wants you to do, we are going to place him
in prison, where he can heighten his
reputation and perpetrate unspeakable crimes
on parhaps unsuspecting guards,

And  certainly guards are trained
individuals; they are trained to protact
themselves, but they don*t have eyes in the
back of their heads, and they don't know
when a William Witter will wrap a shank that
he made in a towel and become angry and
thrust that into the life of a corrections
officer and bring about another tragedy.

History repsats itseilf,

What ungsuspecting prisoner might
William Witter's life cross and what might
happen to that prisoner? o©h, certainly,
that’s just a prisoner and he's a wrongdoer
and maybe he gets what he deservea,

*« = a s

Interestingily enough, the defense
didn't ask their witness perhaps the most
important question for you people:

Doctor, let's talk about the future
dangerousness of this man., <an anybody in
your prefegsicn predict future
dangerousness?

= .

So I took the doctor through a histery
of violence and asked: Dees history repeat
itgelf? Are the acts of the defsendant
indicators of his future dangerousness?

Because you people need to know what
kingd of danger rests in the future of lives
9f other individuals that come in contact
with Dr. Etcoff.

Now thatfs a question that they didn't
ask, It's a question I wanted vyou to know;
and the answer was clear: History repeats
itself.

L

Knowing the future dangerousness, it
wouid be disrespectful to the dead and

19

2000031



irreapensible to the living to lat this man
have his life of prison, to let him create
another persenal jungle for himself like the
jungle that he created in the parking lot on
November 14, 1991,

In Collier, we held that a prosecutor's remarke which
sought to promote a conclusion that a defendant's rehabilitation
was improbable, that he might well kill again while in prison,
and that he should therefore bhe put toe death were highly

inappropriate. 101 Nev. at 478, 7¢5 P.2d at 1129. In Riley v,

State, 107 Nev. 205, 2192, BOE P.2d 551, 560 (1981}, wmert.
dienisd, U.8. 1153 8. €. 1431 (1995), we modified our
holding in gullier to allow a prosecutor to ask a Jury to draw

an inference of future dangerousness when there is evidence of

a defendant's past conduct that would support a reasonahle

inference that even incarceration wouid not doter the defendant
from endangering others' lives. Firally, in Redmen v. Stata,
108 Nev. 227, 828 P.2d 395 {1992}, cerkt. denied, 506 U,S. 880
{19%2), overmuled op other grounds, Alford v. State, 111 Nev.
1409, 906 P.2d 714 (1395), we expanded our holding in Rilegy to
allow prosecutors to argue the future dangercusnezs of a
defendant even when there is ne evidence of viclence independent
of the murdar in guestion.

Witter contends that the progecutor's statements were
improper under Lallier. We disagree. In accordance with our
holding in Redmen, the prosecutor was allowed to argue that
Witter posed a threat of future dangerousness based Balely on
his murder of Fames, Moreover, in Haberatroh, i0% Kev. 738, 782
P.2d 1343, we held that & defendant's past conduct in jail
justifies a prosecutor's comment that defendant could pose a
centinuing threat to others. In this case, the record clearly
shows that a shank was found in Witter's cell while he was
awaiting triai. We therefore conclude that the prosecutoris
statements =mphasized the potential future threat Witter posad
to society. As such, we conclude that those statements were

proper.

A 000032



5. Colden . Ruie® plea,

During ¢the penalty phase <¢losing argument, the

prosecutor commented:
Do 1 make these statements to excite

you or to remind you of the viclence that

encompasses the defendant? For a moment, we

recreate that ¢rime because this punishment

has tec fit that crime,.

But how aggravating is it to sit there

and this man get in your car, the vehicle

that you own, and begin to parpetrate these

crimes on you?

It is improper for a prosecutor to make a plea to
return a death penalty verdict on behalf of victims. Howard v.
State, 106 Nev. 713, 800 F.2d 175 (193%0). It is egually
unacceptable for a prosecutor to ask the jury to stand in the
shoes of the victim {the Golden Rule argument). id.; McGuire v.
State, 100 Hev. 153, 677 P.2d 1060 (1984]). Witter argues that
the lahguage cited above, along with the prosecutor's comment
that anything less than the death penalty would be disrespectful
to the dead and irresponsible to the living, amounts to an
improper “Golden Rule"” plea as well as a plea to the jury to
retuyrn a death penalty verdict on behalf of the victim in this
cage., We disagree.

In commenting that anything less than the death
sentence would be disrespectful to the dead, we conclude that
the prosecutor was merely pointing ocut to the jury that our
soclety values human life, and in order to respect the value of
human life, one who takes a humar life in the manner that Witter
did should have to pay for his crime with his own iife.
Furthermore, the prosecutor's statements painted a vivid picturs
for the jury, and any reference to "you" appears to be merely

rhetorical. For thesa reasons, we conclude that the

prosecutor’s statements were proper.
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The State included the prevention of lawful arrest
statutory aggravator listed in NRY 200.033{5)" as one of the
aggravating circumstances in its netice of intent to seek the
death penalty. Witter made a motien to strike that aggravator,

arguing that the evidence adduced at trial shows that he killed

James in an attempt to continue his sexual assault on Kathryn,

not to avolid arrest. The district court denied Witter's motion.
Witter now contends that the district court abused its
discretion.

in Cavanaugh v. State, 102 Nev, 478, 729 P.2d 481
{31986}, this court held that for purposes of NRS 200.033(5), the
arrest does not need to be imminent, and the victim does not
have to be involved in sope way with effectuating the arrest.
HMore recentiy, in Canape v. State, 109 Nev. 864, B5% P.2d 1023
(1393), cect. denjed, —— U8, . 115 5. CE. 176 {1994}, the
svidence adduced at trial showed that Canape robbed his victim
then walked him away from the freevay before shooting him in the
back. We held that based on the evidence of the case, a Jjury
could reasonably infer that the murder wWas committed to avoid
lawful arrest. Id. at 874~75, 85% P.2d at 10310.

In this case, Witter attacked James only after James
told Witter that Xathryn was his wife and ordered Witter to exit
the vehicle. Once Witter killed James, Witter grabbed Kathryn
and forced her back into the vehicle. Rather than fleeing, or
kiiling Kathryn to make sure no one coutid identify him, wWitter
hid James' body under his cab and resumed his sexual assault on
Kathryn. The natural inference drawm from these facts is that
Witter killed James so that he could continue his assault on
Kathryn, sot to avoid arrest. Cleariy, the prosecution has not

met its burden ©of proving this aggravator beyond a reasonable

'NRS 200.033(5) states that "ft1he murder was committed to
avoid or prevent a lawful arrest or to effect an escape from
custody., "
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doubt. Wa therefore conclude that the jury ceould net have

reasonably found that the wuyrder was committed to avoid lawful
arrest and that the district court erred when it denled Witter's
motion to strike the aggravator.

In McKenna v. McDaniel, 65 ¥.3d 1483 {oth Cir. 1385),
the Ninth Circunit Court of Appeals was faced with a situvation
similar to the case at bar in which one of the aggravating
circumstances used to sentence McKemna to death was found
invalid. 1n commenting on Nevada's death penalty statute, the
court stated:

Even in a weighing state, however,
invalidation of cne of several aggravating

factors may make no difference if there werae

no mitigating circumstances against which

the state court could balance the remaining

acgravating factors. See

+ 816 F.2d 1390, 1393 (9th cCir.

1987). But where some mitigating factors

exiant, thare must either be a new sentencing

hearing before a jury or the state appeljiate

court must reweigh or conduct harmless error

review in order to give the defendant the

individualized considerationa regquired by

the Constitution, isa{gg] '

494 U.S. [738] at 746, 752, 110 $.Ct. [1441]

at 1447, 1450.

Id. at 1489-30. Even though we conclude that the prevention of
lawful arrest aggravator sheuld have been stricken, there remain
four aggravators that the State has proven beyond a reascnable
doubt. In mitigation, Witter offered the testimony of saveral
mewbers of his family and the testimony of a clinical
psychologist, all of whom testified that Witter grew up in a
very abusive and dysfunctional family. We comclude that the
remaining four aggravators clearly outweigh the mitigating
evidence presented by Witter. Moreover, for the same reason, we
concluyde that the dAistrict court's failure to strike the
prevention of lawful arrest aggravator amounts tg harmless
error. See Chapman v, California, 386 U.S. 18 {1966}, We
therefore conclude that even though the district court erred in
allewing the prevention of lawful arrest aggravator to be

congidered by the jury, Witter's sentence of death is still proper.
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Mardatory statutory. reviesd.

Finally, wa conciude, pursuant to NRS 171.055, that
{1} the evidence fully supports the finding cf-%h:;; valid
aggravating circumstances, (2} the sentence of death was not
impesed under the influence of passion, prejudice or any

arbitrary factor, and (3} the aentence is not excessive,

considering both the crime and the defendant.

CONCLUSTON

For the reasons stated above, we conclude that except
for Witter's challenge to the prevention of lawful arrest
statutory aggravator, all of Witter's arguments are without
perit. Accordingly, we affirm Witter's judgment of cenviction.
With regard to the prevention of Jlawful arrest statutory
aggravator, we conclude that the state has falled to prove the
aggravator beyond a reasonable doubt. Nevertheless, because we
conclude that the remaining four aggravators clearly outweigh
the mitlgating evidence presented by Witter, we affirm Wwitter'ts

sentence of death.
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DISTRICT COQURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

WILLIAM LESTER WITTER,
B Petitioner,
CASE NO. C 117513

DEPT. NO. VI
DOCKET NO. B

VB -

E.K. MCDANIEL, WARDEN OF ELY
STATE PRISON,

Respondent

Mt Vil Vot Wt agall'' Vel gt Vg Nt Vot “gitt

DATE OF HEARING: // /,';( /” 7
~TIME OF HEARING: g

1. Name of lnstltutlon and county in Wthh you are

Fi'presently 1mprlsoned or where and how you are presently

g_restralned of your 11berty- Ely State Prison

-'2. Name and locatlon of court whlch entered the judgment o

' ef convictlon under attack: Elghth ‘Judicial Dlstrlct Court,

Las Vegas, c1ark County, Nevada
3. Date of Judgement_ef conﬁietion: August 2, 1995
4. Case number: C 117513 | |
5. {a) Length’df sentence: Death
| ' {bj it sentence is death state any. date upon whlch
executlon is scheduled.: Sentence stayed pendxng appeal

6. "Are you presently serVLng a sentence for a conv1ction
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other than the conviction under attack in this potion?
. Yes _'i No XX |

If “yes", 1istecrime,'ca5e.numﬁer.end.eentence being-eerved'rh
at this tlme N/i | o ” | - | |

7. Nature of offense 1nvolved in convictlon being

'challenged. Flrst Degree Murder Wlth Use, Attempt Murder wlth

Use, Attempt Sexual Assault wzth Use, and Burglary

8. What was your plea?u (check,one)
(a) Not guilty XX o
(b) Guilty .

(c} Guilty but mentally ill

(d) Nolo contendere

9. If you entered:e plea of qﬁiity or'gﬁilty but'menfellyﬁeﬂﬁ‘
111 to one count of an 1nd1ctment or 1nformatlon, and a’ plea ofieV
Inot guilty to another count of an lndlctment or information, or ' :
1if a plea of guilty or qullty but mentally ill was negotiated
give details: N/A

10. If you were found guilty after a plea of'not-guilty,

{was the finding made by: (check one)

(a) Jury _xx

(b} Judge without a jury

"11. Did you testlfy at the tria1° Yes No _XX

12. Did you appeal from the judgement of conv1ct10n°
Yes XX  No |
13, If you did appeal,'answef the following:
(a) Name of court: .Neveda[Supreme Court

(b) Case number or citation: 27539




{c) Result: Affirmed
(d) Date of result: Decision issued July 22, 1996;
petition for Rehearing denied December 13, 1996; and Writ of
certiorari denied May 12, 1997.
(A COPY OF THE DECISION OF THE NEVADA SUPREME COURT IS
ATTACHED)
14. If you did not appeal, explain briefly why you did
not: N/A
15, Other than a direct appeal from the judgement of

conviction and sentence, have you previously filed any

petitions, applications or notions with respect to this

judgement in any court, state or federal? Yes Mo _XX.
16. If your answer to No. 15 was “yeg,” give the following
information: N/A

{a) (1) Name of court:

{2} HNature of proceeding:

(3} Grounds raised:

{4) Did you receive an evidentiary hearing on your

petition, application or motion?

{5) Result:

{6) Date of result:

(7) If known, citations of any written opinion or date of

orders entered pursuant to such result:

{b} as to any second petition, application or motion,
give the same information:

(1) WName of court:

(2) Nature of proceeding:
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jpetition; applzcation or motlon’ |

(3) Grounds raised:

(4) Did you receive an evidentiery hearlng on your

{5) Result:

(6) Date of result:

(7) If known, citations of any written opinion or date of |

orders entered pursuant to such result:

(c) As to any third or subsequent additional applications

or motions, give the same information as above, list themona | J

|separate sheet and attach.

(d) Did you appeal tc the highest state or'federal_COurt :

|having jurisdiction, the result or action takeh'cnﬁany,e__

ipetition, application or motion? -

(1)} First petition, appiication or motion? |
Yes No

Citation or-dateIQf decisiont

(2) Second_peﬁition, application or motion?
Yes No

Citation or date of decision:

(3) Third or subsequent petitions, applications or
motions? Yes No

‘Citation or datE-of-decision:

{({e) If you did not appeal from the adverse action oh any
petltlon, appllcatlon or motion, explaln'briefly whyeyou did

not: (You must relate specific facts in response to this

[jquestion. Your response may be inc1uded,on paper which'is_s ¥

by 11 inches attached_to the petition. Your reSPonsé-may”not.j'”
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‘exceed five handwritten or typewritten pages in length.)

17. Has any ground being raised in this-petitionfbeeh

previously presented to this or any other_court'by”way_of

Ipetition for habeas corpus, motion, application or any other

post-conviction proceeding? If so, identify: No.
18. If any of the grounds listed in Nos. 23(a), (b), (c)

and (d), or listed on any additionail pages yocu have attached

Iwere not prev1ously presented in any other court, state or

federal, list briefly what grounds were not so presented, and -
give your reasons for not presenting them. (You must telate

specific facts in response to this question. Your response mayj

:be 1nc1uded on paper which is 8 % by i1 1nches attached to the

petition. Your response may not exceed five handwrltten or

typewritten pages in length.) Allegations of 1neffect1ve

assistance of trial counsel aren't properly raised on direct

'appeal. Any issues not raised on appeal that could have been

raised were the result of ineffective appellate counsel.

19. Are you filing this petition more than 1 year

following the filing of the judgement of conviction or the

filing of a decision on direct appeal? If so, state briefly

the reasons for the delay. (You must relate specific facts in

'response to this gquestion. Your response may be included on
paper which is 8 % by 11 inches attached to the petition. Your
: response may hot exceed five handwritten or typewritten pages

'_in_length.) No. The decision was not final.until the Writ of

Certiorari was denied.
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20. Do you have-any’petition'or appeal now pending in any
fcouf;, either state-orrfederal; as to the judgement under.
”attack’ Yes .. No _Xx. ” ' |

If yes, state what court and the case number:

21. Give the name of each attorney who represented You in-ffdf'"‘”

ithe proceedlng resultlng in your convzction and on direct
7| appeal: Trlal._ Phlllp Kohn, Esq. and Kedrxc Bassett, Esq.: '

'Dxrect appeal' Robert L. Mlller, Esq..ff

_22. Do you have any future sentences to serve after you d'“*r5-

}complete the sentence imposed by the judgement under atta\ck'P

If yes, specify where and when 1t is to be served, 1f you

13|[xnow: N/A

23.' State concisely every ground on whlch you claim that
zryou are being held unlawfully Summarlze brlefly the facts
Esupportmg each ground. If. necessary you may attach pages

 stating additional grounds and facts supportlng same.

'(a) Ground one. Petztxoner Was Denled His Rights under _i e

:'the Sixth and Fourteenth amendments to Effective A551stance of
.dTrlal Counsel and Due Process of Law Due to the Failure of
_ Trial counsel. The Specific Fallures of Tr1a1 Counsel as
| Currently Known Are:'
1. TFailure to Investigate and Present Evidence at the
_ Trial Portlon of the Case _ |
Failure to Investxgate and Present Ev1dence at the
Penalty Hearlng

conceding Gu11t Denled Petltloner of an Adversary




Proceeding
Such Other and Further Errors Revealed by a Full and
Complete Review of the Record by Newly Appointed
Counsel
(b} Ground two: Petitioner Was Denied His Rights under
the Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments to Effective Assistance of
Appellate Counsel and Due Frocess of Law. The Specific
Failures of Appellate Counsel Were:
1. Failure to Raise Issues of Arguable Merit on the
Direct Appeal
Failure to Petition the Court for Rehearing on Clear
Errors Contained in the Supreme Court's Opinion
Such Other and Further Errérs Revealed by a.?ull and
complete Review of the Record by Newly Appointed
Counsel
WHEREFORE, Petitioner prays that the court set a briefing
schedule and conduct an evidentiary hearing on the issues
raised herein and thereafter grant him the relief to which he
is entitled.

SIGNED at ELY STATE PRISON, ELY, NEVADA.

DATED: atfoaeq_ 22, 1R

Z:E 5 2/52
ILLIAM LESTER WINTER

PETITIONER
YERIFICATION
Under penalty of perjury, the undersigned declares that he

is the Petitioner named in the foregoing petition and knows the




'contents thereof that the pleading is true of hlS own -

':knowledge except as . to those matters stated on 1nformat10n and

3|4 bellef, and as to such matters he believes them to be true. *“”5%

3 pzfrrrmrér:n

DAVID M., SCHIECK, ESQ
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

WILLIAM LESTER WITTER,  Ho, 27539

FILED

Appellant,
vs.

THE STATE GF HEVADA,

Raspondant.

Appeal from a judgment of conviction pursuant to a
jury verdict on ohe count of first degree murder with use of a
deadly weapon and from sentence of death, attampted murder with
use of a deadly weapon, attempted sexual assault with use of a
' deadly weapon, and burglary. Eighth Judicial District Court,
' clark County; Stephen L. Huffaker, Judge. -

Aftirmed.

Morgan D. Harris, Public
pefender, Robert L. Miller,
pDeputy Public pefender, Philip
Kohn, Deputy Public Detender,
Clark County,

for Appellant.

Frankie Sue Del Papa, hAttornay

General, carson Clty; Stewart L.

Bell, District Attorney, James .

Tufteland, Chief Deputy pistrict

Attorney, Gary Guynon, Daputy

District Attorney, Clark County,
for Respondent.

0P INTON

PER CURIBM:

on June 28, 1935, a sjury found William Witter guilty
of murder with use of a deadly weapon, attempted sexual assault
with use of a deadly weapon, and burglary. A penalty hearing
was held on July 10, 1995, through July 13, 1985, after which,
by way of special verdict, the Jury sentenced Witter to death by
lethal injection. The district court aentered an amended
judgment of conviction on August 2, 1995, based on the jury's
sentence of death for the first-degree murder charge and

inposing a twenty-year sentence for attempted murder (plus a




tuenty-year sentence enhancement for use of a deadly weapon), a
' tuenty-year sentence for attempted 3exua1 assault (plus a
twenty-year sentence enhancement for use of a deadly weaponj,
: aﬁd a ten-year sentence for burglary. A1l sentencas are to run
consecutlvely. Witter raises numerous issues on appeal.
Although wée conclude that the State has failed to prove the
prevention of lawful arrest statutery aggravator beyond a
reasonable doubt, we conclude that the remaining aggravators
outweigh th§ mitigating evidence presented by Witter. Since
Witter's remaining arguments are without merit, we affirm the

district court's judgment of conviction and sentence of death.

EACTS

on November 14, 1593, Kathryn Cox (Kathryn)} wés
working as a retail clerk for the Park Avenue Gift Shop located
in the Luxor Hotel in Las veqéa, Nevada. James Cox (James},
Kathryn's husband, drove a taxicab in tha Las Vegas area. At
about 10:25 p.®., Kathryn called James and informed him that she
was having trouble with her car and needed assistance. James
told her that he would be over to pick her up in about twenty-
five ¢o thirty minutes. Kathryn returned to her car, got in,
locked her door, and began t& read a book.

About five to ten minutes later, the passenger side
door openhed, and William Witter got into the car. Witter
demanded that Kathryn drive him out of the lot. When Kathryn
informed him that she could not,.witter stabbed her just above
' her left breagt. Witter pulled Kathryn closer to him and told
her that he was going to kill her. After stabbing Kathryn
several more times, Witter became guiet, unzipped his pants and
ordered Kathryn to perform oral sex. Kathryn attenpted to
comply with his demands; but because she had a punctured lung,

she Xept passiﬁq out. Witter pulled Kathryn into a sitting

position and told her, "You're probably already dead." Kathryn
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managed to open hér deoor and attempted to run away, but was qnly.
“able to get about ten or fifteen feet before Hittef caught her,
Wwitter forced Kathryn back into the car.and forced her to kiss
- him. He then used his Knife to cut away Kathryn's pants and
| began to fondle her vagin&l area with his finger. '

Kathryn cbserved her husband's cab pull up next to the
driver's side of har car, Witter, not knowing that Jimes was
Kathryn's husbﬁnd, held Katﬁryn close and stated, "Don't say
anything. I'm going to tell him that you're having a.héd
cocaine trip." James opened the driver’s side door of Kathryn's
car and told Witter to get cut. Witter got ocut of the wcar,
walked over to James, and stabbed him numerous timés. James
fall backwards and into Kathryn, who had gotten out of the car,’
knocking her to the grcund. Kathryn got up and ran for a bus
stop. Once again, Witter caught Kathryn and carried her back.to
her car. After pulling the rest of Kathryn's clﬁthes off,
Witter attempted to stuff Jamgs' body underneatﬁ Jémes' cab,
Kathryn then heard hotel security approaching her vehicle.

A security officer in charge of patrolling the
Egcalibur Hotel's employee parking lot hpproached Kathryn's éar
and confronted Witter. .Atter a short standoff, ﬁhe security
officer's Lackup a:rived, and Witter was subdued. 'Paramedics
! arrived a short time later, and Kathryn was taken to the
" hogpital whare she evantuélly ';acavarnd from her injuries.

James wae already dead when the paramedics arrived.

- dury voir dire.

The scope of jury voir dire is within the sound
. discretion of the trial court and will be given considerable

deference by this court. cunningham v. State, 94 Nev. 128, 575

p.2d 935 (1978), The critical concern of jury voir dire is to
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discover whether a juror "will consider and decide the facts
impartialiy and conscientiously apply the law as charged by the

court." Kdams v. Texas, 448 U.5. 38, 45- {1980).

1. :
conyictian.
In Witherspoon v. Illinois, 391 U.S. 510 (1988}, the
United States Supreme Court hald that the prosecution could
- properly ask a potential Juror whether the Juror would
automatically vote against the death penalty regardless of the
facts of the case. Likewigse, in Morgan v. Illinois, 504 U.S,

719 (1992), the Court held that the defense was antitled to ask

a potantial juror whether the jurd:'would automatically vote for

death regardless of the facts of the case.

At trial, the district court denied Witter's request
to ask potential jurors the fallowing: 9"If there was evidence
that Defendant had a prior feleny conviction invelving the use
or threat of wviolence, would you still consider all three
sentencing alternatives in your deliberationg?"  The district
court found that the quastion viclated EJDCR 7.70.' Witter
._contenda that the questicn merely attempts to death gualify the
jury through the use of a Maorgan type question, and if the
guestion violates EJDCR 7.70, then EJDCR 7.70 violates due
process concerns.

Incorporated within Wwitter's question is the statutory

aggravator listed in NR3 200.023(2) (prior felony conviction

'EIDCR 7.70 states, 1n:pertinént part:

The follewing areas of inquiry are not
properly within the scope of veoir dire
examination by counsel:

{h) <QCuestions touching on anticipated
instructions on the law.

{c} CQuestions touching on the verdict
a Juror would return when based upon
hypothetical facts.
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involving the use or threat of violence}. If Witter were
allowed to ask such a questiﬁn, he would be able to read how a
potential juror would vota_during-the penalty phase of the
trial. This goes wall beyond determining whether a pptential
duror would be able to apply the law to the facts.otfthe case.
We do not read either the Morgan or the Withersponn decisions to
allow for one side to gain such an unfair advantage. Moreover;
the record shows that other guestions asked during voir dire
properly death qualified the jury. Since the questian touches
on an anticipated instruction of law during the penalty phase,
and inguires into the verdict a fjuror would return based on
hypothetical facts, we conclude that the district court properly
found that the guestions violated EJOCR 7.70, Wa also conclude
that the restrictions. of EJDCR 7.70 are consistent with the
holdings in Morgan and Witherspoon and that the rule does not
offend due Pprocess concernd. For these reasons, we conclude
that the district court did not abuse its discretion when it
_ precluded Witter's counsel from asking his proposead quastion of

| prospectiva jurors.

2. Hewspaper article.

‘on one of the days during jury volr dire, a Las Vegas
newspaper published a letter to the editor authored by Deputy
Attorrey Ganeral Victor H. Schulze, II. The article stated,
~ among other things, that criminals should take responsibility
for their crimes. ~The article did not mention, nor dia it
allude tc, Witter's case. The district court refused to allow

witter to question the jury about the article. Witter now

arques that the district court abused ilts discretion. We

disagree.
Wwe have recegnized that, in an affort to protect the
dafendant's right to a falr trial, procedural gafeguards should

be employed by the trial judge to insure that potentially
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prejudicial news accounts of the proceedings do not prejudice

tha defendant. Crowe v. State, 84 Nev. 358, 441 P.2d 90 (1968).

- The trial judge has large discretion in ruling on the issue of

possible prejudice resulting from news articles COncerning a.
detfendant on trial and each case must turn on jts special |
facts.” Id. at 363, 441 P.2d at 93 (citation omitted).
While we recognize that the trial court failed to

- utilize any procedural protections to insure that.tha Jury uas_'
not tainted by Schulze's article, we also recognize that the
article did not specifically refer to Wittet's case. We believe
that the district court would have run a greater risk of
contamination if it were to have allowed Witter's counsel to
| duestion the jurors about the article. Under the circumstances,
wa conclude that Witter was not prejudiced by the district

court's refusal to allow his counsel to question the jury about

Schulza's article.

- Exclugion of witnesces,

At the beginning of trial, Witter made a motion tao
exclude all witnessges pursuant to NRS 50.155(1),2 the witness
exclusion rule, including those who woild be testifying at a
penalty hearing. 7The district court invoked the rule as to the
. guilt phase of the trial, but refused to invoke it with regard
to the penalty phase. Witter now argues that the district.court
abused its discretion. We disagree.

NR3 47.020 states that the rules of avidence under NRS
Title 4 are to govern the proceedings of the courts of the State
of Nevada, but are not to apply to sentencing proceedings.

Witter argues that NRS 47.020 should be disreqarded in capital

’NRS 50.155(1) states that "[e]xcept as otherwlse provided
in subsections 2 and 3, at the reguest of a party the judge
shall order witnesses excludeéd so they cannot hear the testimony
of other witnesses, and he may make the order of his own

mofion."™




. cases because of the severity of the punishment. See Griffin v.
| T1iinois, 151 U.S. 12 (1956} (those charged with capital offenses
are to be granted special considerations}. We conclude that
this argument is without merit. Had the 1egislature intended to
exempt death cases from the exclusion of NRS 47.020, we belieﬁe
it would hrave expressly provided for such an exemption.
Moreovar, we conclude that the district court properly found
that the witness exclusion rule did not reed to be invckad
against penalty phase witnesses in this case. *“The purpose of
sequestration of witnesses is to pravent particular witnesses
. from shaping their testimony, and to detect falseshood by
exposing inconsistencies." Givens v. State, 99 Nev. 50, 55, 657
- P.2d 97, 100 (1983)(citations omitted), auerruled on ather
grounds, Talancon v. State, 102 Nev. 294, 721 P.2d 764 [1986).
' Kathryn Cox was the only witnéss to testify at both the guilt
phase and the penalty phase, and her pressnce at both
proceedings is speﬁifically-providad for in HRS 50.155(2) (d}.
For these reasons, we cohnclude that the district court did not
- err when it refused to invoke the witness exclusion rule égainst

panalty-phase witnesses.

.Juzx_ina:xnctinns.

With regard to his first-degree murder conviction,

Witter argues that the instructions given to the jury failed to
distinguish adequately the elements of mallce and premeditation,
and that the district court erred when it refused his proposed

jury instruction which attempted to define deliberation.?

Jury Instruction No. 7 stated:

Express malice is that deliberate
intention unlawfully to take away the life
of a fellow creature, which is manifested by
externa) <circumstances capable of proof.

Malice way be implied when no
considerable provocation appears, or uhen

all the circumstances of the killing show an
{continued. .




We have previously held that the premeditation

ipstruction challengéd here pravides the jurﬁ with an accurate

definition of premeditation and deliberation. See Powell v.
. State, 108 Nev. 700, 708, 838 p.2d 921, 926 (19%2), wvacated on
athar grounds, 511 U.S. 79 {1994). Wa conclude that this
court’'s reasoninq in Pawell remains sound. Furthermore, in Guy
v. State, 108 Nev. 770, B39 P.2d& 578 {(193%2), cert, denied, 507
. U.S. 1009 (1993}, this court held that the very same malice jury
instruction accurately informed the jury of-ﬁhe distinct;an
. between express malice and implied malice. See NRS 200.020. We
conclude that the jury instructions actually subnmitted to the
jury were proper, aﬁd that the district court did not err when

' jt refused Witter's instruction defining deliberatiomn.

_ _ _ ‘

Part IITI, section B of SCR 250 states, in relevant

After close of the evidence, the court
shall confer with the prosecuting attorney
and defense counsel. The conferance shall -
he reported.

3(...continuted)
abandoned and malignant heart.

Jury Instruction Wo. 9 stated:

Premeditation is a ~ design, a
determination to kill, distinctly formed in
the mind at any moment before or at tha time
of the killing. :

prameditation need not ba for a day, an
hour or even a nminute. It may be as
instantaneous as succegsive thoughts of the
mind. For the killing has been preceded by
and has been the result of premeditation, no
matter how rapidly the premeditation is
followed by the act .constituting the
killing, it 1is willful, deliberate and
premeditated murder.

witter's proposed instruction stated: "Daliberate means
formed or arrived at or determined upon as a result of careful
thought and weighing of consjiderations for and against the
proposed cause of action.®




& ®»

The following matters shall be
concluded during the confarence after close
of the evidence: :

1. Proposed written instructions shall

be presented to the court for rulings. The

dafendant nead not be present when the

inatructions are settled. :
2. The court shall make a £inal ruling

on any issue properly raised as to which a

tentative ruling or no ruling was nade

during presentdtion of the evidence.

Toward tha end of both the guilt and penalty phases of
the trial, counsel for both the prosecution and defense met with
the district court judge in chambers to discuss Jjury
instructions. After each mesting, when the proceedings ware
back on the racord, thé court asked Witter's counsel if he had .
any objections. Witter's counsel objected to the procedura used
by the court, arguing that under SCR 250 tha entire discussion
should have been on the record. The court found the procedure
" to be proper. Witter now argues that he was deprived of a fair
trial.

Wa conclude that the proceduras followed by the
district court were sufticient to guarantee that any legitinate
objectionhs Witter may have had about the jury instructions were
considered by the district court and were preserved in the
record. Accordingly, we conclude that the procedures used by

the district court satisfy the provisions of SCR 250.

al .
Motion for continuance.

on June 28, 1995, the jury returned a verdict of

guilty on all counts, and the district court scheduled the
ﬁenalty heafinq_to begin on July 10, 1995, with discovery to
gecur on July 6, 1995. In the course of the penalty hearing,
the State introduced evidence of Witter's gang affiliation, and
evidence fh#t a shank {knife)} was found in his jail call while
he was awaiting trial. At the peénalty hearing; Witter made a
motion for continuance, arguing that he planned to have an
expert testify about gang violence and that he needed more time

9
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to secure such an expert. The district coﬁrt concluded that
Witter had adequate time to prepare for the penalty hearing and,
accordingly, denied Witter's motion. Witter now argues that the
district courﬁ abuged its discretion for the following reasons:
1) a shank was found in Witter’s jail cell on August 5, 1994,
yet tha State did not inform him of its intention to use the
evidence at the penalty hearing until July S5, 1995; 2} he anly
had four days from the date of discovery until the date of the
penalty hearing in which to secure expert testimony regarding
gang violence; and 3) the district court unfairly denied his
. motion to continue the penalty phase because he was unable to
sacure expert witness testimony during the guilt phase.

The granting of a motion to continue is within the
sound discration of the trial court. Doleman v. State, 107 Nev.
409, 812 P.2d 1287 (.9%1). In Rogers v. State, 101 Névb-457,
- 708 P.2d 664 [1985), cert. dented, 476 U.S. 1130 {1986), we held
that one week's notice of the prosecution's intent to presént
 avidence of prior convictions invelving violence was sufficient.
In that casa, we concluded that the deferidant was not prejudiced
because he had actual knowledge of the aggravating circumatance
and had sufficlent time to prepare a challenge. See alan

Browning v. State, 1G4 Nev. 6%, 757 P.2d4 351 {1988) {six~day

notice of the State's intent to use an agyravating circumsthnca

faund to be sufficient).
In the present case, on June 20, 1995, almost a full
year before the penalty hearing, the State notified Witter's
.counsel that it was investigating an alleged discipline problem
{poseession of a shank) invelving Witter. 1In addition, Witter's
body displays a number of tatoos that ars consistent with those
worn by members of street gangs in San Joée, California,
witter's hometown. Frowm these facts, we conclude that Witter's
counsel had, or should have had, actual notice of Witter's
possession of a shank while_incarcerated,.and his involvement
with street gangs. We also conclude that even if Witter were

10




able to seéure expert testimony regarding gang violence in
prisons, such testimony would have done little to mitigate his
involvement. We tharefore concluda that Witter was not
prejudiced by the district court's decision to allow only four
days betwesn discovery and the penalty hearing. Aécordingly, we
conclude that the district court did not abuse its discretion

when it refused to grant Witter's motion for continuance.

panalty phase evidence.

Witter argues that the district court erred in
admitting evidence of his possession of a shank, since his
possession was an unadjudicated offense and he was not allowed
repregentatioen at the disciplinary hearing which hé contends was

a violatiop of the sixth -Amendment to the United States

Constitution.

Under NRS 175.552,' the trial court is given broad

discretion on quéstidns-concarning_tha admissibllity of evidence
. at a pemalty hearing. Guy, 108 Nev. 770, 839 P.2d 578. In
Rebins v. State, 106 Rev. 611, 798 P.2d 558 (1990), cert.
dsnied, 499 U.S. 970 (1931}, this court held that evidence of
uncharged crimes is admissible at a penalty héaring once any
aggravating clircumstance has beaﬁ proveﬁ beyond 4 reasonable
doubt. |

In this case, the State proved beyond a reasonable
doubt that Witter had 2 praviaus feleny conviction involving

violance to tha person of another, that witter murdered-dames in

iyng 175.552(3}) states, in part:

3. In the [penalty] hearing, avidence
may be presented concernlng aggravating and
mitigating circumstances raelative to the
offense, defendant or victim and on any
other matter which the court deems relavant
to sentence; whoether or not the evidence is
ordinarily admissible. . . - Ho evidence
which was secured in viglation of the
constitution of the United states ot the
constitution of the State of Nevada may be
introduced. . . .

11
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the commission of or an attempt to commit a burglary, and that
" Witter murdered James while engaged in the commissjon of or
attempt to commit a fewxual assault. We therefore conclude that
the district court properly admitted evidence of his posseaéion
of a shank while he was incarceratad.

Furthermore, we concluda that Witter did not have a
5ixth Amendment right to counsel at his disciplinary hearing.
While a prisconer. may have a Sixth Amendment right to cdunsél-at
a disciplinary hearing when the charge involves conduct that is
. punishable under state law, see Wolff{ v. McDonnell, 418 U.S5. 519
(1974); Gagnon v. Scarpelli, 411 U.S. 778 (1973), Witter's
possession of the shank is not a punishabla offense under the

lawa of Wewvada.

Witter also contends that the district court erred in

admitting evidenca showing that he is a member of a street gang.

According to Witter, the evidence lackad any probative value and
was offered only to inflame tha passiona of the jury.

NRS 48.035{1) =statas that "{allthough ralevant,
- evidence is not admissible if its probative value is
substantially outweighed by the danger of unfair prajudicg, or
canfuaion of the issues or of misleading the jury."® Hhiie this -
court has cautioned that the introduction of gang ﬁembershlp
during a penalty hearing may be unfairly‘prejudicial, ses Young
v. State, 103 Hev. 233, 737 P.2d4 512 {19287); Lay v. State, 110
Nev. 1189, 888 P.2d 448 (1994); =ee also Pawson v. Delaware, 503
U.8., 159 (1992), this court has held that "[fjrom Dawsaon, we
| derive the following rule: Evidence of a constitutionally
protected activity is admissible only i1if it is wused for
something more than general-cﬁaracter evidence.” Flanagan v.
State, 109 Mev. 50, 53, 846 P.2d 1053, 1056 (1993). 1In Dawson,
the United States Supreme Court reasoned that "[a] defendant's
membership in an organization that endérses the kiiling of any

identifiable group, for example, might be relevant to a jury's




jngquiry into whether the defendant will be dangerous in the
future." 503 U.5. at 166.

ti this case, the State prasgnted teatimony from the
arresting officers indicating that Witter told thewm that ha
could heighten his reputation 1f ha were te kill police
ofticers, and from a second officer who gtated that from the
clothing Witter was wearing and fronm the tatoos On his arm, he
pelieved that Witter wWes a nepper of a viclent ¢slifornia gang
xnown as the vNortanog.” We conciude that this evidence tends
to show that Witter pesed a threat of future violence to the
community. Moreover. we conclude that the probative vaiue of
the avidence was not substantially outweighed by the danger of

unfair prejudice, or confusion of the issues or of misleading

the jury. Accordingly, we cencludae that the district court

proparly admitted evidence of Witter's affiliation with a street

gang.

Mation for mistrial.

At the penalty hearing, Kathryn Cox road a preparad
statement to the jury in which she demanded that the jury show
no mercy te the defendant, and in which she informed the jury
that ashe intended to do everything in her power to gee that
witter received no percy. Witter made a motion for mistrial,
arquing that Kathryn's statements went heyond the scope of what
is acceptabla as a victim-impact statement since the statements
undyly inflamed the passions of the jury and that they amounted
to a plea for the return of a death penalty sentenca. The
digtrict court denied Witter's motion, Wither now argues that
he was deprived of a €air trial and that the district court
abuzed its discretion when it denied his motion for mistrial.

In Payne ¥. Tennessee, sny U.5. 804, 827 {1991}, the
Supreme Court overruled prior precedent and held that if a State
chooses to permit the admiusion of viectim impact evidence and
prosecuterial argupent on that subject, the Efighth Amendment
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érects no per sa bar. In Hemick v. State, 108 Nev. 127, 825

- P.2d 600 (19%2), we applauded the decision reached in Payne and

concluded that the decision comports with tha principles of the

‘i Nevada Constitution. NRS 175.552(3) states, in part, that "[i]n

the [penalty] hearihg, evidence may be preéanted‘ concerning
aggravating and mitiqatiﬁg circunstances relative to tha
: offense, defendant or victim and on any other matter which the
court deems relevant to sentence, whether or not the évidence is’
.: ordinarily admissible." However, while a victim may addrass the
impact that the crime has had on the victim and the victim's
family, a victim can only express an opinion regarding the
defendant's sentence in non capital éases._ Randell v. State,'
' 109 Nev. 5, 846 P.2d 278 (1953),

We coanclude that in asking the jury to "show no
- mercy," Kathryn was not expressing her opinion as tﬁ' whﬁt
sentence Witter should raceive. Rather, we believe that Kathryn
was only asking that the jury return the most severe vardict
that it deemed appropriats under the facts and circumstances of
this case. Kathryn's statements alsc emphaaize the davastating
affect this crime has had on her and her family's life. 3Such
sentiments are admissible victim-impact statements  NRS
175.5%2(3). We therefors conclude that Witter was not deprived
of a fair trial and that the district court properly denied

Witter's motion for nistrial.

: " ) ‘ ‘
Witter contends that NRS 200.030{4)> shifts the burden
aof proof to the defendant to prove that mitigating circumstances

_ocutweigh aggravating circumstances. Witter cites GEiffin v.

Illineis, 351 U.S. 12 (1956), and argues that the district court

SNRS 200,030(4) states, in part, that ™[a] person convicted
of murder of the first degree is guilty of a category A felony
and shall be punished: (a) By death, only if one or more
aggravating circuhstances ' are found and any w®mitigating
circumstance or circumstancés which are found do not outweigh
the aggravating circumstance or circumstances.™

14




should have allowed nim to arque last during closing arguments.
We disaqree. . ’

First, we read Nné 200.030(4) as stating that the
death penalty is an available punishmenﬁ only if the state can
prove béyond a reasonable doubt 2t least nné aggravating
circunstance exists, and that the aggravating circumstance or

circumetances outweigh the mitigating evidence offered by the

defendant. The statute does not ghift the burden of preof to

tha defendant. Second, unless the case is submitted to the jury
by one or both gides without argument; NRS 27%.141° mandates that
the district attorney, or other counsel for the state, open and
conclude arqument. Under NRS 175.141, the district courﬁ does
. not have the authority to graht Witter's request. Moreover,
such a concession would unfairly disadvantaéé-the prosacution.
Accordingly, we conclude that the district court did not err

' when it denied Witter's request to argue last during the penalty

phase-

E:naa:ntﬂ:iﬁl.miacnnﬂu:s.

The trial court has a duty to ensure that an accused
receives a fair trial, and to this end the court must exercise -
its discretionary power to control obvious prosecutorial
misconduct sua sponte. Collier v. Staté, 101 Waev. 473, 705 P.2d
1126 (1985), gart. denied, 486 U.S. 1036 (1988). In reviewing
a prosacutor’s comments, the relevant inquiry is whether the
comments were so unfair that thgy deprived the defandant of due

process. Darden v. Wainwright, 477 U.S. 168 {1386) . However,

NRS 175.141 states, in pertinent part:

The jury having been impaneled and sworn,
the trial shall procesd in the following
order:

5, When the evidence is concluded,
unless the case is submitted to the jury on
either side, or on both cides, without
argument, the district attorney, or other
counsel for the state, must opan and pust
conclude thé argument.
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copments that are harmless beyond a reasonahle doubt deo not

warrant reversal. Witherow v. State, 104 Nev, 72i, 765 P.2d

1153 (1988).

1. Community stangdards.
puring the penalty phase closing -argument, the

prosecutor-cammantad:

When we talk about the deéath penalty,
there are two schools of thought as to why
socliety might have it. one echool of
thought is that of deterrearice. Detarrance
is achieved through severity of punishment.
It 4is important for the image of the
crininal justice system to have the death
penalty. It is important to send a measaga

* to paople in the community and to would[=~)be
murderers that thera ara lines that you do
not cross in Nevada; that there is sobe
conduct that simply will not be tolerated
and will be met with a very, very severe
panalty. ' .

The other school of thought is one of
punishment. Tt i3 an expression of
society's sense of moral outrage. Soclety
has & right to feel that outrage when
confrented with these crimes and to respond
to it. It flows from the concept that
congequences f£ollow acticons; that there are
penalties for crimes; that puniahment should
fit the crime; the worse the act, the worse '
the penalty. :

The prosecutoer also commented that anything less than the death
penalty would be disrespectful to the dead and irresponsible to
the living. Witter argues that thess statements amount to an
impefniésibie comment on community standards. We disagree.

In £ollier, we held that & proéécutor‘s statement that
it the jury was not angfy with the defendant than "wé ara not a
motal community,® improperly inflamed the jury and amounted to
prosecutorial misconduct. 101 Nev. at 479, 705 P.2d at 1129.
Nevertheless, the prosecutor may dgo beyond the avidenéa" to
digcuss general theories of penology such as the nerits of
punishment, deterrence &ﬁd the death penalty. Id. at 478, 7085
p.2d at 1129. '

We cpnclﬁde that the comments cited above were aﬁ

attempt to educate the jury about’ some of the theories
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supporting our criminal justice system, and why the death

penalty is an available option. since these are proper areas

for prosecutorial- comment, we concludeé that the prosecutor did

not engage in misconduct.

2. buty to sacisty at largs.
During the penalty phase closing argument, the
. prosecutor commented:

What message does this punishment send

today? Will we tell would{-]be murders,

will wa tell this community, that you can

kill a man, thrust a knife into his skull 16

times, ona time through his skuil, 16 times

into his body, that you can parpetrate

unspeakable, despicabla deeds upon his wife

in her own car &and that you, the husband,

can drive upon that crime scene and witnesa

your wife bleeding to death, struggling for

your life, what message does it zend to say

the man that perpetrates those crimes can

live his 1life in prison, can write his

family, see his family, speak to his family?

Witrer argues that these statements. amount to an improper plea
to a duty to society at large. See Haberstroh v. State, 105
Nev. 738, 782 P.2d ‘1343 {1989) (prosscutor committed misconduct
by referring to the jury as "tha congcience of the community*);
collier, 101 MHev. 473, 765 P.2d 1126; Flanagan v. State, 104
Nev. 105, 754 P.id 836 (1988), xana:gd.snz.n:ha:,grnnnds.&uh
nom., - Flanagan v. Nevada, 503 U.5. %31 (19931 {prosecuter's
. remark, "[1]f we don't punish, then society is going to laugh at
us" found to be improper). We disagrea.

Wa concluda that thgse statements properly focus on
what would be an appropriate punishment under the facts and
circumstances af this case, as well as what would be necessary |
to detaer others from committing such a brutal act. Thése are
. entirely proper areas for commant. hccordingly, wa conclude
that these statements did not constitute an improper plea to a

duty ta scciety at large:




1. Beference to matters ogutside the reacprd.

The following exchange tdok place during the
prosecution's closing argument during the penalty phase:

MR. OWENS: And it's very subtle, and

you may not have noticed it, but in any

penalty hearing what the defense and every

witness that the defense calls wants you to

do is forget about --

MR. KOHN: 1 object, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Ovarruled. _
MR. OWENS: What the defense has done

in this case, ladies and gentlemen, is to

try to make you forget about Kathryn Cox and

James Cox. Tha whole case gets turned

upside down and they twist things around

until they can portray the vic -= ~the

defendant, William Witter, as if he is the

victim,

Witter argues that in stating "in any penalty hearing what the
defense and every witness that the dafense calls wants you {the
jury] to do is to forget about [the victims]," the prosecution
improperly referred to matters outside the record on appeal.
Sea State v. Kassablian, 69 MNev. 148, 243 P.3d 264 (1952).
Witter also argques that these statements improperly disparage a
legitimate défense tactic. Sge Williams v, State, 103 Hev. 108,
734 P.2d 700 (1987); Pickworth v, State, 95 Nev. 547, 598 P.2d4
626 {1979).

Wa conclude that both of Witter'as arguments lack
merit. After the objection, the prosecutor modified his
statement to conform t¢ the facts of this case. As such, the
statement did not refer to mattera outside of the record.
Moreover, the statement did not disparage a legitimate defense
tactic. Rather, the statement merely attempted to keep the

lury's focus on the actual wvictims of Witter's crime. We

therefore conclude that the prosecutoer's statements were proper.

4. Comments about pnssgibie fnture crimps,

The prosecuter made the following comments during the

penalty phase closing argument:
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Don't let him go back where he can
murder again, and perhaps this time a
correctieons officer, because that is axactly
what he bas threatened to do. He told the
police officers that "{t]ake these handcuffs
off of me s0 I can kill a poiice officer.
That's all T need to do to raise my
reputation higher."

Don't give him the chance. Don't let
it happen becauss 1% wouldn'‘t ba fair; it
vouldn®t be justice.

But we are going to place Willian
Witter -~ at least if we do what the defense
wants you fo do, we are going to place hinm
in prison, where he can heighten Hhis
veputation and perpetrate unspeakable crices
on perhaps unsuspecting guards.

And  certainly guards are trained
individuals; they ara trained to protact
themselves, but they don't have eyes in the
tack of their heads, and they don't know
when a William Witter will wrap a shank that
he made in a towel and beconma angry and
tnrust that into the life of a correctiocns
officer and bring abcut another tragedy.

History repesats itself.,

What unsugpecting prisonsr  might
William Witter*a life cross and what might
happen to that priscner? Oh, certainly,
that's just e prisoner and he's a wrongdoer
and mavbe he gets what he deserves.

Interestingly enocugh, the defensa
¢idn't ask their witness perhaps the most
ispoertant question for you peoplea:

Doctor, let's talk about the future
dangerousness of this man. Can anybody in
your professian pradict future
dangerousness?

50 I took the dector through-a history
of violence and asked: Does history repeat
itsalf? Are the acts of the defendant
indicators of his future dangerousness?

Because you peopie need to Xnow what
kind of danger rests in the future of lives
of other individuala that ccme in contact
with Dr. Etcoff.

How that’s a gquestion that they didn't
ask. It’s a guestion I wanted you to know;
and the answer was clear: History repeats
itself,

Knowing the futurs dangerousness, it
would be disrespectful to the dead and
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irresponsible to tha living to lat this man
nave his iife of prison, to let him create
another personal jungle for himself like the

jungle that he croated in the parking lot on
Hovember 14, 1991

in Callisr, we held that a prosecutor's remarks which
sought to promote a conclusion that a defendant's rehabilitation
was improbable, that ha might well ki1l again while in prison,
apd that ho snhould therefora bha put to death were highliy
inappropriate. 101 Mev. at 478, 705 P.24 at 1329, In Riley v.

state, 107 Nev. 205, 213, 608 P.2d %51, 560 (3991), Gert.

denied, .5, 11% 8. Ct. 143l {199%5), we modified our

nolding in Collier £ allow a prosecutor to ask a tury to draw
an inference of future dangerousness when there is evidence of
a defandant's past conduct that wouwld aupport a reasonabla
infarence that aven incarceration would not detar the deferndant
from endangering others' lives. Flpaliy. in Redmen v. Stats,
168 Mev. 227, 828 P.2d 3195 {199%2), cart, denled, 506 U.S. 880
(1992), nxe:xnled_nnmnxnazﬂgznunﬁa, Alford v. Statas, 111 Nev.
140%, 906 P.2d Tid {1995}, we expanded Our helding in Riley teo
allow prosecutors to argua the future dangercusness of a
Jdefendant even when there ig ne evidence of violence independant
af the purder in quastion.

Witter contends that the prﬂaecutor‘s statementa ware
ipproper under cpllisr. We disagree. in aceordance with our
nolding in BRodmen, the prosecutor was aliowed to argue that
Witter posed a threat of future dangerousness hased solely on
nis murder of James. Morecver, in Haparstroh, 105 Hev. 738, 782
p.2d 1343, we held that a defendant's past conduct in jail
justifies a progecutor's commpent that defendant could pose 2
contipuing threat to athers. In this case, the record clearly
shows that a shank wad found in Witter's cell while he was
awaiting trial. We therafora conclud: that the prosecutor‘s
statements emphasized the potential future chreat Witter posed

to gociety. As such, we conclude that those statements were

proper.
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5. M " .

During the penalty phase closing argument,

prosecutor cominented:
Do I maks these statements to excite

you or to remind you of the violence that

enconpasses the defendant? For a moment, wa

recreate that crimeé because this punishmant

has to fit that crime.

But how aggravating is it to sit there

and this man get in your car, the vehicle

that you own, and begin to perpetrate these

crimes on you?

It is improper for a prosecutor to make a plea to
return a death penalty verdict on behalf of victims. Howard v.
" State, 106 Nev. 713, 800 P.24 175 (1990). It is equally
unaccaptable for a prosecutor to ask the jury'to stand in the
shoes of the victim (the Golden Rule arqument). Id.; McGuire v.
State, 100 Nev. 153, 677 P.2d 1060 {1984). Witter argues that
the language cited ahove, along with tha prosecutor's comment
that anything less than the death penalty would be disrespectful
to the dead and irresponsible to the living, amounts to an
improper *"Golden Rule" plea as well as a plea to the jury to
return a death penalty verdict on behalf of the victim in this
case. We dipagrea,

In commenting that anything less than the death
gentencea would be disrespectful to the dead, we conclude that

the prosecutor was merely pointing out to the jury thﬁt our
society values human life, and in order to reapect the value of
human life, one who takes a human 1ife in the manner that Witter
| did should have to pay for his ecrime with his own life.
Furthermore, the prosecutor's statements painted a vivid plcture
for the jury, and any reference to "you" appears to be merely
rhetorical. For these reasons, wa conclude that the

prosecutor's statements were proper.




The State included the preventicn of lawful arrest

statutory aggravater listed in an_zoo.oszxsy’ as one of the

aggravating circumstances in its notice of intent to seek the
death penalty. Witter made a motion to strike that aggravator,
arquing that the evidence adduced at trial shows that he xiilad
James in an attempt to continue his sexual assault on Kathryn,
. not to avoid arrest. The district court deniad Witter's motion.
Witter now contends that the district court abused its
discretion.

In Cavanaugh v, State, 102 Nav. 478, 729 P.2d 481
{1986), this court held that for purposes of NRS £00.031(5), the
arrest does not need to be imminént, and the victim does not
. have to be involved in some way with effactuating the arrest.
More Tecently, in Canape v. State, 109 Nev. 864, 859 P.éd 1023
(1993}, cert..denied, ___ U.S. ___, 115 S. Ct. 176 {1994}, the
evidence adduced at trial showed that Canape robbed his vietin
then walked him away from the freeway before shooting him in the
back. We held that based on the evidence of the case, a jury
could reascnably infer that the mirder was committed to aveld
lawful arrest. Id. at 874-735, 359 P.2d at 1i010.

In this case, Witter atﬁacked James only after James
told Witter that Kathryn was his wifa and ordered Witter to exit
| the vehicle. Once Witter killed James, Witter grabbed Kathryn
and forced her back into the vehicle. Rather than fleeing, or
kiliing Kathryn to make sura no one could identify him, Witter

hid James' body under his cab and resumed his sexual assault on

. Kathryn. The natural inference drawn from these facts is that

. witter killed James so that he could continue his assault on
Kathryn, not to avoid arrest. Clearly, the proseéution has not

 met ite burden of proving this aggravator beyond a reasonable

TNRS 200.033(5) states that "[t)}he murder was committed to
avoid or prevent a lawful arrest or to aeffect an escape from

custody." :
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.doubt. We therefore coénclude that the jury could not have
reasonably found that the murder was committed to avoid lawful
arrest and that the district court erred when it denied Witter's
motion to strike the aggravator. _ _

fn McKehna v. McDaniel, 65 F.3d 1483 (9th Cir. 1995),
the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals was faced wiih a situation
similar to the case at bar in uﬁich one of the aqgi:avating .
circumstances used to sentence McKenna to death was fouhd-

invalid. In commenting on Nevada's death penalty statute, the

. .'court stated:

Even in a weighing state, however,
invalidation of one of several aggravating
factors may make no difference if there ware
no mitigating circumstances against which
the state court could balance the remaining
aggravating factors. Sea Neuschafer .

4 , 816 F.z2d 1390, 1393 (3th Cir.
1987). But where some mitigating factors .
exist, thera nust either be a new santancing
nearing befare a jury or the statae appellate
court must rewaigh or conduct harmless error
review in order to give the defendant the
individualized considerations required by
the Constitution. flamana [v. Mississippll,
494 U.S. [738] at 746, 752, 110 S.Ct. [1441]
at 1447, 1450. ) .

: Id. at 1489-90._'EVen though wa-cohclude that the prevention of
: lawful arrest aggravator should have been 'sl:ricken, theré remain
four aggravators that the State has proven bayond a reés:ma_b’le
- doubt. In mitigation, Witter offered the teatim&nj .of sevaral
msﬁbe:'s of his family and the testimony of a elinical
: psychologist, all of whom testifled that Witter grew up in a__'
very abusive and dysfunc_tional tamily. We conclude that the
- remaining four aggravators clearl} qu‘tweiqh. "the mitigating
evidence presented bf Witter. H__oreover-, for the same reason, we
- conclude that the ~district’ court's failure to strike the
.- preventiof of lawful arrest aggravator ambunté to harmless
arror. Sea cﬁ_apman'- v. Calitbrnia', 3186 U.5. 18 {1966). We

therefore conclude that even though the district court erred in

al_l.ow.i_nq_ the .preventian'of lawful arrest aggravator te be

considered by the jury, Witter's sentence of death is still proper.
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Finally, we conclude, pursuant to NRS 177.055, that

(1) the evidence fully supports the finding of thres valid

aggravating circumstances, {2) the sentence d: death was not
imposed under the influence of passion, prejudice or any
arbitrary tactor, and (1) the sentenca is not excessive,

considering both the crime and the defandant.

COoNCILUSTON

For the reasons stated above, we concluda that except
for Witter's -challenge to the prevention of lawful arrest
. statutory aggravatoer, all of Witter's argumentg are without
merit. nccordingly, we affirm Wwitter's judgment of conviction.
wiﬁh- regard to the prevention of lawful arrest statutory N
aggravator, we conclude that the state has falled to prove the
aggravator beyond a reasonable doubt, Havarfhﬁlass, becausa we
concluda that the resaining four aggravators clearly outweigh

the mitigating evidence prasented by Witter, we affirm witter's

sentence of daath.
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WILLIAM LESTER WITTER,

vs.

othEyffﬁf,petitiﬁna?*QJHT“'

" 'DISTRICT ‘COURT
~ CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Petitioner,

CASE NO. € 117513
_ _ DEPT. NO. VI
E.K. McDANIEL, WARDEN OF ELY DOCKET NO. 8

STATE PRISON,

Respondent.

Bt T St St S Nt Nt St Nt N St

SUPPLEMENTAL POINTS AND AUTHORITIES IN
SUPPORT OF PETITIOR FOR

HRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS (POST CONVICTION)

DATE: N/A
TIME: N/A

COMES NOW, Petitioner WILLIAM L. WITTER, by and through
his attorney DAVID M. SCHIECK, ESQ., and for his Supplemental
Points and Anthorities in support of Petition for Writ of
Habeas Corpus (Post Conviction) states as follows:

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

WILLIAM LESTER WITTER (hereinafter referred to as WITTER)
was charged in an Information filed on January 21, 1954 with
Murder with use of a Deadly Weapon; Attempt Murder with use of
a Deadly Weapon; Attempt Sexual Assault with use of a Deadly
Weapon; and Burglary alleging that on or about the 14th day of

November, 1923 WITTER willfully and with malice aforethought

killed_James'qu’dhring_theqﬁommission of'burgla;y:anﬂﬁqttempt;




'he Preli_inary Hearing was held on- January 7' 1994'and
i'-ilIIT'l‘ER.&qreus bound.over on the charges of Hurder Wlth Use of a

fnéadly Weapon,'Attempt-MUrder with Use of a_Deadly-Weapon, -

&

6

X 'Aftempﬁ”Sexual Assault and Burglary.

8 WITTER was initially arraigned in the Eighth Judicial
9

District Court, Department IX on January 25, 1994, The

arraignment was before the Hcnorable Stephen Huffaker. At the
arraignment, WITTER entered pleas of not guilty to all the
counts of the Information. WITTER waived his right to a trial
within sixty days and a trial date was set. Also on January

25, 1924 the State filed its Notice of Intent to Seek the Death

Attorney At Law
302 E. Carson Ave., Ste, 600
{702) 382-15844

Penalty.

Las Vegas, NV 89101

David M. SChiECk. |

The trial lasted 8 days and the jury returned a verdict of
Guilty on all counts. The penalty hearing lasted 4 days and
the jury returned a verdict of death by lethal injection. The
Judgment. of Conviction was entered on August 4, 1995. In
addition the Court imposed a twenty-year sentence for attempted
murder (plus a twenty-year sentence enhancement for use of a
deadly weapon), a twenty-year sentence for attempted sexual
assault (plus a twenty-year sentence enhancement for use of a
deadly weapon), and a ten-year sentence for burglary. All
sentences were ordered to run consecutively. WITTER pursued an

appeal and the Public Defender's Office was appointed. The

Nevada Supreme Court issued its Opinion on July 22, 1896
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¥as counsel for WITTLR on his post conv1ctlon rellef prcceedingsf_
'and the Petition for ert Df Haheas Corpus (Post Conviction)

‘was fllEd Octaober 27, 1997,

ISSUES RAISED ON DIRECT APPEAL

On direct appeal counsel for WITTER raised the following
issues: (the ruling of the Supreme Court with regard to each
issue is listed in parenthesis after each isszue)

1. The trial court committed prejudicial error by not
allowing jury voir dire questioning concerning the potential
impact of prior vieclent felony conviction evidence. ('Since the
question touches on an anticipated instruction of law during
the penalty phase, and inquires into the verdict a juror would
return based on hypothetical facts, we conclude that the
district court properly found that the question violated EJDCR
7.70."

2. The trial court committed prejudicial error by
refusing to question prospective jurors concerning exposure to
a prejudicial newspaper article published during jury
selection. (‘We helieve that the district court would have run
a greater risk of contamination if it were to have allowed
Witter's counsel to question the jurors about the article.

Under the circumstances, we conclude that Witter was not

prejudiced by the district court's refusal to allow his counsel




David M. Schieck

Attorney Al Law

302 E. Carson Ave., Sta. 600

Las Vegas, NV 88101
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felements of malice_arorethoughtu

“PWbaconclude that the Jury instructions actually submltted tO'

and_premeditatlnnfdeliberation_”.

:the jury ware proper, and that the district court did not err

when it refused Witter's instructJOn defining dallberatlon.)

4. Prosecutorial misconduct in the penalty phase closing
arguments deprived defendant of a fair trial:

a. Comments about community standards ("We conclude
that the comments vited above were an attempt to educate
the jury about some of the theories supporting our
criminal justice system, and why the death penalty is an
available option. Since these are proper areas for
prosecutorial comment, we conclude that the prosecutor did
not engage in misconduct.®);

b. Comments professing a duty to society at large
('We conclude that these statements properly focus on what
would be an appropriate punishment under the facts and
circumstances of this case, as well as what would be
necessary to deter others from committing such a brutal
act. These are entirely proper areas for comment.”);

c. Arguing matters outside the record (" ..the

cstatement merely attempted to keep the jury'’s focus on the

actnal victims of Witter's crime. We therefore conclude

that the prosecutor's statements were proper.’);
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WITTER'S possession of a shank while incarcerated, and his

:we'conclude:tha'_t}ese.statementsiwere praper;),_:,;,
e, Plea for death verdict on hehalf of victims and
' ifor the jury to place themselves in v1ct1ms's position
{(“..we conclude that the prosecutor was meraly pointing
out to the jury that our society values a human life, one
who takes a human life in the manner that Witter did
should have to pay for his crime with his own life.
Furthermore, the prosecutor's statements painted a vivid
picture for the jury, and any reference to “you' appears
to be merely rhetorical. For these reascons, we conclude
that the prosecutor’s statements were proper.”}.
5. The trial court committed prejudicial error in denying
Defendant's motion for mistrial based on the victim's penalty
hearing plea to the jury to “show no mercy” to defendant. (We
conclude that in asking the jury to “show no mercy,' EKathryn
was not expressing her opinion as to what sentence Witter
should receive....We therefore conclude that WITTER was not
deprived of a fair trial and that the district court properly
denied Witter’s motion for mistrial.”)
6. The trial court committed prejudicial error in denying
Defendant's motion for continuance to adegquately prepare for
the penalty hearing. ( From these facts, we conclude that

Witter's counsel had, or should have had, actual notice of
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_mitigata hlS 1nvolvement Wn therefore conclude that Witter

was not prejud;ced ﬁ-

?.' The trial court committed prejudicial error bY
refusing to exclude witnesses who would be called at the
penalty phase of the trial. ("Moreover, we conclude the
district court properly found that the witness exclusion rule
did not need to be invoked against penalty hearing witnesses in
this case.”)

8. The trial court committed reversible error when it
denied Defendant's motion to argue last during penalty hearing.
(‘Under NRS 175.141, the district court does not have authority
to grant Witter's request. Moreover, such a concession would
unfairly disadvantage the prosecution. Accordingly, we
conclude that the district court did not err when it denied
Witter's request to argue last during the penalty phase.")

9. The trial court committed prejudicial error by failing
to follow the mandate of Supreme Court Rule 250 governing the
settling of jury instructions. ("We conclude that the
procedures followed by the district court were sufficient to
guarantee that any legitimate objections Witter may have had
about the jury instructions were considered by the district
court and were preserved in the record. Accordingly, we

conclude that the procedures used by the district court satisfy

the provisions of SCR 250.")
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‘met: its burden of proV1ng this aggravator bayond a reasonable

ldoubt We therefore conclude that the Jjury could not’ have'-

reasonably found that the murder was committed to avoid lawful
arrast...”)

11. The trial court committed prejudicial error by
allowing the introduction of penalty phase evidence that
defendant possessed a weapon while in jail. (We therefore
conclude that the district court properly admitted evidence of
his possession of a shank while he was incarcerated.’)

12. The trial court committed prejudicial error by
admitting penalty phase allegations that defendant was
affiliated with a street gang. (We conclude that this
evidence tends to show that Witter posed a threat of future
violence to the communilty. Moreover, we conclude that the
probative value of the evidence was not substantially
outweighed by the danger of unfair prejudice, or confusion of
the issues or of misleading the jury.’)

STIATEMENT OF FACTS
TRIAL PHASE

The Statement of Facts set forth herein is taken from the

Opinion issued by this Court in Witter v, State, 112 NWev.Ad.Op.

119 (1996):

‘On November 14, 1993, Kathryn Cox (Kathryn) was
working as a retail clerk for the Park Avenue gift
Shop located in the Luxor Hotel in Las Vegas, Nevada.
James Cox (James), Kathryn's husband drove a taxicab
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D Y
-,'.returned to her!car, qot ln,
”*began to read a’ bunk.

'1rty minutés." Kathfyn_
1ocked her door, and

khout five to ten minutés ‘later, the passenger
31de door opened, and William Witter got into the
car. Witter demanded that Kathryn drive him out of
the lot. When Kathryn informed him that she could-
not, Witter stabbed her just above her left breast,
Witter pulled Kathryn closer to him and told her that
he was going to kill her. After stabbing Kathryn
several more times, Witter became gquiet, unzipped his
pants and ordsered Kathryn to perform oral sex.
Kathryn attempted to comply with his demands, but
because she had a punctured lung, she kept passing
out. Witter pulled Kathryn into a sitting position
and told her, “You're probably already dead." Kathryn
managed to open her door and attempted to run away,
but was only able to get about ten to fifteen feet
before Witter caught her. Witter forced Kathryn back
into the car and forced her to kiss him. He then
used his knife to cut away Kathryn's pants and kegan
to fondle her vaginal area with his finger.

Kathryn observed her husband's cab pull up next to
the driver's side of her car. Witter, not knowing
that James was Kathryn's hushand, held Kathryn close
and stated, “Don't say anything. I'm going to tell
him that you're having a bad cocaine trip.” James
opened the driver's side door of Kathryn's car and
told Witter to get out. Witter got out of the car,
walked over to James, and stabbed him numerous times.
James fell bkackwards and into Xathryn, who had gotten
out of the car, knocking her to the ground. Kathryn
got up and ran for a bus stop. Once again, Witter
caught Kathryn and carried her back tc her car.

After pulling the rest of Kathryn's clothes off,
Witter attempted to stuff James' body underneath
James' cab. Kathryn then heard hotel security
approaching her vehicle.

A security officer in charge of patrolling the
Excalibur Hotel's employee parking lot approached
Kathryn's car and confronted Witter. After a short
standoff, the security officer's backup arrived, and
Witter was subdued. Paramedics arrived a short time
later, and Kathryn was taken to the hospital where
she eventually recovered from her injuries. James
was already dead when the paramedics arrived.”
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‘date for that evening. Property damage ‘had alsc been done,

‘former girleriend, Gina Martin, and stabbed David Rumsey, her |

‘including tire slashing, breaking flower pote and pulling down

drapes (5 ROA 1630-1633). When WITTER was arrested, he yelled
“Sure, I stabbed him. I should have brought my gun.” (5 ROA
1636) There was also evidence that at the time WITTER
confronted Martin and Rumsey in the residence carport, WITTER
stated, "Come on, you white punk. I'll kill you. What are you
doing with my old lady?" ({5 ROA 1638) David Rumsey described
the incident as follows:
I heard some glass breaking out in the carport,

so0 I went outside to find out what it was; and there

was a guy out there yelling, screaming, breaking

glass out of the car. He was screaming

loudly...Well, he's kind of acting like he wanted ta

fight, and that's when I told him I didn't want to

fight him; told him what my name was and stuck my

hand out to shake his hand, and he struck me in the

gut with a knife." (5 ROA 1645-1646)
Rumsey identified Defendant as the man who had stabbed him (5
ROA 1650 and 1653). The arresting officer noted that at the
time he took Defendant into custody there was some odor aof
alcohel about his perscon, as well as slurred speech and glassy
eyes (5 ROA 1661). Other testimony established that Defendant
had a blecod alcohol level of .21 percent (5 RUOA 16786).

Linda Rose testified that she supervised Defendant on a

California parole for assault with a deadly weapon arising out

of the above-described incident (5 ROA 1663-1666). WITTER
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{1674] An 1nstitut10na1 summary 1ndxcated WITTER hadfh;,'

:sustalned arrests for arson, re31sting arrest fighting, drunk

driving, burglary, vandalism and drugs, as well as arrest at
age fifteen for rape. The summary contained the comment that
Witter is an alcohol abuser. (5 ROA 1679-1680) The parole
officer described an incident where she was alone in her office
with WITTER and had determined that he needed to be taken into
custody. The office pclicy was that officers were never to
arrest anybody alone, but were to always have backup. Ms. Rose
explained the situation tc WITTER, telling him that he had the
option of assisting in his own arrest or walking out the door.
WITTER agreed to the arrest and was cooperative throughout the
handcuffing and search procedure {5 ROA 1682-1683).

officer James Ford of the San Jose Police Department
described a July 20, 1993 incident in which he removed from
WITTER'S possession a dagger having sharpened edges on both
sides of a five to six inch blade (5 ROA 1689-1695). RITTER
was placed under arrest for possession cf an illegal weapcn and
vandalism arising out of throwing rocks through the windows of
an ex-girlfriend's apartment (5 ROA 1696-1638). On this
occasion as well, WITTER had a strong ocdor of alcochel on his
breath and bloodshot watering eyes (5 ROA 1699).

officer Ford told the jury that he was an original member

of the Violent Crime Enforcement Team, a unit organized to
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Calitornia are the Nortanos and Sorens, locatsd in morthern

fﬁnd-SQﬁthéfn*Califdrhia{-réspé¢ti§eiy (5 Rdh 1f01),._Rea'is 

b;imariiY“wqth-bffﬁortenos and blue by Sorenos (5 ROA 1?u4}.
Bééed 6n:photographs of tattoos, Ford concluded that WITTER was
possibly a gang member (5 ROA 1708; 1712). The officer
admitted that the arrest on July 20, 1993 had nothing to do
with gang activity (5 ROA 1713).

Officer Timothy Jackson of the San Jose Police Department
testified that he responded to an October 9, 1993 domestic
violence call. Carmen Kedrick claimed that Defendant had beat
her up, yet Officer Jackson did not notice any visible injury
on her at all. There was property damage to both the residence
and a vehicle (5 ROA 1734-17392). Regarding WITTER'S alleged
comment in the case at bar that “All I need to do now is to
kill an officer and my reputation will be higher.”, the witness
said that such a comment would be indicative of a gang member
(5 ROA 1744). Jackson further testified that WITTER'S tattoos
signified he was a gang member (5 ROA 1746).

Thomas Piptone, a corrections officer at the Clark County
Detention Center testified that on August 4, 1994 he conducted
a search of WITTER'S cell. In a stack of papers, the officer
found a sharpened clip from a clipboard (5 ROA 1751). On
cross—examination, Piptone acknowledged that WITTER denied that

the item was his; and denied any involvement with it (9 ROA

1759) .




fralsed by an alcohollc stepfathere and having drank s;nce aga

jfourteen or fifteen.. The alcohollsm progressed into drug abuse"

'-(e ROA 1895).

WITTER'S sister, Tina Whitesell, described life with their
mother as “awful”. “She didn't care about anybody but herself
and her drugs and alcohol and men...Lots and lots of parties,
lots of people at our house; spoons, cotton, syringes, pills.”
(6 ROA 1909) A= a child, she remembered seeing her mother in
bed with other men. She recalled one of these men hitting
WITTER with a cane (6 ROA 1911-1912). She remembered incidents
of her wother chasing WITTER'S father, Louis Witter, with a

knifae; and of him hitting his wife while she was pregnant. The

{702) 382-1644

Attorney At Law
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sister alsco explained that WITTER'S father wasn't around much

David M. schieck
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because he was in state prison (6 ROA 1510-1911). When WITTER
was nine, he and Tina went to live with their grandmother, who
“spoiled William and pampered him and protected him from
everything that he did that was wrong.” (6 ROA 1913). Both
grandparents drank heavily. She added that as they were
growing up, WITTER got hit a lot (6 ROA 1919). Testimony also
came out that the grandfather used to try to fondle Tina
Whitesell, something she had never talked about before (6 ROA

1938) .

Defendant's father, Louis Witter, told the jury that he
had three felony convictions for robbery, firearms possession

by an ex-felon, and rape. He also acknowledged having problems




H_Idescribed g

WITTER'S mothar as an alcchollc and heroin addict (6 ROA
1945) Regardlng the cuuple's relationship; Mr. Witter |
explalned.

“Well, we would drink to the point of excess,
which was usually most of the time, and she used to
have this habit or bringing up things that I had done
in the past, to the point of I couldn't stand it
anymore and I would start hitting her, kicking
her. ..She was pretty tough. She would try to fight
me back with her fists, but a lot of times, she'd run
10 to the kltchen and grab a butcher knife and try to

attack me.” (6 ROA 1946)

wooe w1 o wﬂfhﬁTom.h:
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The children, including WITTER, witnessed the flghts. The
witness admitted that when WITTER was older, the two of them
wolld shoot up methamphetamine together. (6 ROA 1953)

Another of WITTER'S sisters testified that their
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him by punching him in the face. This sister had also been
sexually abused by the grandfather. 8She also related that she
got quite violent when she drank (6 ROA 1993 and 1994); adding
that WITTER, also got violent when he drank (& ROA 1996).
Pasychologist, Dr, Louls Etcoff testified that he conducted
a three hour interview with WITTER in August of 1924, after
having reviewed arrest reports, discovery, vaoluntary statements

and the preliminary hearing transeript. Subseguently,
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neuropsychological tests, an IQ test and two objective
personality tests were administered to WITTER (6 ROA 2036). ﬁ
The resultant diagnoses were: attention deficit hyperactivity

disorder, marijuana, alcohol and amphetamine abuse, and L
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“remember studylng...For all intents and purposes, he

_would have been better off without parents than havxng the o

pa;ents-that he had.” (6 ROA 2044 and 2045) In later

testimOny, the witness describéd WITTER'S background as “the

quintessential environment that would produce someone who
kills.” (6 RDA 2060)

Dr. Etcoff told the jury that alcochol has a disinhibiting
effect, lessening people's control of their behavior.
“lA]lcohol disinhibits in the brain a person’s ability to stop
whatever is inside from coming out.” (6 ROA 2052) FEtcoff
summarized that rage generated in WITTER as a result of having
hean beaten and of seeing his grandfather beat his grandmother.
These factors, made WITTER a very violent person, especially
under the influence of amphetamine-like substances and
particularly alcohol. (6 ROA 2063)

WITTER alse told Dr. Etcoff that his bout of drinking on
the night of the incident was brought about by his girlfriend
informing him that same night that she had aborted their baby
(5 ROA 2058). This event generated a great amount of anger in
Defendant,

Defendant did not testify at the penalty hearing.
ARGUMENT
I.

WITTER IS ENTITLED TO AN
EVIDENTIARY HEARING ON HIS PETITION

It has long been the holding of the Nevada Supreme Court




allegations; which, : , - WD d entltle the Petitioner . tO__
;rellet; an e§1dent1ary hearing is required.- ﬁgldgh;!;_ﬁﬁé$§;f .
"_99 Nev. 181, 658 p 24 886 (1983); mndin_v_._'s_tnta 97 Nev. |
454, 634 P.2d 456 (1981); Doggett v. State, 91 Nev. 768, 542
P.2d 1066 (1975). |

It is anticipated that the State, as it usually does, will
ask this Court to deny WITTER an evidentiary hearing and deny

his Petition based on the perceived strength of the State's

case at trial without considering the allegationg of the
Petition. In Drake v. State, 108 Nev. 523, 836 P.2d 52 (1992)
the Court remanded the case for an evidentiary hearing over the
State's objection where trial counsel had not adequately

opposed a Motion in Limine filed by the State. The purpose of

Attomey At Law
302 €. Carson Ave,, Ste, 600
{702) 382-1B44

the hearing was to determine whether counsel had sufficient
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cause for the noted failure. Drake, 108 Nev. at 527-5Z8.

In Hargrove v, State, 100 Nev. 398, 686 P.2d 222 (1984),

the Nevada Supreme Court stated:

"Appellant's motion consisted primarily of “bare!
or "naked' claims for relief, unsupported by any
specific factual allegations that would, if true,
have entitled him to withdrawal of his plea.

p901flcally, appellant's claim that certain
witnesses could establish his innoccence of the bomb
threat charge was not accompanied by the witness'
names or descriptions of their intended testimony.
As such, to the extent that it advanced merely
“naked' allegations, the motion did not entitle
appellant to an evidentiary hearing. See
vajllancourt v. Warden, 90 Nav. 431, 529 P.2d 204
(1974} ; Fine v. Warden, 90 Nev. 166, 521 P.2d 374
(1974); see alsoc Wright v, State, 619 P.2d 155, 158
{Kan.Ct.App. 1980) (to antitle defendant to an
ev1dentlary hearing, a post-conviction petition must
set forth ~“a factual background names of witnesses
or other sources of evidence demonstrating . . .
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£1nstances of ineffective assistance of trial and appellate
-counsel for WITTER.'

an av1dantiary hearlng should be conducted,

As such the allegationa are not:“naked. andf'
It is not
necessary nor reasonable that in asking for an evidentiary
hearing a Petitioner prove his case, only that the allegations
are sufficiently specific to detail the evidence to be
presented

It is respectfully urged that this Court grant an
evidentiary hearing to WITTER.
II1.

WITTER RECEIVED INEFFECTIVE
ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL

The Sixth Amendment guarantees that a person accused of a
crime receive effective assistance of counsel for his defense,
The right extends from the time the accused is charged up to
and through his direct appeal and includes effective assistance
Apnders v, California,

18 L.Ed.2d 493 (1967).

for any arguable legal points. 386 U.S.

B7 85.Ct. The United State

738, 1396,
Supreme Court has consistently recognized that the right to

counsel is necessary to protect the fundamental right to a fair
trial, guaranteed under the Fourteenth Amendment's Due Process

77 L.EAd.

287 U.S. 53 5.Ct.55,

Powell v. Alabama,
158 (1932); Gideon v. Wainwright, 3272 U.S.

L.Ed.2d 799 (1963).

Clause. 45,

335, 83 S.Ct. 792, 9

Mere presence of counsel does not fulfill

the constitutional requirement: The right to counsel is the

right to effective counsel, that is, "an attorney who plays the




Qeroy. - - | | REE
" pre-trial investigation is a critical area in any criminal"
case and failure to accomplish same has been held to constitute
ineffective assistance of counsel. The Nevada Supreme Court in

Jackson. v. Warden, 91 Nev. 430, 537 P.2d 473 (1975) stated:

“It is still recognized that a primary requirement is
that counsel . . . conduct careful factual and legal
investigations and inguiries with a view toward
developing matters of defense in order that he make
informed decisions on his client's behalf both at the
pleading stage . . . and at trial.”

Jackson 91 Nev. at 433, 537 P.2d at 474. The Federal Courts
are in accord that pre-trial investigation and preparation for

trial are a key to effective representation of counsel. U.S.

Attormey Al Law
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Las Vegas, NV 99101
{702) 362-1844

v, Tucker, 716 F.2d 576 (1983).
In U.S, V. Bayneg, 687 F.2d 659 (1982) the Court, in
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language applicable to this case, stated:

"‘Defense counsel, whether appointed or retained is
obligated to inguire thoroughly into all potential
exculpatory defenses and evidence, mere possibility
that investigation might have produced nothing of
conseguences for the defense could not serve as
justification for trial defense counsel's failure to
perform such investigations in the first place. Fact
that defense counsel may have performed impressively
at trial would not have excused failure to
investigate defense that might have led to complete
exoneration of the Defendant."

In Warner v. State, 102 Nev. 635, 729 P.2d 1359 (1986) the
Nevada Supreme Court found that trial counsel was ineffective
where counsel failed to conduct adequate pre-trial

investigation, failed to properly utilize the Public Defender's




fthe testimony_of,def nse witnesses._ Sgg_alﬁg,_'“

asnatg 107 Nev._399 812 p zd 1279 (1991)
'3.  specific areas of deficient partarmanca By trial
counsel include the following as allaged in the Patition filad
heraein and as supplemented in these Points and huthor;tzaa:
1. Failure to Investigate and Present Evidence at the
Trial Portion of the Case. Prior to the second day of jury
selection trial counsel made the following admissions on the
record concerning preparedness for trial:

"“MR. KOHN: ... Last Thursday, before calendar
call, we met in chambers and the District Attorney
and the Court and I talked about my client's previous
motion to have me relieved as counsel, because he

wanted someone to look at the FAS, in terms of a
defense to his case.
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I think that's what was confusing yesterday con
the rececrd as to the 25th and all that. But in any
case, I asked the Court for one more continuance;
that I was satisfied that I did not have a defense to
the trial phase; but in talking to experts in
Seattle, Washington, it seemed there was a great deal
that could be done in terns of the penalty phase.
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And I did not advise the Court that I had an
expert on retainer, and I donft, and the Court pretty
much said ....simply denied my motion to continue the

case.” (II, p.3)

The record shows that the case was first set for trial on
October 14, 1994 and continued on defense motion over the
objection of the State. The trial was reset for May 1, 1995
and again continued over the State's objection at the request
of the defense. Both requests were to find an expert on fetal

Alcohel syndrome. After the State received another objection
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e "THE CUURT'“ The Court‘s reeollectlon of that o
.. -motion-in chambers wWas Very much as the State put 1t':f
"‘and that is, I: had granted a couple’ continuances in
~ the past to give the defendant not only time to

procura a witness, but in fairness to the defendant's

‘case, I through it was important that the Court go
the extra mile in giving you time to procure an
expert witness as to the Fetal Alcohol Syndrome.

And in the Court's memory, the Court has given them
almost a year to do that. And counsel keeps telling
me what progress he hasn't made and the problems
involved in doing that, but has made very little
progress in actually flnding an expert who'll testify
in this case.

And counsel asked for maybe three more weeks to
do that, and the Court didn't think it reasonable,
Mr. Kohn, to put off the trial once again, right at
the last minute, to give you three weeks for
something you haven't been able to do in more than a
year, and have no leads really on people who have
agreed to come down and do it, and that's why the
Court denied the continuance.“ {II, p. 4-5)

Kohn failed totally to present any evidenced from an
alcohol expert during the trial portion of the case and instead
attempted to use a LVMPD detective with no success when the
State objected:

"o, Is it your experience that alccholics can
function better after consuming alcohol?

MR. GUYMON: Your Honor, I'm going to object
based on the notion that he's not an expert, and T
believe it calls for speculation when you start
talking about what an alcoholic is.

THE COURT: You tended to use him as an expert
also, and I would have sustained an cbjection. At
this point, T am going to sustain it. You're going
to far.” ({VI, p. 134)

The State called a criminalist te testify concerning the

alcohol levels found in WITTER'S blood, and trial counsel
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Kohn had informed the Ccurt'that;heghad a
had nevar aven talked to WITTER, and that he may_or
call him. IV, p. 259-260). The expert was not ca]led to :
testify at trial. _ wi
The record is clear that defense counsel had totally
failed to prepare this case for trial, and had abandoned any
semblance of an effort to prevent a defense to First Degree
Murder. Said lack of investigation and preparation denied
WITTER his right to counsel as set forth in the Sixth Amendment
and denied him Due Process of Law.

2. Failure to Investigate and Present Evidence at the
Penalty Hearing. There were several areas where trial counsel
failed to adequately prepare for the penalty hearing and WITTER
was prejudiced thereby.

At the beginning of the penalty hearing trial counsel
complained that he had not been provided discovery on WITTER'S
involvement with gangs and that:

“Your Honor, I've had Thursday and Friday. I've
had no time to do anything about this whatsoever. 1
need to bring in experts to talk about gang violence;
talk about violence in prisons, and why somebody
would need to have a shank. Those experts exist. We
were not noticed.

Mr. Guymon indicates he was not part of this
incident back in Auqust, 1994. I have been Mr.

Witter's attorney of record since November, 1993.
The jail never advised me.
I would have gone ta that hearing. I would have

done different things a year ago than I can possibly

20
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Lo -;:Iiwould llke-to file a motlon to continue, Your
“jHonor, if I may approach.. (Ix, p. 18 19). :

_The Court dld not grant “the Motion tc Continue and was

specific in it's summary of the failure of trial counsel to

adequately prepare for the proceedings:

“Now counsel comes again, at this time, July
10th, at the time of the penalty hearing, and says,
once again, they haven't had enough time to do
whatever it is they need to do.

and I have to inform counsel, again -~- and I do
it again on the record, generally these penalty
hearings are held within two, three, four days after
trial, and that's enough time to prepare.

Counsel, at the time this trial started, said he
wasn't ready. After a year and half of preparation
in this case, he still said he didn't have his
experts and couldn't get experts and wanted a
continuance at that time, and the Court denied it,
because the Court felt like they'd had enough time to
prepare,

Attorney At Law
202 E. Carson Ava_, Sta. 600
tas Vegas, NV 82101
{702) 3832-1644

David M. Schieck

Defense counsel has consistently said they
wanted a continuance because they haven't had time to
prepare.

Even since last Thursday, that's been four days

to prepare for this penalty hearing; and defense

counsel has access to the defendant all durlng those

days, and all during the 12 or se days we've had

since the time of the trial, has had access to his

client.” (IX, p 21-22)

The record shows that ne gang expert was called by the
defense to explain away the graphic testimony about gangs and
violence. Neither was any witness called, either expert or
non-expert, to explain that possession of a shank in prison is
more a matter of simple survival tan any indicia of violent

character.




‘luded from using such evidence at the panalty hearing when |

the state objected:

: “MR, GUYMON: ...It was previously pré5ehted to
 the court and it was counsel's belief this picture at
least helps docuwment the Fetal Alcohol Syndrone.

I have no problem with that picture being shown
to the jury. However, if it is offered as evidence
of Fetal Alcohol Syndrome, I object and here is why:

There is not a single witness listed by the
defense that Fetal Alcohol Syndrome would be
admissible evidence in this case or that would be
presented.

In reliance of that, I have not got a rebuttal
witness to this issue of Fetal Alcohol Syndrome. So
I would ask counsel he precluded from using the term
Fetal Alcohol Syndrome or testifying in his opening
statement about Fetal Alcchol Syndrome.

Attorney At Law
302 E. Carson Ave., Ste. 800
Las Vegas, NV B2101
{702) 3p2-1844

PHE COURT: I'm not going to preclude him from
using the statement Fetal Alcohol Syndrome. He
doesn't have a witness listed to do that, so you're
right about that, and that will be precluded.
However if he wants to argue himself that that shows
that, I'm not going to preclude him from that.” (IX,
p 29-30).

David M. Schieck

No testimony was presented from any witness to describe
the characteristics and effects of an individual suffering from
FAS.

3. Conceding Guilt Denied Petitioner of an Adversary
Proceeding. During the Opening Statement of trial counsel
Bassett the following statement was made to the jury:

“ladies and gentlemen of the jury, as you heard
the State stand up today and describe to you what

they are going to attempt to prove during this trial,
you have heard the D.A. describe some terrible,




_7bfﬁﬁab1?i5wbﬁﬁféaqoifQﬁtb;haﬁe?Eqiaéai;ﬁith;fﬁé'éréga,fi R
_going to have to come to grips with." (Vi p:33)
:iﬁihéﬁaﬁe;so.ob@ioﬁs #ﬁ§£_tria1 dqunéél waé dohcédihg:the:éuilt"'
6‘:‘ their client that the étate objected that trial counsel was
arguing the penalty phase in the opening statement. (V. p- 35).

The Court agreed and sustained the objection. (V, p. 39).

In United States v. Cronic, 466 U.S. 648, 656-57, 104
S.Ct. 2039 (1984) the Court stated that:

w[plhe adversarial process protected by the Sixth
amendment requires that the accused have “counsel
acting in the role of an advocate'. Anders V.
california, 398 U.S. 730, 734 (1967}. The right to
effective assistance of counsel is thus the right of
the accused to require the prosecution's case to
survive the crucible of meaningful adversarial
testing. When a true adversarial criminal trial has
been conducted--even if defense counsel may have made
demonstrable errors--the kind of testing envisioned
by the Sixth Amendment has occurred. But if the
process loses its character as a confrontation
between adversaries, the constitutional guarantee is
viclated."
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When defense counsel concedes the guilt of his client to the
jury the Sixth Amendment. is violated in twe respects: (1) the
prosecution in relieved of its duty to prove the defendant
guilty beyond a reasonable doubt in violation of the due
process clause (In re; Winship, 397 U.S5. 358, 90 5.Ct. 1068
(1970)); and (2) a conflict is created by the attorney
abandoning loyalty to his client and gympathizing with the
prosecution (Oskorne v, Shillinger, 861 F.2d 612, 629 (10th

cir. 1988)).
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'the actluns at trlal were dealgned to qain credibllltyﬂ_f'ﬁ

]ury and prevall at the penalty hearing. Counsel should'héve_-.

realized that the attempt at gaining credibility with the jury
was only guaranteeing conviction a first degree murder
conviction on a set of facts that would reszult in a death
sentence if WITTER was convicted of first degree murder. The
concession of guilt deprived WITTER of the reasonable
assistance of counsel at trial and further acted to deny him of
due process of law.

4. Trial counsel failed to object to improper argument

during the cpening statement of the prosecutor. During the

opening statement the prosecutor made among cthers the
following improper and prejudicial arquments which were not the
subiject of an objection by trial counsel:

“+..8he will tell you she will never forget the
lcok on the defendant's face as she looked into his
eyes, and she'll describe the evilness she saw on the
defendant's face that night" (V, p. 14}

“And the defendant then begins to approach
Thomas Pummil and he's coming at Thomas Pummil, and
Thomas Pummil too, like Kathryn Cox, sees evilness in
this man and realizes there's something wrong and
this man is bent on doing heinous, heinous evil
things™ [V, 20)

“The evidence will prove thie was a senseless
murder; that a loving husband's life was lost in an
effort to save his wife; that his wife, Kathryn Cox
was subijected to evilness that many of us can't even
imagine, the perpetration of sexual acts, the
repeated stabbing and the intrusion into her car that
evening as she awaited her husband.” (V P. 32)




States’ Supreme Court in Ber

5, 633, 79 L.EA, 1314 and adopted by ‘this court in . .
tate, 78 Nev. 366, 370, 374 P.2d 525 (1962):

*The Dnited States Attorney is the representative
not of an ordinary party to a controversy, but of a
sovereignty whose obligation to govern impartially is
as compelling as its obligation to govern at all; and
whose interest, therefore, in a criminal prosecution
is not that it shall win a case, but that justice be
done. As such, he is in a peculiar and very definite
sense the servant of the law, the twofold aim of
which is that guilt shall not escape or innocence
auffer. He may prosecute with earnestness and vigor-
-indeed, he should do so. But, while he may strike
hard blows, he is not at liberty to strike foul cnes.
Tt is as much his duty to refrain from improper
methods calculated to produce a wrongful conviction
as it is to use every legitimate means to bring about
a just one.”

The duty of the prosecutor at during the opening statement

was also described by the Court in Gaxner, supra.

2
2y
<1
£
g
g

{702) 382-1544

Lag Vegas, NV 84101

“After the jury has been selected and sworn, every
criminal trial has three general phases--the opening
statement, the proof and the summaticon. In the case
at bar, the prosecutor struck “foul blows' during
each phase. The purpose of the opening statement is
to acquaint the jury and the court with the nature of
the case. It is proper for the prosecutor to outline
his theory of the case and to propese those facts he
intends to prove. State v, Olivieri, 49 Nev. 75, 236
P. 1100. However, it is his duty to state such facts
fairly, and to refrain from stating facts which he
will not be permitted to prove.”
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Garner, 78 Newv. at 370-371.
Federal Courts also face the problems that arise from

improper prosecutorial statements. In United States v.

Johnson, 767 F.2d 1259 (8th Cir. 1985) the Court was faced with
a situation where the praosecutor called the defendant a car

thief during his opening statement. 1In the absence of a timely
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. .. "ge are troubled by the prosecutor's conduct., =~ - - o

- That the comment here was nade during an opening -

- statement makes it more-egregiocus than a sinilax =
remark would be during closing argument...The
‘statement poisoned the minds of the jurors at the
commencenent of the trial and is thus improper. In a
closer case it would result in reversal. Because
this issue can be reviewed only on plain error
grounds, however, Morgan's conviction must be
upheld...Nonetheless, we admonish the district
attorney that the opening statement serves the
function of outlining the evidence to be intreduced
and that if it is used to impugn a defendant's
character improperly as it was here, the risk of
reversal is substantial."

Johnson, 767 F.2d at 1274-1275. See also U,S8. v. Moreno, 991
F.2d 943 (1st Cir. 1993). (The argument, playing upon the
jury's emotional reaction to neighborhood violence, was outside
the bounds of legitimate argument and cannot be condoned.)

5. Trial counsel failed to object to the statement of
victim impact evidence during the opening statement of the
prosecutor and to the admission of a prejudicial photograph of
the victim.

The prosecutor made the following statement during cpening
statement without any okjection from trial counsel:

“Kathryn Cox will testify to not only the

physical scars that this crime has left on her, but

the emotional scars. The crime scene she sees again

and again in her mind, as she will tell you she will

never forget the defendant and his face, the tone of

his voice and his actions that night as he

perpetrated these evil acts.” (V, p. 27)

Not only was the argument Improper victim impact evidence, the

witness did not even so testify.
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i;fl. Although relevant, avidence is not admlssible 1f;ﬁ_
its probative value is substantially outweighed by

gthe ‘danger of ‘unfair. prejudice,. or confusion of the
issues or of misleadlng the jury.” : _ .

In Kazalxn_L_S.tai‘.& 108 Nev.67, 71, 825 P.2d 578, 581 (1992)
this Court held that the decislon to admit or exclude evidence
is left to the trial court after balancing the prejudice to the
defendant with the probative value. An emotional appeal to |
consider the victim's family is patently improper and
prejudicial. Meara v, State, 83 Hev. 3, 422 P.24& 230 (1967}.

The above quoted argument was made by the prosecutor
during the Opening Statenent at the trial portion of the case
where victim impact is not admissible, even under the decision
in Payne v, Tenneseee, 501 U.S. 808, 111 S.Ct. 2597, 115
L.Ed.2@ 720 {19921) which dealt exclusively with the
admissibility of such evidence durinhg the penalty or sentencing
phase of a criminal proceeding. Likewise the Nevada Supreme
court's holding in Homigk v, State, 108 Nev. 127, 136, 825 P.2d
600 (1592} dealt with error claimed to have occurred during the
penalty hearing.

During the testimony of Kathryn Cox the prosecution marked
and admitted a photograph of the victim taken three years
previously in Hawalii at a class reunion (V, pP.96=97).

There was no real probative value to the photograph.
Tdentity of the deceased was hot a guestion put at issue by

WITTER and no component of the appearance, slze or age of Mr.
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Admission of tho photograph and the

phoso of the caso.
improper opening statement were violations of WITTER'S rlght to
a fundamentally fair trial and due prooesa af law and trlal
counsel was ineffective in not objecting to the admission of
same.

6. Trial counzel failed to offer an instruction that
informed the jury that character evidence could not be
considered by the jury until after it had weighed the
aggravating circumstances against the mitigating.

In Brooks v, Kemp, 762 F.2d 1383 (ilth Cir. 1985) the
Court described the procedure that must be followed by a
sentencing jury under a statutory scheme zinilar to Nevada:

“After a conviction of murder, a capital sentencing
hearing may be held. The jury hears evidence and
argument and is then instructed about statutory
aggravating circumstances. The Court explained this
instruction as follows:

The purpose of the statutory aggravating
circumstance is to limit to a large degree,
but not completely, the fact finder's
discretion., Unless at least one of the ten
statutory aggravating circumstances exist,
the death penalty may not be imposed in any
event, If there exists at least one
statutory aggravating circ¢umstance, the
death penalty may be imposed but the fact
finder has a discretion to decline to do so
without giving any reason ...[citation
omitted]. 1In making the decision as to the
penalty, the fact finder takes into
consideration all circumstances before it
from both the guilt-innocence and the
gsentence phase of the trial. The
circumstances relate to both the offense
and the defendant.

{citation onitted]. The United States Supreme Court
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The Nevada Supreme Court has rejected an- instruction to

thlE effect in L;ele_xe_atate 113 Nev. &79, 941 P. 2d 459

_(1997). Desplte the rejection in Lisle of the instruction, the

Nevada Supreme Court has included language in other opiniens
that support the position herein urged. Even in the opinion in
WITTER'S direct appeal the Court state:

“Under NRS 175.552, the trial court is given broad
discretion on questions concerning the admissibility
of evidence at a penalty hearing. Guy, 108 Nev. 770,
839 P.2d 578. 1In Robins v. State, 106 Nev. 611, 758
P.2d 588 (19%0), cert. denied, 499 U.S. 970 (1991),
this court held that evidence af uncharged crimes is
admissible at a penalty hearing once any aggravating
circumstance has been proven beyond a reasonable
doubt.”

wWitter, 112 Nev. at 91s.

Additionally in Gallego v. State, 101 Nev. 782, 711 P.2d

856 (1995) the court in discussing the procedure in death
penalty cases stated:

“If the death penalty option survives the balancing
of aggravating and mitigating circumstances, Nevada
law permits consideration by the sentencing panel of
other evidence relevant to sentence NRS 1765.552.
Whether such additional evidence will be admitted is
a determination reposited in the sound discretion of
the trial judge.”

Gallego, at 791.
Trial counsel was ineffective in not offering an
instruction in accord with the above cases and WITTER was

prejudiced thereby.

~ B. B8pecific areas of deficient performance by appellate




_Appellate counsel'tailed to. arque to the Nevada
;Supreme caurt that WITTER'S Due Procass Rights were v101ated by; '
1the State's exclusicn of mlnorltles from the jury panel |
Durinq the course of ]ury salection the State s first
peremptory challenge was against an African-American. A proper
objection was raised under Batson v. Kentucky. (IV, P. 117~
118).
‘MR. KOHN: I believe his right to trial under
the Fourteenth, Sixth and Seventh amendments is
violated by them striking people of color. We are
down to two black people, she's one of the two,
THE COURT: First off, I should note the
defendant isn't a person of color, so I think it's an

unusual challenge, but I'll let the State put on
their reasons.

Aftorney Al Law
302 E. Carson Ave., Ste, 600

MR. GUYMON: Your Honor, I agree with your
reading of the Batson case. My notes, I did not
reflect anything about her race at all. My notes --
my statement as to B7 is absolutely blank,
indifference as to race, other than the fact I put I
did not believe she was capable of making a decision.
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THE COURT: I should note I didn't know she was
Hispanic or anything either. Her name is Elois Kline
Brown. It's not a -~ you say she's black?

MR. KOHN: She's black, your Honor.

THE COURT: I wasn't aware of that either,
counsel.

I not that for the record and I overrule it in
this matter, because I don't think it even applies in
this instance.” (IV, p. 118).

The issue was thereafter not raised on direct appeal.
It has long been the law that a defendant has the right to

be tried by a jury whose members are selected pursuant te non-
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ftha gnvernment in a racially discriminatory manner violates a.

:defendant's right to’ equal prntection. A defendant may

-establlsh a prima facie case under Batson by showing that "he

is a member of a cognizable racial group and that the
prosecut.or has exercised peremptory challenges to remove from
the venire members of the defendant's race.” PBatson, 476 U.S.
at 96, 106 S5.Ct. at 1723. Second, the defendant is entitled to
rely on the fact that peremptory challenges constitute a jury
selection practice that permits "those to discriminate who are
of a mind to discriminate.” Avery v, Georgia, 345 U.5. 559,
562, 73 S.Ct., 891, 892 (1953}). Finally, the defendant must
show facts sufficient to raise an inference of interest by the
government to discriminate based on all of the relevant
circumstances. Batson, 476 U.S, at 96, 106 S5.Ct., at 1723,

If a defendant presents a prima facie case of
discrimination, the burden shifts to the government to come
forward with a racially neutral explanation for the use of its
strikes. To satisfy this requirement, the proffered reasons
must bear some relationship to the case at bar. 1If the
government offers explanations that are facially neutral, a
defendant may nevertheless show purposeful discrimination by
proving the explanation pretextual. U.S8. v, Joe, 928 F.2d 99,

102 (4th cir. 1991}.

Trial counsel made a valid Batson objection to the first




Appellate‘cnunsel shoulduhave ralsed“a constitutlonal'challenge

to the jury selectlon, both because tha issue had marlt and to-

preserve the issue for further review if necesaary

'2. Failure to Petition the Court for Rehearing based on
the irreconcilable differences within the Court's Opinion.

Specifically the Court held that the raguest to argue last

o e w1 o tn'ﬁééfﬁq

would be denied based on NRS 175.141 which defines the "Order
10
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of Trial", yet ruled that under NRS 47.020 the penalty phase
was not part of the trial proceeding but rather was a
“sentencing” and thus not subject to the rules for exclusion of
witnesses at trial. The opinion was thus inconsistent in it's

ruling of two separate issues. Appellate counsel should have

(702) 382-1844

Attarney At Law

302 E. Carson Ave., Ste. 600
Las Vegas, MV 89101

petitioned for a rehearing on this discrepancy which indicated

David M. Schieck

that the Court was going to rule against WITTER irrespective of
having to be contradictory to do so.

3. Failure to Petition the Court for Rehearing on

Clear Errors Contained in the Supreme Court's Opinien. 1In
addressing the issue concerning the continuance of the penalty
hearing to allow time to cbtain a gang expert, the Nevada
Supreme Court stated that:

23 “In the present case, on June 20, 1995, almost a full

24 year before the penalty hearing, the State notified
Witter's counsel that it was investigating an alleged

25 dlsclpllnary problem (possession of a shank)
involving Witter’

The record is clear that the penalty hearing cccurred in

Taly, 1995, The Supreme Court was operating under a false




'glarlng error to the court s'attention and attempt ta obtaln aﬁf
:rehearlng on the 1ssue. ' |
The Supreme Caurt also erred in dEClﬂing that the failure

to strike the aggravating circumstance was harmless error. The
Court stated that

‘Even though we conclude that the prevention of

lawful arrest aggravator should have been stricken,

there remains four aggravators that the State has
proven beyond a reasonable doubt.”

Witter, at p. 23.

In fact there were only three remaining aggravation
circumstances after the prevention of unlawful arrest was
dismissed by the Nevada Supreme Court.

4. Fallure to raise improper cleosing arqument shifting

{702) 382-1844
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the burden of proof. During the closing argument of the State
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at the trial phase of the proceedings the following occurred:

“I submit to you that there has been no evidence
of how alcohol affects a person's state of mind and
thelr intent or their ability to form intent, or just
what effect alcchol may or may not have ta impair a
person's state of mind or intent. Neither the State
nor the defense called a witness to that effect.
There is no evidence of mental impairment.

MR, KOHN: Your Honor, I'd chject. Counsel is
commenting on what we did and we have no burden. I
think that is improper.

THE COURT: That's true. The jury knows that
there is no burden. He's just saying what was and

was hot presented at the time of trial.” (vol. VIIT,
p. 66}).

It is generally outside the bounds of proper argument to

comment on a defendant's failure to call a witness. Coplley v.
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Such shifting is improper becausé “[i]t suggests to

the jury that 1t ‘was the defendant's burden to produce proof by;_.

explaining the absence of witnesses or evidence. - This

Baxron,
also, Ross v. State, 106 Nev. 924, 803 P.24 1104 (1990); In re
Winship, 397 U.S. 358 {1970).

implication is clearly inaccurate. 105 at 778. See

Appellate counsel was derelict in not raising the improper

closing argument, especially where trial counsel had properly

preserved an objection to the statements.
5. Failure to raise the denial of trial counsel's

challenge for cause of juror Miller. During voir dire trial

counsel challenged juror Miller for cause and same was denied
by the Court:

“MR. KOHN: Do you believe the way in which a
defendant was raised in important to your decision as
te penalty?
MILLER:

bm. Nol

MR. KOHN: Can you explain that?

MR. MILLER: I think the individual should be
accountable for his self. How he was raised -- I was
raised in the coal country. It didn't bother me. I
went to school. Everybody has the same
opportunities. I think it's what you make of
yourself.

MR. KOHN: So if we put on evidence of a bad
childhood, that's not something you would consider in
mitigation stage; is that correct?

Yes.

MR. MILLER:

MR. KOHN: You would not consider it, right?




* After tha Court inquired, juror Miller changed his
testinony and stated that he would consider the evidence of
#Hildhqnd, but then when Mr. Xohn again asked him,.Millér_
statéd that he may not have to agree and that he really didn't
think that childhood matter (I1V, p.42). KXohn then renewed the

challenge for cause and the Court again denlied same (iIV, 45).

> oo =3 O &N . %D

At the next break a full record was made concerning the

—
o=

challenge (IV, p.53-57).

L
Il

At the end of the preempt process, KOHN was required to

-
o

use his last preempt against Miller (IV, p. 126}, and then

.
&

noted that there was another jury that he would have preempted

if he had not had to use his last one on Miller (IV, p. 1d1).
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In Thompson v. State, 111 Nev. 439, 894 P,2d 375 (1995}
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the Nevada Supreme Court reversed a conviction of four counts
of robbery with use of a deadly weapon based on the failure of
the trial court to grant a challenge for cause as to one
potential juror. 1In reversing the conviction the Court noted,
and cited with approval, Bryant v, State, 72 Nev. 330, 305 P.2d
360 (1956) that:

"It is not enough to be able to point to detached

language which, alone considered, would seem to meet

the statutory requirement, if, on construing the

whole declaration together, it is apparent that the

juror is not able to express an absolute belief that

his opinion will not influence his verdict.’

Bryant, 72 Nev. at 334-35.

The Thompson Court then went on to state that:




. - ite P
_;TchallengeS.-Therefore, 1f the defense had ussd one.of -
. .its peremptory challenges to excuse prospective juror
" number  elghty-nine, then a juror that was | :
_Wunacceptable to the defense would have remained on
'the jury.”
Thgmpsgn, 111 Nev. at 442-443. Kohn cited the Thompson case to
the Court during his challenge to juror Miller, The matter was
properly preserved and a valid issue and should have bean
raised on direct appeal.
6. Appellate counsel failed to raise the issue of tenuous
and specious evidence to support the allegations of juvenile
rape and force and vioclence in prison. During the course of

the penalty hearing trial counsel objected to the WITTER'S

parole officer reading into the record a history that was not

Altorney At Law
302 £, Carson Ave,, Ste, 800
Las Vagas, NV 83101
(702) 3B2-1844

supported by sufficient factual specificity or corroboration:
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‘MR. KOHN: Yes, Your Honor.

When the State placed in evidence yesterday the
parol evidence, I approached the Bench and objected,
and the Court -- T assume the Court meant T could put
on the record later my objection.

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. KOHN: There were two considerations. One
was about a rape. There's cne line in the report
that talks about a rapes when he was 15; did some
juvenile hall time.

Doesn't discuss if it's a misdemeanor, felony or
even if there was an adjudication.

There was also a line that Miss Rose testified
to, as to an incident of force and viclence in the
prison, but never tells what it was or what the
allegation were. And my concern is that you have
these bald allegations without any type of
explanation.




evidence“aﬁYway.;_ (x,'p 65)

The language and reasonlng of the Court “in D' Agostino,
has broad applicatlon to the admission of evidence of any prior
crimes:

“...bat 1t should be remembered that in death cases
the proof of other crimes is intended not to show the
guilt of the accused but, rather, to display the
character of the convict and to show culpability and
just deserts on the party of the homicidal convict.
Past criminal activity is one of the most critical
factors in the process of assessing punishment, for
whatever purpose punishment might be inflicted. Past
misconduct relates to the criminal's blameworthiness
for the charged homicide and relates, as well, to
whether the jury deems it necessary for public safety
to impose an irrevocable, permanent quarantine upon
the murderer...Inproperly admitted evidence of past
criminal conduct is even more damaging in a penalty
hearing than it is in a guilty-determining proceeding
because the past conduct goes to substance of whether
the murder should or should not be punished by
death....”

D'Agostina, 107 Nev. at 1003-4.

Appellant counsel was ineffective in not raising this

Attorney A1 Law
302 E. Carsan Ave., Sta. 800
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(702} 382-1E44

2
%
.’2
=
0
A
Z,
=
3
a

issue on direct appeal.

7. Appellate counsel failed to raise the issue concerning
the admission of gruesome and prejudicial photographs which had
been preserved for appeal by trial counsel. At numercus times
during the proceedings, trial counsel objected to the use of
unnecessarily bloody and gruesome photographs on the grounds
that the probative value of the photographs was cutweighed by
their prejudicial impact. The objections were to photographs

of the bloody interior and exterior of the cab (VI, p.1ll; 69},
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Thls Court has held that color photographs of a. v1ct1m

-used by a doctor to explaln the cause of death to a jury are.
'properly admissible because they aid in the asqertainmeht of
the truth, Allen v, State, 91 Nev. 78, 530 P.2d 1195 {1975).
Under such circumstances the probative value of the photographs
outweighe any prejudicial impact they might have on the jury.
In the case at bar there was no probative value to the
photographs as identity, cause of death, and even the events of
the homicide were not being contested by trial counsel. It was
deficient performance for appellate counsel to fail to raise
this issue on WITTER'S direct appeal.
CONCILUSION

The performance of trial and appellate counsel was
deficient. WITTER was prejudiced by the performance of his
attorneys and should ke granted relief from the judgement and a
new trial.

DATED this [l  day of August, 199s.

RESP:;TF LY SUBMITTED:

DAVID M. SCHIECK, ESQ.

YERIFICATION
Under penalty of perjury, the undersigned declares that he

is the attorney for Petitioner named in the foregoing petition

and knows the. contents thereof; that;he-initiallyfqisqqés;tﬁgf
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'a;tempted'to”see'Petitioner to review'the precise contents

hereof Petitioner refused to: sea the undersigned Thém
pleadlng is true of his own kKnowledge, - excapt as tc those |
mattersjstated on information and belief, and as to such

matters he balieves them to be true.

DAVID M. SCHIECK, ESQ.
ATTORNEY FOR WITTER

RECEIPT QF CORY
RECEIPT OF A COPY, of the foregoing document is hereby
acknowledged this |

day of August, 19598..

DISTRICT ATTORNEYS OFFICE
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200 5. THIRD STREET
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| #1204227 S _ _

b e O
= e

_—
.

Defendant.

—
.

STATE'S OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANT’S PETITION FOR
WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS (POST-CONVICTION)

DATE OF HEARING: 10-12-98
- TIME OF HEARING: 9: 00 AM.

COMES NOW the State of Nevada, by STEWART L. BELL, District Attomey, through B
GARY L. GUYMON, Deputy District Attorney, and files thls State’s Opposmon to Defendant s| B

Petltlon for Writ of Habcas Corpus (Post-Conviction).
1 This opposmon is made and based upon all the papers and pleadlngs on ﬁle herein, the |
e | |
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DATED this _czz day of September 1998.
Respectfully submltted

pu District Attorney
Nevada Bar #003726

On January 21, 1994, William Lester Witter, hereinafter “the defendant,” was dharged 1 -

5| by Way of Infonnatiori with one couri't' of Murder With Use of a 'Déadly Weapon (F'elony___ o
' NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.165) for the brutal slaymg of James Harold Cox. The defenda.nt "

7  was also charged with one count each of Attempt Murder With Use ofa Deadly Weapon | .

| B (Felony -NRS 193.330, 200.01.0, 200.030, 193.165), Attempt Sexual Assault With Use of a | |
19| Deadly Weapon (Felony -NRS 193.330, 200,364, 200.366, 193.165), and Burglary (Felony |  §
R " -NRS 205.060) for the brutal stabbing and attack of Kathryn Terry Cox.’ | o

The defendam was adjudged by a jury to be gmlty on all four counts. The j Jury

-2-




1 || the State responded. The Supreme Court of Nevada affirmed the convictions and issued a
J remittitur dated December 23, 1996. The defendant filed a Petition for Writ of Habeas |
Corpus (Post-Conviction) on October 27, 1997, and filed the Supplemental Points and |
" Authorities in Support of the Petition on August 11, 1998. '
STATEMENT OF FACTS

A, Intreduction _
On the evening of November 14, 1993, KATHRYN COX was 'savagely stabbed and |
|| beaten while in her car parked at the Luxor Hotel in Clark County, Nevada. JAMES COX, |

2
3
4
s
61, GUILT PHASE
7
8
9

10l KATHRYN's husband, was senselessly murdered on that same evening while attempting to
11§ protect his wife. Defendant was the perpetrator of these brutal crimes. An overview of the 'baéi;:'
12 || facts of this tragic episode follows. |
131 B.  The Senseless Crimes |
14 On November 14, 1993, KATHRYN COX was working as a retail clerk at the Park | -
15 | Avenue Gift Shop in the Luxor Hotel n Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada (ROA 879-80). On
16: that date, KATHRYN was forty-four (44) years old and had been married to her husband, | - |
17| JAMES COX, for approximately twelve (12) years (ROA 878-79). JAMES COX was a
18 || fifty-three (53) year-old taxi cab driver for the Yeltow Checker Star cab company (ROA 880). |
19 | KATHRYN had two (2) children from a previous marriage and JAMES had four (4) children,
20 || also from a previous marriage (ROA 879).
2114 On the evening of November 14, 1993, KATHRYN finished her shift at 10:00 p.m. and |
22 || boarded the shuttle bus that would take her to the parking lot where KATHRYN'S Mercury
23 || Tracer was parked (ROA 884-885). When the shuttle bus arrived at the stop nearest.
24 | KATHRYN's car, she got off and walked alone to her car (ROA 885). KATHRYN unlocked
25 | the driver's door, got inside, and tried to start the car (ROA 885-86). KATHRYN tried several
26 | times to start the car, but was unsuccessful (ROA 886). KATHRYN got out of the car and
27§} contacted a young man that she recognized as a fellow Luxor employee (ROA 886). This young |
28 || man tried to jump start KATHRYN's car, but ultimately was unable to start the car (ROA |

-3- PAWPDOCSIOPPFOPPGIRIOS9400L.WPD |
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$86-87). After concluding that the car was not going to start, KATHRYN accepted a ride from
the young man back to the Luxor Hotel (ROA 887), | N

KATHRYN arrived back at the Luxor around 10:25 p.m. (ROA 887) KATHRYN y
. immediately bought a roll of quarters and used one of the quarters to call her husband, JAMES _.
|(ROA 887-88). KATHRYN told JAMES that the car would not start and asked if JAMES could |
pick her up and give her a ride home (ROA 888). JAMES told KATHRYN that he was on his_ 5

way to pick up a passenger and that it would be about 25 to 30 minutes before he could come |
and pick her up (ROA 888). KATHRYN then retumed to her car on the shuttle bus in order to o
wait for JAMES to arrive (ROA 889).

When KATHRYN airived at her car, she got inside, locked the driver's door and started |
It toread a book titled “The Taming", written by Judy Deveraux (ROA 889). After about five (5} | .

to ten (10) minutes, the passenger door suddenly opened and Defendant quickly got inside
KATHRYN's car (ROA 891-92, 894-95). Defendant immediately stated to KATHRYN in a
loud voice, “Don't look at me.” (ROA 892—93). Defendant then instructed KATHRYN, “Drive

this car out of the parking lot.” (ROA 893). KATHRYN responded that she couldn't drive the | |

car because it wouldn't start (ROA 893). Defendant then angrily stated, “You will drive this out
of here, you bitch.” (ROA 893). Following this statement, Defendant swung his right hand

around and stabbed KATHRYN with a knife just above the left breast (ROA 893-94, 1180). |
Defendant again instructed KATHRYN, “You will drive this car out of here right now.” (ROA |

 895). KATHRYN again told Defendant that she couldn't drive the car because the car would
not start (ROA 895). Defendant then grabbed KATHRYN by her hair and pulled her towards

him, leaving KATHRYN's hair over her face so she could not see (ROA 896). Defendant told

3 | KATHRYN, “I'm going to kill you, you bitch”, and then with his right hand stabbed KATHRYN
' six (6) more times in the lef side of her body, between KATHRYN's arm pit and left breast, and

one (1) time in the back, near her shoulder blade (ROA 896-98, 1180-81, 1267-68). KATHRYN
began screaming and Defendant repeatedly told her, “Shut up. I'm going to kili you, you bitch.” | -

| (ROA 899). Defendant then asked KATHRYN if she knew Defendant was going to kill her and
KATHRYN responded that she was aware Defendant would kill her (ROA 899-900). Defendant | §B
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also asked if KATHRYN was aware that Defendant was going to rape her and KATHRYN again

 responded that she was aware that Defendant would rape her (ROA 900). Following these | |
| questions, Defendant unzipped his pants and exposed his penis and told KATHRYN to “suck g :- :
 his cock like [she] would for [hef] old man and make him feel better or good.” (ROA 901). | - |
While Defendant was making this statement to KATHRYN, he placed KATHRYN's hand on. _ .

his flaccid penis and pushed her head down towards his lap (ROA 901-02). KATHRYN was |

unable to meet Defendant's demands, however, because she kept passing out as a result of a- |

 collapsed lung that was caused by the stab wounds inflicted by Defendant (ROA 902). When

Defendant reatized KATHRYN was not able to comply with his demands, Defendant lifted |

' KATHRYN's head back up and again told her that he was going to rape her and kill her (ROA | '
| 204). At that point, KATHRYN could feel the blood exuding from her muitiple stab wounds | |

(ROA 904). KATHRYN tried not to breathe very often or very deep in order to decrease her |

blood loss (ROA 905). KATHRYN also tried to keep Defendant calm so that he wouldn't rage

again and inflict more stab wounds (ROA 905).
At one point, Defendant turned his head away from KATHRYN and she quickly jumped

out of her car and ran away screaming (ROA 906). KATHRYN only ran about 10 to 15 feet |
W wﬁen Defendant caught her, grabbing KATHRYN by the back of the neck and hair (ROA 907).
|| Defendant dragged KATHRYN back to the car and pushed her into the driver's seat again (ROA
9 | 907). After Defendant got back inside the car he kissed KATHRYN at teast one (1) time (RGA
§ 909). KATHRYN could smell the odor of alcohol on Defendant's breath (ROA 909, 935).

Defendant then tried to remove KATHRYN'S Levi pants by unbuttoning them, but was unable i

to because the pants fit tlghtly (ROA 910). Defendant became frustrated and stashed

KATHRYN's pants with his knife, leaving four (4) or five (5) knife wounds on KATHRYN's

right hip (ROA 911). Afier Defendant cut KATHRYN's pants, he pulled the clothing open, |

exposing KATHRYN's vaginal area (ROA 912). Defendant reached over with his hand and

I began rubbing KATHRYN's vaginal area with his hand and fingers (ROA 912). While

Defendant was rubbing KATHRYN's vaginal area, he began kissing her again and reached

8 | undemeath KATHRYN's shirt, undid her bra and began squeezing KATHRYN's breast (ROA -

5. PAWPDOCSIOPPFOPINI0EI0894001.WPD |




913).

While Defendant was attacking her, KATHRYN saw in the side-view mirror JAMES' taxi | - §

cab pull up along side the car (ROA 914). KATHRYN also noticed that the knife, which has |

4l a six-inch blade and four-inch handle, was lying on the dashboard of the car (ROA 916). | . |

' Defendant, not knowing that the taxi driver was KATHRYN's husband, instructed KA.THRYN' |

4l to be quiet so he could tell the taxi driver that KATHRYN was having a bad cocaine trip and -

Il Defendant was just trying to help (ROA 915). JAMES opened the driver's door and asked, | |
“What's going on here?” (ROA 916). Defendant told JAMES that KATHRYN was having a bad
' cocaine trip and Defendant was just trying to help (ROA 917). JAMES responded, “1 don't think
so. Thisis my wife and this is my car and get the hell out.” (ROA 917). Defendant got out of
the car through the passenger's door and confronted JAMES (ROA 917). KATHRYN noticed
that the knife was no longer lying on tﬁé dashboard (ROA 917). |
After Defendant got out of the car, KATHRYN could hear JAMES and Defendant yelling P
and scuffling (ROA 917). KATHRYN got out of the car and attempted to get inside the taxi cab
in order to call for help (ROA 918). When KATHRYN was unable to get inside the taxi, she |
turned and saw Defendant stabbing JAMES in the left shoulder area (ROA 919). JAMES
screamed in pain and Defendant continued to stab him repeatedly (ROA 920). JAMES |
eventually fell into KATHRYN and they both fell to the ground (ROA 920). KATHRYN began-
| screaming and kicking and Defendant stabbed her in the calf area of her left leg, the knife blade
passing completely through KATHRYN's leg (ROA 921, 1180, 1268). JAMES laid motionless
in KATHRYN's arms (ROA 921-23). '
KATHRYN told JAMES she loved him and she was going to get help and then got up
- and ran towards the bus stop (ROA 923-24). KATHRYN lost one shoe while she was -nmhing‘
 and then Defendant caught her again (ROA 924). Defendant grabbed KATHRYN by the hair |
and picked her up from the ground (ROA 925). Defendant took KATHRYN back to thecarand | -
stuffed her into the back seat areé on the passenger’s side floor (ROA 925).. Defendant then |

completely removed KATHRYN's pantyhose and Levi's (ROA 926). Defendant left KATHRYN| o

' in the back seat and KATHRYN could hear Defendant attempting to move JAMES' body (ROA
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927) Defendant returned and began touching KATHRYN's legs (ROA 927). Shortly thereaﬁcr
KATHRYN heard the voices of the hotel security and Defendant left her in the back seat of her |
car (ROA 927). _
THOMAS D. MCKINNON was working as a shuttle bus driver at the Luxor Hotel on the | ,
| night of November 14, 1993 (ROA 936-38). While driving his route, Mr. MCKINNON saw | |
KATHRYN running from Defendant towards the bus stop (ROA 938-40, 947). Mr. ]
MCKINNON watched Defendant grab KATHRYN by the hair and throw her to the ground |
(ROA 939-40, 947). Mr. MCKINNON immediately contacted THOMAS PUMMIL, a hotel |
|i security officer, and told them about what he had seen (ROA.939, 948). Mr. MCKINNON
followed Officer PUMMIL back to KATHRYN's car and saw PUMMIL draw his weapon and
aim it towards Defendant and saw Defendant take two steps towards PUMMIL (ROA 941, 948). |
Shortly thereafter, Mr. MCKINNON saw between five (5) and seven (7) additional security :'
|| officers arrive (ROA 942). | _
Security Officer THOMAS PUMMIL was patrolling the Luxor/Excalibur employee |
jf parking lot on the evening of November 14, 1993 (ROA 949-50). At approximately 11:15 p.m.,
i Mr. MCKINNON approached Officer PUMMIL and told him that he had just seen a female
' being chased by a male in the parking lot (ROA 952-53). Officer PUMMIL immediately went
to the location of KATHRYN's car and saw Defendant standing between KATHRYN's car and |
JAMES' taxi cab (ROA 954). It appeared to Officer PUMMIL that Defendant was trying to stuff
something in the back seat of KATHRYN's car (ROA 954-55). Officer PUMMIL got out of his
truck and asked Defendani, “What is the problem?” (ROA 956). Defendant responded,
| “Nothing.” (ROA 956). Defendant then turned and came towards Officer PUMMIL from |
 between KATHRYN's car and JAMES' taxi cab (ROA 956). Defendant had blood covering the
4 i entire front of his legs and waist (ROA 976). Officer PUMMIL instructed Defendant to stop
(ROA 972, 991). Defendant ighored the instructions and stated, “Fuck You”, and took several _
steps towards PUMMIL (ROA 972, 975). Officer PUMMIL retreated several steps to keep a
safe distance and again instructed Defendant to stop (ROA 972).' Defendant again ignored the

{ instructions and advanced towards Officer PUMMIL stating, “Kill me. Go ahead, shoot me. |
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Kill me, mother fucker.” (ROA 972, 975-76, 1003). Defendant repeated these same words

several times as he approached Officer PUMMIL (ROA 976). After Officer PUMMIL stepped | L :

back a second time, he drew his weapon and ordered Defendant to li¢ on the ground (ROA 973 , |
992-93). Officer PUMMIL also called for backup assistance at this time (ROA 973). Defendant |

again took steps towards Officer PUMMIL (ROA 974, 994). Approximately a minute and-a-half | B
| after Officer PUMMIL arrived, Offices SCHROEDER arrived, walked up behind Defendant and | B

placed him in handcuffs (ROA 977-78, 995, 1007).
After Defendant was handcuffed, Officer SCHROEDER went over near JAMES' taxi cab
and noticed JAMES' body lying on the ground partially underneath the taxi cab (ROA 1008).
' JAMES' face and upper torso were covered with a coat (ROA 1008). Officer SCHROEDER |
removed the coat and determined that JAMES was not breathing and did not have a noticcable
pulse (ROA 1009). Officer SCHROEDER then heard KATHRYN's moans coming from the |
back seat of the car (ROA 928, 1009, 1012). _

Officers SCHROEDER and REDLEIN went over to KATHRYN's car to offer
KATHRYN assistance (ROA 1013, 1092-93). The officers found KATHRYN lying in the back
Il seat with no clothes on from the waist down and several visible stab wounds (ROA 1013).
KATHRYN told the officers that Defendant had stabbed her and tried to rape her (ROA 1093). |
Paramedics soon arrived and KATHRYN was transported to the hospital, where she remained |
for eight (8) days, leaving only to attend JAMES' funeral (ROA 929-31, 1014-17, 1034-35,
| 1040, 1093j.

Officer BRYON CANDIANO of the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department
(LVMPD) was one of the first police officers to arrive at the crime scene (ROA 1057-59). |
Officer CANDIANO took control of Defendant from the security officers (ROA 1059). While
- Officer CANDIANO was taking Defendant to his patrol car, Defendant stated several times that
5 .ﬁhe hated all cops and was going “to kill all the fucking cops he could.” (ROA 1061, 1083).
Officer CANDIANO twice read Defendant his Miranda rights, once before placing him inside |
the patrol car and once after Defendant was inside the car (ROA 1061-63). Defendant
acknowledged that he understood his constitutional rights (ROA 1064). Officer CANDIANO |
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noticed that Defendant's pants, shoes and hands were all covered in blood (ROA 1066).
Defendant was taken to the police station and during questioning Defendant stated, “I can't
velieve 1 did it. 1 just can't believe 1 did it." (ROA 1072-74).

Officer DAN PETERSON, a cnme scene analyst with the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police
Department (LYMPD) recovered several items of evidence at the crime scene, including a buck
knife with a black handle and a four and-one-hatf inch blade that was found on top of JAMES'
taxi cab above the passenger side rear door (ROA 1129, 1141, 1156, 1158-59). Officer
PETERSON also recovered Defendant's brown jacket that he placed on 169 of JAMES n an
effort to conceal his body (ROA 1140).

Defendant was interviewed at the police station by Detective THOMAS D. THOWSEN
(ROA 1184-36). Detective THOWSEN showed Defendant a Miranda card which Defendant
read out Joud and signed (ROA 1 187-88). Subscquently, Defendant admitted being in the Luxor
parking loi, approaching KATH RYN and becoming aggressive with her, stabbing JAMES with
the hunting knife, and vsing his jacket to cover JAMES after the stabbing (ROA 1191-94, 1227}

ALAN GALASPY, a cniminalist with the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department
(LVMPD)}, conducted a scientific analysis of Defendant’s blood that was drawn on the early
morning of November 15, 1993 (ROA 1239, 1242-45), The results of this analysis demonstrated
that Defendant had a .07 blood alcohol level (ROA 1244). Criminalist MINO AOKI signed an
affidavit indicating that he found no controlled substances in Defendant's blood when it was
tested (ROA 1258). Counsel stipulated to the following facts: (1) the blood found on
Defendant's hunting knife could have been JAMES' bload, but not the blood of KATHRYN or
Defendant; (2) the blood found on Defendants clothing could have been JAMES' blood, but was
not the blood of KATHRYN or Defendant, (3) the blood found on Defendant's hands matched
JAMES’ blood, but did not match the hlood of KATHRYN or Defendant; (4) the blood found
on the brown jacket could be JAMES' blood, but not the blood of KATHRYN or Defendant; and
{5) the blood found on KATHRYN's clothes could be the blood of KATHRYN or Defendant,
but not JAMES' blood (ROA 1285-86).

On November 15, 1993, Dr. ROBERT JORDAN, a Clark County medical eXAminer,
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performed an autopsy on the body of JAMES COX (ROA 1291-92). The autopsy revealed a

total of sixteen (16) stab wounds: one (1) wound in front of the left ear; three (3) wounds }
' through the left ear; one (1) wound behind the left ear; and eleven (11) wounds to the left neck, { B
shoulder and upper left arm (ROA 1294). The autopsy also revealed that one of the stab wounds |

extended through the shoulder muscles and lacerated JAMES' axillary artery, from which |
JAMES most likely bled to death (ROA 1297). The autopsy also revealed that one of the stab |

wounds penetrated JAMES' skull and extended a half inch into his brain (ROA 1297-98). Dr. | |

JORDAN concluded that this injury would have caused fatal hemorrhaging, however, the stab

wound which lacerated JAMES' axillary artery caused his death first (ROA 1297-98). Dr. | -

JORDAN conciuded that JAMES' injuries were inflicted by a knife and his death was the result | |
of the injuries to his neck and head (ROA 1300, 1307). Dr. JORDAN also concluded that |
JAMES' death was the result of a homicide (ROA 1308-09). bl
C.  The Defense Case

Defendant chose not to present any evidence or witnesses during the guilt phase of trial |

(ROA 1329).

‘D, The Verd'ict

At the conclusion of the guilt phase of the trial on June 28, 1995, the jury found._
Defendant guilty of the crimes of MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE WITH USE OF A
DEADLY WEAPON, ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON,
ATTEMPT SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON, and BURGLARY

| (ROA 1491-92, 1549-52).
1.  PENALTY PHASE

A.  Introduction

The penalty phase of the trial commenced on July 10, 1995 (ROA 1570-74). Prior to
trial, the State filed a Notice of Intent to Seek the Death Penalty alleging six (6) aggravating
circumstances, including the following:

1. The murder was committed by a person under
sentence of imprisonment. NRS 200.033(1).
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2. The murder was committed by a Fcr_son who was previousl.¥ convicted of a
violence to the person of another. NRS

felony involving the use or threat o
200.033(2).

3. The murder was committed while the ]ferson was engaged in the commission |
of or an attempt to commit Burglary. NRS 200.033(4). _ _

4. The murder was committed while the person was enga§ed in the commission
of or an attempt to commit a Sexual Assault. NRS 200.0 3(4).

5. The murder was committed to avoid or prevent a lawful arrest or to effect an |
escape from custody. NRS 200.03_3(513. -

ghis a%avator was struck down in the direct appeal by the Supreme
(1%'5%)‘)’ evada in Witter v, State, 112 Nev. Ad. Op. 119, 921 P.2d 886

6. The murder involved torture, deﬁravi y of mind or the mutilation
of the victim. NRS 200.033(8) (ROA 068-70).

An overview of the evidence presented during the penalty phase in support of these aggravating
circumstances follows.
B. The Evidence Presented

At the penalty hearing, the State presented evidence of the horri fying trauma experienced :
by KATHRYN COX, the great sense of loss experienced by JAMES COX's family, as well as
evidence conceming Defendant's past involvement with the criminal Justice system. Likewise,
Defendant presented mitigating evidence aimed at depicting the dysfunctional nature of
Defendant's childhood heme life and his personal problems resulting therefrom.

DAVID §. RUMSEY testified that on January {1, 1986, Defendant stabbed DAVID in |
the stomach with a seven-inch butcher knife (ROA 1631, 1642). DAVID explained that on the |
evening of January 11, 1986, Defendant confronted DAVID and GINA MARTIN, Defendant's
former girlftiend (ROA 1638, 1642-43, 1645-46). Defendant was enraged because DAVID had
gone on a date with GINA (ROA 1635-37, 1654). DAVID attempted to resolve the matter by

extending his hand to shake Defendant's hand and Defendant responded by plunging this | - »
seven-inch butcher knife into DAVID's stomach (ROA 1635, 1646). DAVID fled into GINA's | '

 house, leaving a trail of blood behind him (ROA 1632, 1635, 1647). Defendant followed, but
not before slashing DAVID's tires, breaking out light bulbs, destroying several flower pots and
ripping down the window drapes (ROA 1631-32, 1635, 1648). Ultimately, Defendant fled the

scene, but was later apprehended and charged with attempt murder with use of a deadly weapon
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and assault with a deadly weapon (ROA 1635-36, 1651, 1658). DAVID was hospitalize_d for |

j approximate!y four (4) weeks recovering from Defendant's stabbing which severed DAVID's | " I_
lar_‘g‘c and small intestines, cut ten (10) holes in DAVID's bowels, and extended into .DAVID'.s.__E
jrectum (ROA 1649). Defendant eventually' pled gulty, plirsilant to négotihtions, to one { l) -
- count of assauft with a deadly weapon a.nd was sentenced to ﬁve (5) ycars in the California State
Prison (ROA 165 1-52, 1665) |

LINDA ROSE, a parole officer for the California Department of Corrections, testlﬁed

_'that she supervised Dcfcndant while he was on parole from the assault conviction (ROA

1662-63). Ms. ROSE indicated that Defendant served two (2) years and eight (8) months in }
prison and then was placed on parole (ROA 1668). Defendant violated the conditions of his |

|{ parole on three (3) scparate occasions and was .retumed to prison following each violation (ROA

!670-74) Defendant was discharged from parole on February 9, 1993 (ROA 1674).

JAMES FORD, a patrol officer with the San Jose, California Police Department, testlﬂed _ | '_ |
i that on July 20, 1993 he responded to a call that Defendant was throwing rocks through the |
1 windows in SHANTA FRANCO's home (ROA 1688-92, 1698, 1728). Officer FORD found |

Defendant outside the house screaming and carrying a six-inch dagger in the back of his pants } - f

(ROA 1693-95, 1727). Ms. FRANCO told Officer FORD that Defendant came to her home

 tooking for his ex-girlfriend, CARMEN KEDRICK (ROA 1697). Ms. KEDRICK, who was |

present at the home, told Officer FORD that she was pregnant with Defendant's child, but did
not want to speak with him (ROA 1697-98). Defendant was arrested and charged with

| i possession of an illegal weapon, vandalism of a residence, and public intoxication (ROA 1698).

‘Officer FORD also testified that he was familiar with the signs of gang affiliation in California

and that Defendant wore several tattoos and clothing that suggested Defendant's gang affiliation
and that in several photographs taken after Defendant was arrested in the present case, | |
Defendant was exhibiting “gang signs” (ROA 1699-1708, 1716). | |

Officer TIMOTHY JACKSON, a police officer with the San Jose, California Police

Department testified that he responded to a calt on October 9, 1993 that Defendant had beaten | |
{ his girlfriend, CARMEN KEDRICK (ROA 1734-36). Ms. KEDRICK told Officer JACKSON
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that she was pregnant with Defendant's child and that Defendant had beaten her (ROA 1735-36). |
| Officer JACKSON also observed that Defendant had vandalized Ms. KEDRICK's house and car
(ROA 1737-39). A bench .warrant was issued for Defendant's arrest following this incident

.(ROA 1740). Officer JACKSON also testified that he was familiar with the signs of gang B
affiliation in California (ROA 1740-43). Officer JACKSON testified that Defendant wore |

 several tattoos that indicated he was a member of a northemm California gang called the

“Nortenos” (ROA 1743-46).

THOMAS PIPITONE, a corrections officer with the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police
Department (LVMPD), testified that on August 4, 1994, he searched Defendant's cell at the
Clark County Detention Center (ROA 1748-52). During this search, Officer PIPITONE found

a sharpened metal item that had been fashioned from a piece of a clipboard (ROA 1752-55).
JAMES RANDALL COX, the oldest son of JAMES COX, testified about the impact his }
father’s death had on the COX family (ROA 1813-17). Mr. COX described his father as an.}

-honorable, caring, honest father, husband, and member of the Las Vegas community (ROA | |

1817-25). Mr. COX told how his father's death had impacted his father's other children (ROA

- 1825-31). Finally, Mi. COX read a letter written by his brother, MATTHEW COX, describing
 MATTHEW's sentiments regarding his father's death (ROA 1835-38).

PHILLIP COX, a brother of JAMES COX, also described JAMES' positive qualities and
characteristics (ROA 1842-44). PHILLIP COX described JAMES' relationship with his parents,
his relationship with his children, and his employment history (ROA 1843-49). PHILLIP COX |
also described the loss that had been experienced by himself and the other members of JAMES' |

family (ROA 1849-58).

The State’s final witness during the penalty phase was KATHRYN COX (ROA 1861).

KATHRYN told of her memories of her husband, JAMES (ROA 1862-64). KATHRYN read B

a statement she had previously prepared describing her feelings and emotions regarding |
Defendant's brutal attack and JAMES' senseless murder (ROA 1866-68).

The first witness called by the defense Was RUTH FABELA, Defendant's maternal aunt
(ROA 1892-93). Ms. FABELA testified that Defendant's mother had problems with alcohol and |
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| drugs (ROA 1895-97). On cross-examination, Ms. FABELA testified that Defendant was--:. .
|l essentially raised by his patemal grandparents WILLIAM and MARTHA WI'ITER (ROA_ SR
1901-03). 3
_ TINA WHITESELL, Defendant's sister, testified that her mother was constantl’y involved { \  o
in drugs, alcohol, and men (ROA 1908-09). Ms. WHITESELL testified that her parents 1

| ﬁ‘equcntly fought with each other, sometimes hitting each other and chasing each other with a'_" L

# knife (ROA 1910-11). Ms. WHITESELL also related how she and Defendant were ralsed by
grandparents and that both the grandparents drank heavily (ROA 1913-14). Ms. WHITESELL '_

9 also testified that neither she nor her two sisters had not been involved in criminal activity

il during their lives (ROA 1915, 1929). Ms. WHITESELL related how Defendant began drinking |
alcohol regularly and smoking marijuana in junior high school (ROA 1926}.

The defense also called LOUIS WITTER, Defendant's father (ROA 1941). LOUIS Pl

WITTER testified that he had three prior felony convictions and had trouble with alcohol and

' drugs (ROA 1942-43). LOUIS WITTER also testified that Defendant's mother had trouble with.
A alcohol and drugs (ROA 1945). Finally, LOUIS WITTER described how he and Defendant's |
mother constantly fought after drinking excessively (ROA 1946-47).

ELISA ARLENE ALOHALANI SANDERS, Defendant's sister, testified about the _:

abusive environment in which Defendant and his siblings were raised (ROA 1989-91). Ms.
'SANDERS also testified about the abuse that occurred while Defendant and his siblings were
H| being raised by their paternal gran dparents (ROA 1992-93). Ms. SANDERS related how this'.
' upbnngmg had negatively lmpacted her own life (ROA 1994-96). |
" MICHAEL L. RITCHISON, Defendant's cousin, testified about the drug, alcohol and |
physical abuse that was present in Defendant's home while he was growing up (ROA 2012—13
2016). Mr. RITCHISON also testificd about the alcohol and physical abuse that was present in .
his grandparents home while Defendant was living there (ROA 2017- 18).
_ The final witness called by the defense was Dr. LOUIS ETCOFF, a licensed pSychologlst
in the state of Nevada (ROA 2029). Dr. ETCOFF testified that he had previousty interviewed )
Defendant and conducted various psychologlcal tests on Defendant (ROA 2034-36, 2039-40).
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Dr. ETCOFF related the results of these tests and described how the results directly correlated |
with the information hie had acquired regarding Defendant's life (ROA 2040-42). Dr. ETCOFF
1 concluded that Defendant may have had attention deficit hyperactivity disorder, antisocial
personality disorder, and developmental arithmetic disorder (ROA 2042-43).
C.  The Jury's Verdict and Sentence

Following the conclusion of the presentation of evidence in the penalty phase, the jury I
il returned a special verdict indicating that the following aggravating circumstances had been
proven beyond a reasonable doubt: (1) the murder was committed by a person who was
| previously convicted of a felony involving the use or threat of violence to the person of another;
(2) the murder was committed while the person was engaged in the commission of or an atterpt
to commit burglary; (3) the murder was committed while the person was engaged in th‘e:
commission of or an attempt to commit sexual assault; (4) the murder was committed to avoid |
or prevent a lawful arrest or to effect an escape from custody (ROA 2199-2200). (The founh

aggravator was struck down on appeal). The jury also found that the aggravating circumstances

| outweighed any mitigating circumstances (ROA 2200). Finally, the jury concluded Defendant
i should be sentenced to death for the senseless murder of JAMES COX (ROA 2200).
| | ARGUMENT
THE DEFENDANT FAILS TO SUCCESSFULLY MAKE A CLAIM FOR INEFFECTIVE

: ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL

The Supreme Court of Nevada in Bolden v, State, 99 Nev. 181, 659 P.2d 886 (1983), |
' held that there should be a hearing on the allegation of ineffective assistance of counsel if the
defendant 1) presents an affidavit, 2) which prescms factual allegations of the attorney’s
| misconduct, and 3) which is outside of the record and thus not reviewable by this Court on
appeal. The defendant in this case has not presented any such affidavit. He merely presents |
bare allegations without any facts tﬁ back them up. This Court in Hargrove v, State, 100 Nev.
| 498, 502, 686 P.2d 222, 225 (1984), held that to the extent that a defendant advances merely

“naked” allegations, he is not entitled to an evidentiary hearing. Also, everything the defendant

“has complained of regarding his counsel’s ineffectiveness is in the record.
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Of persuasive value is State v. Runningeagle, 859 P.2d 169 (Ariz. 1993), cited by the |
Supreme Court of Nevada in Browne v, State, 113 Nev. 305, __, 933 P.2d 187, 190-91 (1997). |

Runningeagle stands for the proposition that a defendant is only entitled to an evidentiary

hearing when he presents a colorable claim. 859 P.2d at 173. A colorable claim is one that, if |

 the allegations are true, inight have changed the outcome. Id. The defendant in the instant case |

 does not present any colorable claims against either trial or appellate counsel. The defendant {. |

must show that his counsels’ performances were deficient, and that the deficient performance

prejudiced his defense. The State asserts that the defendant was represented by competent and .

|| effective trial and appellate counsel, as is demonstrated by the application of Nevada law to |
 counsels’ actions. The State wiil address each of the defendant’s individual claims below in

|t order to refute his claims of prejudice.

A. INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF TRIAL COUNSEL

In Nevada, the appropriate vehicle for review of whether counsel was effective isa | | '

post-conviction relief proceeding. McKague v, Warden, 112 Nev, 159, 912 P.2d 255, 257, nd }

(1996). 1n order to assert a claim for ineffective assistance of counsel the Defendant must

prove that he was denied “reasonably effective assistance” of counsel by satisfying the two-

prong test of Strickland v, Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 686-687, 164 S.Ct. 2052, 2063-2064

(1984); see, State v. Love, 109 Nev. 1136, 1138, 865 P.2d 322, 323 (1993). Under this test, |

il the Defendant must show first that his counsel's representation fell below an objective

standard of reasonableness, and second, that but for counsel's ervors, there is a reasonable |

probability that the result of the proceedings would have been different. See, Strickland, 466 | -

U.S. at 687-688 & 694, 104 S.Ct. at 2065 & 2068.
In considenng whether trial counsel has met this standard, the court should first

determine whether counsel made a "sufficient inquiry into the information... pertinent to his
quiry p

- client's case.” Doleman v State, 112 Nev. Adv. Op. 111, 4 (July 22, 1996); citing, Strickland, |
Il 466 U S. at 690-691, 104 S.Ct. at 2066. Once this decision is made, the court should consider | _' |

whether counsel made "a reasonable strategy decision on how to proceed with his client's

case." Doleman, 112 Nev. Adv. Op. 111 at 4; giting, Strickland, 466 U.S. at 690-691, 104 |
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Fetal Alcohol Syndrome (“FAS”) which prejudiced his defense. The defendant wants an |

evidentiary hearing on this issue, however, such a hearing is not necessary for two reasons. |

' he was conducting investigations for such an expert, but he had been unable to find one who | - -

'[| would testify on the defendant’s behalf

S.Ct. at 2066. Finally, counsel's strategy decision is a "tactical" decision and will be "virtuallj;

- unchallengeable absent extraordinary circumstances.” Doleman, 112 Nev. Adv. Op. l Traty '_: _
4; see also, Howard v State, 106 Nev. 713, 722, 800 P.2d 175, 180 (1990); Strickland, 466 | |
U.S. at 691, 104 S.Ct. at 2066; State v. Meeker, 693 P.2d 911, 917 (Ariz. 1984),
Based on the above taw, the court begins with the prcsumptlon of eﬂ'ectweness and E |
then must determine whether or not Defendant has demonstrated by "strong and convincing | L
proof." that counsel was ineffective. Homigk v State, 112 Nev. Adv. Op. 43, 4 (April 3,
1996); citing Lenz v. State, 97 Nev. 65, 66, 624 P.2d 15, 16 (1981). The role of a courtin | |
_considening allegations of ineffective assistance of counsel, is "not to pass upon the merits | [
| of the action not taken but to determine whether, under the partiéular facts and cifcumstancés'- g N
of the case, trial counsel failed to render reasonably effective assistance.” Donovan v, State, | | -

94 Nev. 671, 675, 584 P.2d 708, 711.(1978); citing, Cooper v. Fitzharris, 551 F2d 162, | B

1166 (9th Cir. 1977). This analysns does not mean that the court should "second’ =gue_.ss_ ) B
 reasoned choices between trial tactics nor does it mean that defense counsel, to .pr'ot"ect 1} '

- himself against allegations of inadequacy, must make every conceivable motion no matter | |

hkow remote the possibilities are of success." Donovan, 94 Nev. at 675, 584 P.2d at 711;
citing, Cooper, 551 F.2d at [166. In essence, the court must "judge the reasonableness of |-

counsel's challenged conduct on the facts of the particular case, vncwed as of the time of | ||

counsel's conduct.” Strickla _]_d 466 U.S. at 690, 104 S.Ct. at 2066.
1. Defense counsel did not fail to investigate and present evidence at trial,

The defendant argues that trial counse] failed to investigate and retain an expert in |

First, the defendant fails to present any affidavit from such an expert who would have

testified on his behalf. Second, the trial attomey already stated on the record to the court -thei_t :

In September of 1994, the trial attorney, M. Philip Kohn (“Kohn”), made a Motion | 1
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to Continue Trial Date of October 14, 1994, which was granted over the objection of the |

State. Trial was re-set for May of 1995. Attached to the Motion to Continue was an |

Affidavit signed by Kohn in which he stated that he had flown to San Jose, California t6 (.

conduct an extensive investigation of the defendant’s case. Afler spending a week | I

interviewing witnesses, he discovered information which he believed gave the defendant a
viable defense, FAS. This defense would require expert testimony, and Mr. Kohn n'eeded_'{ '
more time to secure such an expert. In April of 1995, another Motion to Continue Trial Date |
was made by the defense and granted again over State’s objection. Trial was re-set for June |
19, 1995. On June 20, 1995, Kohn stated for the record that he had asked for another

continuance prior to calendar call which the court denied.

Kohn stated, on the record, that he did not have a FAS expert, but that he was trying | - §

to secure an expert for the pénalty ph ase. The State objected. The court denied the Motion |-

to Continue, noting that the first two continuances were granted to give the defendant time

to procure an expert witness as to the FAS defense. The court doubted that another three (3)

- week continuance would make a difference when the defendant had not been able to secure

an expert who would testify in his case in almost a year’s time. (2 ROA 36'0—6_3)

Later in the trial, at the conclusion of the State’s Case in Chief, another discussion |

regarding the FAS expert and another alcohol expert took place on the record outsids the ‘. -

 presence of the me (4 ROA 1320-1329) Kohn indicated that he was prepare'd to call a Dr. |

Michael Levy, head of addictions at Montevista Hospital, to testify not to FAS but to alcohol

as an inhibitor which would go to the issue of specific intent. The State had contacted this

doctor, and it became evident to Kohn that Dr. Levy was no longer willing to testify for the

defendant. Kohn, being without an expert, asked for another continuance. The court

|| properly denied a continuance because this had been an ongoing problem in this case. The |

court indicated that Kohn had been looking, unsuccessfully, for an expert for months and

- months and had been unable to come up with anything.
The court stated that it would not set the jury aside while Kohn looked for another expert B

when he had a long histbry of trying to find one and realizing that the one he had was now | .
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unwilling to testify for him.

Kohn was able to secure a Dr. Etcoff to testify about the effects of alcohol on the |

~defendant for the penalty phase. Dr. Etcoff is not an FAS expert, he is a licensed |

psychologist in the state of Nevada. Kohn’s efforts to secure an FAS expert were extensive.

Even riow, the defendant does not present an affidavit that such an expert could be secured. |

Thus, it cannot be argued successfully that Kohn was ineffective in his investigation or B

presentation of evidence at trial because he cannot create a defense where one does not exist.
Not every crime is defensible, and an attorney is not required to “do what is impossible or |

unethical. If there is no bona fide defense to the charge, counsel cannot create one and may

- deserve the interests of his client by attempting a useless charade.” United States v. Cronic,

466 U.S. 648, 656 .19, 104 S.Ct. 2039, 2046 n.19 (1983). Kohn had had Dr. Etcoff perform

- tests on the defendzmt. as early as August of 1994, therefore, Kohn made a tactical decision

during trial not to call Dr. Etcoff until the penalty phase of the trial. This court should rule

that counsel’s decision regarding which witnesses to call or not call was not ineffective

- assistance.,

2. Defense counsel’s did not fail to investigate and present evidence at the penalty

‘hearing.

The defendant argues that Kohn was ineffective as he did not call a gang expert or a |

'FAS expert to testify at the penalty hearing. The inability to retain a FAS expert has been |

discussed above. In addition, the decision to call or not call a gang expert was a tactical one.

I As aforementioned, trial counsel’s strategy will be “virtually unchallengeable absent |

'extraordma:y circumstances.” Dolewnan, 112 Nev. Adv. Op 111 at 4; see also, Howard, 106 |

Nev. at 722, 800 P.2d at 180; Strickland, 466 U.S. at 691 104 S.Ct. at 2066; Mecker, 693

P.2d at 917, Kohn indicated to the court that he had not been provided with the discovery
I regarding the gang involvement and asked for a continuance which the court denied. The
‘Supreme Court of Nevada in the direct appeal of this case found that the district court did not | B
abuse its discretion in denying the continuance. Witter v, State, 112 Nev. Ad. Op. 119, 921
P.2d 886, 893 (1996). The Supreme Court also concluded that the defendant was ;iot | N
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'pfcjudiced by the district court’s decision to aitow only four days between discovery and the

penalty hearmg because even if the defendant had been able to secure an expert to testify as | B

 to the gang violence i in prisons and the need for a shank, “such tcstlmony would have done -

httle to mitigate his involvement.” 1d.

Thus, the Supreme Court of Nevada has already rendered an opinion on the prejudtclal | -

effect to the defendant by the failure of counsel to call a gang expert. This is the law of the_: B | - !

case. In State v. Lovelgss, 62 Nev. 312, 150 P.2d 1015, 1017 (1944), the Supreme Court §f -

Nevada held that “[t]he decision [on the first appeal] is the law of the case, not only .bin_ding I
9| on the parties and their privies, but on the court below and on this court itself.” The Supreme
 Court already indicated that even if a gang expert would have been called, it would have not. .
made a difference to the outcome of the case, thus, this principle or rule is the law of this{

case and “must be adhered to throughout its subscquent progress both in the lower court and :

upon subsequent appeal.” LoBue v. State, 92 Nev. 529, 531, 554 P. 24 258,260 (1976). .
3. Defense counsel did not concede guilt in opening statement.

The defendant argues that because defense counsel, Bassett, agreed that the facts the

prosecutor gave were “terrible, horrible, dlsturbmg facts,” that would have to be dealt with, | |
that Bassett conceded the defendant’s guilt and did not act as an advocate for the defendant | g
and was thus ineffective. In State v. Olivieri, 49 Nev. 75, 236 P.1100, 1101 (1925), the Court |- '

 stated that “[i]t is the duty of counsel making a statement to state the facts fairly, and to |

refrain from stating facts which he cannot, or will not, be permitted to prove.” The opening |

statement of defense counsel was very broad. Bassett encouraged the jury to keep an open

'mind. There was not very much Bassett could say given the fact that the defendant was

probably not going to testify and no expert on FAS had been retained. The defense was not

planning on presenting very much, if any, evidence. The decision to not put on a defense is
a tactical one and is not ineffective assistance of counsel. |

4. Defense counsel was not ineffective when he refrained from objecting durmg -
the opening statement of the prosecutor. |

The defendant argues that trial counsel failed to object to improper argument during | .
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Il opening statement. The prosecutor, however, may outline his case and propose facts he

intends to prove. Rice v. State, 113 Nev. 1300, __, 949 P.2d 262, 270 (1997). Evenifthe | -

prosecutor overstates what he is later able to prove, misconduct is not present unless he does

so in bad faith. 1d. In Browne, 113 Nev. at __, 933 P.2d at 190-91, the Nevada Supreme | - |
 Court held that reference to a defendant as a “selfish and cruel man” did not rise to the level I .
requiring reversal. See People v. Benson, 802 P.2d 330, 353-54 (Cal. 1990) (holding B

prosecutor’s comment “this crime is perhaps the most brutal, atrocious, heinous crime,” was
merely a comment on the nature of the offense and was permissible); see.also Runningeagle, |

859 P.2d at 173 (holding that prosecutor’s use of the words “horror” and “evil” were merely

a characterization of the evidence that should have been in closing argument instead of| 1

opening statement, but a new trial was not warranted).

In comiparison, in the instant case, the prosecutor commented regarding the defendant I B

in opening statement that “this man is bent on doing heinous, heinous evil thmgs " These 1 B

statements, while more appropriate for closing argument were harmless error. NRS 178.598

says that any error which does not affect substantial rights shall be disregarded. Eroris| &

 harmless if it appears, beyond a reasonable doubt, that the ervor complained of did not | . §
contribute to the verdict obtained. leamuan_y;_Ca]lfqmm, 386 US. 18, 24, 87 S. Ct. 824,
828 (1967). The _queétion is whether the jury would have retumed a verdict of guilty if it had | |
ot been exposed to the error. United States v. Hastings, 461 U.S. 499, 510-11, 103 S.Ct.
1974, 1981 (1983).

Here, if the defense counsel would have objected and the remarks of the prosecutor

had been stricken, it would not have made any difference on the outcome of the trial. There |

' was so much overwhelming evidence of guilt by way of the identiﬂ’cation of the defendant -

by one of the victims (Kathryn Cox), thrcc security guards, and the bus driver; physical

evidence of the deceased victims blood found all over the defendant; and a con fcssmn by the

defendant that he committed the killing, that the inclusion of this statement was merely

harmless error. Therefore, if defense counsel did not act effectively in failing to ob_jéct, such |
*failure was harmiess. | |
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_ 5. Defense counsel was not ineffective in failing to object to victim impacf .
evidence and the admission of a photograph of the victim. ' '

First, the admission of the photograph of the victim was properly admitted within the

' sound discretion of the trial court. Even had defense counsel objected to its admission, the |

court would have allowed it. The defendant argues that he did not put the identity of the | | :

deceased into question, however, this is still something that the State must prove. The trial |

court decided that there was probative value which outweighed the prejudice in admitting this | B

photo. Similarly, in Greene v, State, 113 Nev. 157, 931 P.2d 54, 60 (1997), the trial coust
allowed a photo of a deceased victim to be admitted into evidence which depicted the victim
_when alive. On review, the Supreme Court of Nevada held that the decisidn to admit the
photo was within the discretion of the trial court, and absent an abuse of this discretion, it}
would uphold the decision, which it did. 1d. Thus, any failure to object was a tactical 'ohe

presumably based on a familiarity with Nevada case law, and was not ineffective assistance. |

Regarding the defendant’s second contention that defense counsel failed to object to-

victim impact evidence in the prosecutor’s opening statement such failure was harmless. The | |

Supreme Court of the United States i Payne v, Tennesseg, 501 U.S. 808, 111 S.Ct. 2597
1 (1991), held that victim impact evidence is not categotically barred by the eighth amendment. |
While this case dealt with the admission of such evidence in the penalty phase, the treﬁd is
clearly towards the admission of such evidence. In addition, the evidence referred to was
'-relevént. because it went to the ability of the victim, Kathryn Cox, to remember what the | -
defendant looked fike. In light of the overwhelming amount of evidence against the
|t defendant, this was harmless error, if any.

6. Defense counsel could not argue under Nevada law that character evidence

could not be considered until after the jury had weighed the aggravators against the
mitigators. _

The defendant urges this court to find that defense counsel was ineffective because |
he did not propose a jury instruction followed by another jurisdiction despite Nevada’s |

explicit rejection of this premise. This argument simply lacks reason. The defendant would
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have this court believe that trial counsel erred in not requesting an instruction which informs
the jury that it may not consider character evidence until after it had weighed the aggravating
circumstances against the mitigating circumstances and cites a case from the Eleventh
Circuit,

The Supreme Court of Nevada has rejected this premise in Lisle v, State, 113 Nev.
679, 941 P.2d 459, 475 (1997). There 1s no Nevada authority which supports the
interpretation that character evidence cannot be considered untii after the jury determines
that a defendant is death eligible. 1d. A defendant’s character is relevant to the jury’s
determination of the appropriate sentence for a capital crime, it is not limited to only after
the jury decides the defendant 13 death cligible. 1d, (Citations omitted) Character evidence
is relevant to determine the sentence. d.
B. INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF APPELLATE COUNSEL

The United States Supreme Court has held that there 15 a constitutiona! right to
effective assistance of counsel in a direct appeal trom a judgment of conviction. Evitts v,
Lucey, 469 U.S. 395, 397, 105 S.Ct. 830, 836-837 (1985), see also, Burke v, State, 110 Nev.
1366, 1368, 887 P.2d 267, 268 (1994). The federal courts have held that in order to claim
ineffective assistance of appellate counsel the defendant must satisfy the two-prong test of

Strickland v. Washington by demonstrating that: (1) counsel's representation fell below an

objective standard of reasonableness; and (2) bat for counsei's errors, there was a reasonable
probability that the result of the proceedings would have been different. See, Strigkland, 466
U.S. at 687-688 & 694, 104 S.C1. at 2065 & 2068; Williams v, Collins, 16 F.3d 626, 635 (5th
Cir. 1994); Holienback v, United States, 987 F.2d 1272, 1275 (7th Cir. 1993); Heath v, Jones,
941 F.2d 1126, 1130 (11th Cir. 1991}, Further, there is a strong presumption that counsel's

performance was reasonable and fell within "the wide range of reasonable professional
assistance.” See, United States v, Aguirre, 912 F2d 5§55, 560 (2nd Cir. 1950); citing,
Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104 S.Ct. at 2065. The Nevada Supreme Court, although not yet
affirming the decision of the federal courts, has held that all appeals must be “pursued in a

manner meeting high standards of diligence, professionalism and competence.” Burke v.
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State, 110 Nev. 1366, 1368, 887 P.2d 267, 268 (1994). Finally, in order to prove that

 appellate counsel's alleged error was prejudicial, the defendant must show that the omitted |

issue would have had a reasonable probability of sticcess on appeal. See, Duhamel v, Collins, |
955 F.2d 962, 967 (5th Cir. 1992); Heath, 941 F.2d at 1132. -

The defendant has the ultimate authority to make fundamental decisions regarding hi’S. B :
case. lones v. Bames, 463 U.S. 745, 751, 103 S.Ct. 3308, 3312 (1983). Howcirer, the |

defendant does not have a constitutional right to “compel appointed counsel to press |
: P pre

nonfrivolous points requested by the client, if counsel, as a matter of professional judgment,

decides not to present those points.” Id. In reaching this conclusion the Supreme Court has | |

recognized the “importance of winnowing out weaker arguments on appeal and focusingon | -
one central issue if possible, or at most on a few key issues.” Jones, 463 U S, at 751 -752, 103 o

5.Ct. at 3313, In particular, a "brief that raises every colorable issue runs the risk of burymg

good arguments...in a verbal mound made up of strong and weak contentions.” Jones, 4_63- :

U.S. at 753, 103 S.Ct. at 3313. The Cdlmt has therefore held that for "judges to s.econd-_guess.'
u reasonable professional judgments and impose on appointed counsel a duty to raise every |
| 'colorable’ clasm suggested by a client would disserve the very goal of vigorous and eﬁ'ectivé
advocacy." Jones, 463 U.S. at 754, 103 S.Ct. at 3314,

Similar to the standards of ineffective assistance regarding trial counsel, appellate | |

counsel has the right and discretion to employ his professional knowledge and tactics in

'k constructing a defendant's appeal. Unless the defendant can demonstrate that counsel did not

provide "reasonably effective assistance" appeliate counsel's professional conduct will be

- .-upheld as effective. Sge, Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687, 104 S.Ct. at 2064; Love, 109 Nev. at

1138, 865 P.2d at 323.

Appetlate counsel's overall effectiveness is best demonstrated by the issues counsel | B

raised on appeal. In Appeliant's Opening Brief, counsel raised the following twelve (12) | | |

issues: 1) the trial court committed prejudicial error by not allowing jury voir dire questioning

concerning the potential impact of prior violent felony conviction evidence; 2) the trial court |
committed prejudicial error by refusing to question prospective jurors concerning exposure | '
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to a prejudicial newspaper article published during jury selection; 3) the trial court committed
prejudicial error by failing 1o give jury instructions which adequately distinguished the
elements of malice aforethought and premeditatior/deliberation; 4) prosecutorial misconduct,
(listed five instances), in the penalty phase closing arguments deprived defendant of a fair
grial; §) the trial court committed prejudicial error in denying defendant’s motion for mistrial
based on the victim’s penalty hearing plea to the jury to “show no mercy"” to defendant; 6)
the trial court committed prejudicial error in denying defendant’s motion for continuance o
adequately prepare for the penalty hearing, 7) the trial court committed prejudicial error by
refusing to exclude witnesses who would be called at the penalty phase of trial; 8) the tnal
court committed reversible error when 1t denied appellant’s motion to argue Jast during penalty
phase; 9 the mal court committed prejudicial error by failing to follow the mandate of Supreme
Court Rule 250 governing setthing of jury instructions: 10) the trial court committed prejudicial
error in denying defendant’s motion to strike the “preventing lawful arrest” aggravating
circumstance; 1 1) the trial court committed prejudicial emvor by allowing introduction of penalty
phase evidence that defendant possessed a weapon while in jail; and 12) the tnal court
committed prejudicial emor by admitting penalty phase allegations that defendant was affiliated
with a street gang.

I his Supplement to his Petition, the defendant raises seven additional 1ssues claiming
that appellate counsel was ineffective for not raising these in the direct appeal. The State’s
position is that this was a ractical decision by the appellate counsel, so they would not bury the
stronger claims. The merits of the additional issues will be addressed briefly below.

1. Appellate counsel was correct in the decision not to raise a Batson issue.

The defendant argues that appellate counsel should have raised a Batson issue on direct
appeal. His argument 1s that the State exercised a peremptory challenge against one of only two
African-Americans left on the jury panel. The defendant objected oiting Batson v, Kentucky,
476 U.S. 79, 106 S.Ct. 1712 (1986). Appeliate counsel was not ineffective for deciding not o
bring this issue on appeal because the State provided a race-neutral explanation for challenging
the prospective juror.
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Ratson and its progeny set forth a three-step ptoeess for evaluating race-based objections_ i

: to peremptory challenges First, the opponent of the peremptory challenge must make a prima {
facie showing of raetal discrimination. In order to do so, “the defendant must first show that he | -

is a member of a cognizable racial group, . . . and that the prosecutor has exerclsed peremptory | B .. :

_- challenges from the venire members of the defendant s race.” (Cntatmns onutted) The | ‘.
5 defendant in this case appears to be Caucasian, however, he is of Hlspamc!Hawanan decent

_The juror that was preempted was an African-American. Thus, it can be argued that the

_ defendant and the jlll'Ol‘ are from two different racial groups, and the prosecutor did notuse a |

peremptmy challenge to remove a member of the defendant’s race. However, the defendant

.'does have a right to a cross-section of the community, which includes African-Americans, so | - Sl

the prima facie case is met.

Once a prima facie showing has been made the burden of production shifts to the |
 proponent of the strike to come forward with a race-neutral explanation. Purkeftv Elm 514__' S
US. 765, 767-68, 115 S.Ct. 1769, 1770-71 (1995). If a race-neutral explanation is tendered,

step three requires the trial court to decide whether the opponent of the strike has proved |
purposeful racial discrimination, Id. In Purkett, the Supreme Court of the United States held :

that the race-neutral explanat;on given by the proponent of the peremptory challenge neednot{ 1N

be persuasive or even plausible. 1d. The issue at this step of the inquiry is the facial validity of |
the prosecutor’s explanation. Id. The explanation will be deemed race-neutral unless there is
inherent discriminatory intent. ld.

The prosecutor in Purkeft explained that he struck the juror in guestion under Batson

because this particular male juror had long, unkempt hair, a moustache, and a beard. [d, at 769,
115 S.Ct. At 1771. The Court found that this was a nondiscriminatory reason f0r_ the strike. Id. |
| The inquiry then proceeded to the third step in which the trial court properly determined that the §

prosecutor was not motivated by discriminatory intent. Id. In comparison, in the instant case,

the prosecutor indicated to the trial court that he had nothing in his notes regardmg the juror’s

race. (3 ROA 813, 816) The only notanon the prosecutor had with regard to the juror was that B

i he did not believe that she was capable of making a decision. This was a race-neutral
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|l explanation.

The court then made the determination that the prosecutor was not motivated by

discriminatory intent because the court itself was not aware that the juror was of | |
 African-American decent. (3 ROA 813) At the time of the peremptlory challenges, the jurors -
- were not present. Neither the prosecutor nor the. court had noted that the juror was
-Afri can-Amencan because they were not aware that race was an issue in the case because the '
defendant appeared to be Caucasian. (3 ROA 815) The names of the defendant and his famnly B

do not suggest any particular race. The court properly found that the defendant had not proved |.
purposeful discrimination on the part of the prosecutor. The Court in Purkett clearly stated that 3

“the ultimate burden of persuasion regarding racial motivation rests with, and never shifts from, | |
the opponent of the strike.” Id. Therefore, the appellate counsel made a tactical decision not | -

to raise this specious argument.

2. & 3. Appellate counsel was not ineffective in decldmg not to Petition the Court for | |

|| Rehearing.

Accordmg, to NRAP 40(0)(2) 1ehearmg may only be constdered by a court in the: 3

following circumstances: l) When it appears that the court has overlooked or mlsapprehcnded o

a material matter in the record or otherwise, or i) in such other c1rcumstanccs as will promate 1

=substantial__pusnce.- Vhitehead v. Nevada Commissi udicial Discipline, 110 Nev. 380,
1388, 873 P.2d 946, 952 (1994). In Whitchead, the petition was not considered proper because :'

it did not address any “material matter,” it simply asked the court to withdraw or change “faulty

 assumptions, misstatements of fact and mischaracterizations of the legal arguments. . .." 1d. |

The court held that rehearings are not granted to review matter of no material consequence. Id,

In his Supplement to his Petition, the defendant argues 1) that there were irreconcilable

dli’ferences within the court’s opinion that the court had indicated it would maintain lrreSpectwe

5 1t of the contradlctlon 2) that there remained three, not four, aggravators after the court struck one
' down, and 3) that the court erred in a date. None of these claims are of any material I
consequence. With regard to the first claim, the court indicated that it was being contradlctory,

50 it would not have changed its position on uhearm;, With regard to the second claim, it |s R -
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of no consequence that the court made a clerical error or miscalculated the remaining

aggravators because the finding of only one aggravator is enough to invoke the death penalty and
three still remained. According to NRS 200.030(4)(a) “[a] person convicted of murder of the
first degree is guilty of a category A felony and shall be punished: (a) By death, only if one or |

more aggravating circumstances are found and any mitigating circumstance or circumstances

which are found do not outweigh the aggravating circumstance or circumstances . . . .
(Emphasis added). Even with the clerical error or miscalculation, the defendant still concedes }
that three aggravators existed.

In addition, in the next paragraph of the Supreme Court’s slip opinion in Witter, 112 Nev.
Ad. Op. at p.24, the Court states that the “evidence fully supports the finding of three valid

aggravating circumstances,” (emphasis added) which is evidence that the Court merely made a

clerical error when it said four aggravators remained in the paragraph above. The correct '_ B
 number of three is in the slip opinion 112 Nev. Ad. Op. at p.24, however, it is wrong in the same |

 paragraph in the published opinion. (See attachments). Clearly, this was a clerical error.

The jury found four aggravating circumstances, as indicated in the attached copy of the

i special verdict form. The court struck down one aggravator. It then conducted a reweighing test '

citing Clemons v. Mississippi, 494 U.S. 738, 110 S.Ct. 1441 (1990). After striking the

aggravator, the court concluded that the aggravators stili outweighed the mitigators. Even if the |
math is incorrect, the court knew which aggavators the jury found, knew which aggravator it was
striking, and reweighed those remaining against the aggravators. The opinion merely contains
a clerical error. It would have been improper to ask for a rehearing based on a clerical error.
Finally, the defendant contends that the coust erred in a calculation of a date. When the
defense asked for a continuation of the penalty hearing because it had niot received the discovery
indicating the defendant’s gang involvement and did not have time to procure a gang expert for
the penalty phase, the court incorrectly believed that the defense was notified “almost a full year
before the penalty hearing.” In fact, the defense was only notified of these facts a few days

before the penalty hearing. It was not ineffective assistance of appellate counsel to fail to raise

this, however, because as aforementioned, the court indicated that even if defense had time to
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secure a gang expert and present testimony to this regard, it would have done little to mitigate
the defendant’s involvement. Id, at 11, 921 P.2d at 893,

4. The prosecution did not shift the burden to the defendant, so appellate counse! was
not ineffective in failing to raise this issue.

The defendant argues that when the prosccutor stated that neither the State nor the
defense had called an expert on how alcohol effects 2 person’s state of mind, that shifted the
burden to the defendant. Trial counsel objected. The court commented that the jury “knows that
there is no burden. He’s just saying what was and was not presented at the time of tnal.” The
defendant argues that appellate counsel should have raised this issue on direct appeal.

First. it was a tacticai decision of appetlate counsel not to raise this issue, The trial court
remedied the problem at the time by saying that the jury knows that the defendant has no burden.

In addition, defendant cites Colley v. State, 98 Nev. 14, 16, 639 P.2d 530, 532 (1982), as

standing for the proposition that generally it is improper argument {0 comment on the
defendant’s faiture to call a witness. While that is the general proposition, it Collgy, the court
held that the defendant’s argument that the burden was shifted when the prosecutor asked the
defendant about a particular witness’ failure to appear was without merit. 1. The defense also
cites Barron_ v, State, 105, 767, 783 P.2d 444 (1989). In Barron, the Nevada Supreme Counl
nolds that the test is “whether the prosecutor’s language was “manifestly intended or was of such
character that the jury would naturally and necessarily take it to be a comment on the failure of
the accused to {respond}.”” Id, at 779, 783 P2datd5t.

in Lisle v. State, 113 Nev. 679, 941 P 24 459, 476 (1997), the court held that the burden
was not shifted to the defendant when the prosecutor made only a few general remarks about the
lack of expert witnesses, not specific witness during the penalty phase. Although in the instant
case the comments were made during the closing argument of the trial phase, the reasoning of
Lisle can still be applied. In fact, it scems that was what the tria! judge was doing. The
prosecutor merely made a general reference regarding what evidence was and was not presented.
He did not name a particular witness. Evenifhe had. under Colley, that may not have even

been enough to shift the burden, thus, appellate counsel was not ineffective in deciding not to
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bring this meritless argument.

5. Appellate counsel was correct in not raising the issue of denial of trial counsel’s
challenge for cause of juror Miller.

In United States v. Claiborne, 765 F.2d 784, 800 (9th Cir. 1985), the court held that the
court did not abuse its discretion in failing to distniss jurors for cause and inviting counsel to use
their peremptory challenges to excuse them from the panel. The court reasoned that “[fjew
aspects of a jury trial are more committed to a district court’s discretion than the decision
whether to excuse a prospective juror for actual bias. Moreover, trial courts possess a peculiar
ability 1o determine whether a prospective juror’s claimed ability to decide a case impartially
is geauine.” ld, (Citations omitted). In Claiborng, the district court determined that the
prospective jurors in guestion on appeal would weigh the evidence impartially despite their
initial preconceptions of the defendant’s guilt or imocence. 1d, The fact that the defendant used
peremptory chalienges to strike the two jurors, the ceurt found to be “not a denial of justice” but
a “proper utilization of the peremptory tool.” Id Likewise, in the instant case, the court found
the jurors passed for cause. This was in the court’s discretion, and had appellate counsel raised
the issue on appeal, the court would have tikely upheld the decision of the trial judge.

The defendant cites Thompson v, State, 111 Nev. 439, 894 P.2d 375 (1995), as standing

for the proposition that the Supreme Coust of Nevada will hold that some prospective jurors
should have been excuscd for cause by the trial court. The juror in this case differs from the
juror in Thompsoen because the juror in Thompson said that the defendant was guilty. 1d, He
had already formed an opinion, but he responded to a question to that effect that he had not
formed an optnion when he clearly had. In contrast, the prospective juror Miller, in this case,
had not formed an opinion about the defendant’s guilt or innocence, but indicated that he wouid
not consider the childhood of a defendant as a mitigating circumstance. Additionaliy, the court
had previously instructed defense counsel not to use the term “mitigation” during voir dire, as
the court could not conclude what would be altowed as mitigators at this point in the trial. (1
ROA 352-55)

/i
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6. Appellate counsel was not ineffective in deciding not to address the reference to
the defendant’s acts of juvenile rape and violence in prison which came ont in the penalty

phase,
Linda Rose, a parole officer for the Catifornia Department of Corrections, testified that ol

the Department of Corrections prepares an institutional summary that contains a criminal history |

section. During her testimony Ms. Rose read from a certified copy of the abovementioned report

under the category “sex related offenses” that the defendant in “1978, [subject] was arrested at

the age of 15 for rape while residing in Hawaii. He served juvenile hall.” The defendant '

objected and a bench conference took place, and the following day, the defendant made a record

 of his objection to this information being admitted citing D’ Agostino v, State, 107 Nev. 1001,
823 P.2d 283 (1991). The defendant now argues that appellate counsel should have raised this

preserved issue on direct appeal. Appellate counsel made a tactical decision not to include this |

in the appeal. He was not ineffective in this decision.

D’Agostino can be distingnished from the case at bar because in D’Agosting a jail '

informant testified that the defendant, while in prison, had toid him that he had killed “some old
man in New York.” Id, at 1003, 823 P.2d at 284. The informant did not specify the time, place,
or identity of the man. ]d. The Supreme Court of Nevada opined that absent these details, the

defendant was prejudiced by such unverifiable accusations. Id., The Court was careful to ﬁoint

“out, however, that “[pJast criminal activity is one of the most critical factors in the process of

assessing punishment.” 1d. at 1004, 823 P.2d at 285. The opinion addressed specifically the |
reliability of jail-hbuse informants that are under pressure to cooperate with the State. Id.

In contrast, the information that came in regarding the defendant in the instant case was
reliable. It was part of a certified copy of the record of the Department of Corrections that was |
read verbatim to the jury by a parole officer. Additionally, it gave the year, place, age of the |
defendant, and punishment imposed for the sex offense. Surely, this was not the kind of
information that the Court was concerned about in D’ Agosting.

The defendant also criticizes appeliate counsel for failing to argue that it was improper

for parale officer Rose to testify as to the defendant’s misconduct by way of force and violence |

in prison. First, the defendant did not make an objection to this information at the time Ms. | &
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' Rose was testifying and in fact asked her follow up questions regarding this information on
| cross-examination. It was not until the next day that defense counsel put his objectlon to this

information on the record. ‘Second, this is again not the kind of information that the Court in | - |

D’ Agostino meant to exclude. Again, the information came froma certaﬁed report, was testlﬁed '
to by a parole officer (not a jail-house informant), and indicated that the defendant was pumshed 1

with additional jail time for the violent behavior. This evidence was in fact rehable and

appetlate counsel was not ineffective in deciding not to make a faulty argument on appeal.

7. Appellate counsel did not errin deciding not to appeal the trial court’s decision |
to admit photographs of the scene, the murder weapon, and the autopsy into evidence.

The admission of photographs of victims, crime scenes, and weapons is within the sound |

discretion of the trial court, and absent an abuse of this discretion, the decision will be upheld.

;.Sﬁ:(h:c_enslﬁlﬂlﬁ 113 Nev. 157, 931 P.2d 54,60 (1997). In Wesley v. State, 112 Nev. 503,

916 P.2d 793, 800 (1996), the Supreme Court of Nevada held that a trial court was justified and
did not abuse its discretion when it admitted autopsy photographs of the murder victims. The |

Court concluded that the probative value outweighed the prejudice because the photographs

| ss:sted the jury in understanding the “nature and quality” of the wounds inflicted by the 1

stabbings. Id. The photos also were used to explain the findings of the autopsy. Id. Although '
the Court found the photographs to be “graphic and troubling to human sensibility,” the trial

court had not abused its discretion in allowing them.
Likewise, the trial judge did not abuse his discretion in allowing photos of the interior and | - |

exterior of the cab because this aided the jury in understanding the scene in which the crime took

place. The judge did not abuse his discretion in alloWing a picture of the knife, the murder

weapon, Finally, the judge was proper in allowing the antopsy photos. The defendant properly | 1B

it states that such photos are admissible to aid in the ascertainment of the truth if the probative |

value outweighs their prejudicial impact. The defendant argues that there was no probative |

1 value because the defendant did not contest the identity of the victim, the cause of death, or the
“events of the murder. However, the defendant plead not guilty, and the State had a

|l responsibility to present evidence to establish all the elements of the crimes. The trial judge | M
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i ineffective in deciding to exclude this unpersuasive argument in light of the Nevada case law. )

attorneys made were tactical and in the best interest of their client. The light of the |
overwhelming evidence of guilt, the defendant was not prejudiced by any of the decisi'ons of | |
|l either trial or appellate counsel. Thus, the State respectfully requests that this Court deny the
' defendant’s Supplemental Points and Authorities in Support of his Petition for Writ of Habeas |
- Corpus (Post Conviction) and deny the defendant his request for an evidentiary hearing.
DATED this__ =& day of September, 1998,

Respectfully submitted,j

GARY L, GUYMON
Depu(?f District Attorney
Nevada Bar #003726
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 determined that the probative value did outweigh the prejudice. Appellate counsel was not | |

The performance of both trial and appellate counsel was effective. The decisions the N
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112 Nev, 908
{Cite as: 921 P.2d 886)

William Lester WITTER, Appeliant,
v,
The STATE of Sevada, Respondent.

No. 27509
Supreme Court of Nevada.
luly 22, 1596.
Rehearing Denied Dec. 13, 1996,

Defendant was coavicted in the Eighth Judicial
District Court, Clark County, Stephen L. Huffaker,
1.. of murder with use of a deadly weapon,
attermpted  sexual assault with wse of a deadly
weapon, and burglary, and was sentenced to death.
Detendant appealed. The Supreme Count held that
{1} defendant's queston 10 prospective  Jusors
regarding prior felony conviction violaied rule
prohibiting voir  dire questions  iouching  on
anticipated instructions o the faw and questons

touching on verdict that jurot wouk! return when
pased upon hypothetical facts, (2) trial court did oot
abuse its discretion i refusing to aliow defendant to - -
guestion prospective jurors regarding leter to editor -
published in vewspaper; (3) wial court did not abuse
as discretion in denying defendant's motion to -

imvoke witness exclusion rule with respect penalty
phase; (4) jury instruction defining "premeditation”
was proper; (§) jury tastruciioe defiping “express
malice” was proper; (6} defendagt was not eatided
1 his proffered jury instruction  defining
“defiberation”; (7} wial court complied with rule
requiring court 10 confer with altoraeys after close
of evidence comcerning jury instructions and other
matters, and requiring that conference be reported;
{8} trial court did aot abuse s discretion in denying
defendant cootinvance of penafty phase; (%)
evidence that defendamt possessed knife in jail while
awaiting trial was adrissible during peaalty phase;
(10} evidence that defendant was member of street
gang was admissible dunnag penalty phase; (1D
stalement o jury that it should “show no mercy,”
made by wife of murder vicum, was admissible
victin-impact statement; {12} stamie providing for
punishment by deaih in certain circumstances did not
chift 10 defendant burden o prove that mitigating
CHEUMSIANCEs surweighed aggravating
circumstances; (13} trial coun properly denied
defendant's request to argue fast duning closing

arguments;  {14) prosecutor's  SIAleMEnts during
closing argument did not constitute misconduct; and
(15) although trial cour’s failure 1© strike prevention
of lawful arrest aggravalor was Criof, such error
was harmiess.

Affirmed.

[1] CREMINAL LAW &= 11512}

1{0KVISHD)

Scope of jury voir dire is within sound gdiscretion of
wial court and will be given considerable deference
by Supreme Court.

{11 JURY €&=131Q2)

230k13102)

Scope of jury veir dire is withia sound discretion of
wrial court and will be given considerable deference
by Supreme Court.

{2] SLURY €&=131(1D)

230k 31D

The critical concern of juty voir dire is 1o discover
whether juror will consider and decide  facts
impartiaily and conscientiously apply law as charged
by court. .

(3] JURY &==131{15.1)

230k131(15.1)

Defendant's question (o prospective jurors in capital
case, as to whether they would stil consider all
three sentencing alternatives in their detiberations if
there was evidence that defendams had prior felony
conviction involving use or threat of violence,
viplated rule prohibitisg voir dire questions touching
on anticipated instructions on the law apd questions
wuching on verdict that juror would retum witen
pased upor bypothetical facts. District Court Rule
7.70.

14} CONSTITUTIONAL LAW E=0267
92k167 _
Due process concerns are Qiol offended by ruie
prohibiting  voir  dire questions  touching  on
apticipated instructions on the jaw and questions
touching on verdict that juros would rewm when
based upon  hypothetical facts. U.S.CA.
Const. Amends. 5, 14; Distriet Court Ruie 7.70.

{5} JURY €=2131(6)
230k13U(B)

Copr. © West 1998 Ne Claim 10 Orig. U.S. Govi. Works
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130 L.E4.2d 112 (1954}, the evidence adduced at
trial showed that Canape robbed his victim then
walked him away frem the freeway before shooting
him in the back. We held that based on the evidence
of the case, a jury cosld reasonably infer that the
murder was commitied to avoid lawful arrest. 1d. at
874-75, 859 P.2d at 1030,

In this case, Witter atiacked James only afier James
told Witter that Kathryn was his wife and ordered
Witer to exit the vehicle. Once Witter killed
James, Wiiter grabbed Kathryn and forced her back
into the vehicie, Rather than fleeing, or killing
Kathrvn 10 make sure no one could identify him,
Witter hid James' body under his cab and resumed
his sexual assault on Kathryn. The natural inference
drawn from these facts is that Witter kiiled James so
that he could continue his assault on Kathryn, not to
avoid arrest, Clearly, ihe prosecution has oot met
its burden of proving this aggravator beyond a
feasonabie doubt, We therefore conclude that the
jury could not have reasonably found that the
murder was committéd to avoid lawful arrest and

that the district court erred when it denied Witter's

motion to strike the aggravator.

[36] In McKenna v. McDaniel, 65 F.3d 1483 (9th

Cir.1995), the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals was.
faced with a sityation similar to the case at bar in
which one of the aggravating circumstances used to
sentence McKenna to death was found invalid. In
commenting on Nevada's death penally statuie, the
court stated:
Even in a weighing state, however, invalidation of
one of several aggravating factors may make no
difference if there were ro mitigating
circumstances against which the state court could
balance the remaining aggravating factors. See
Neuschafer v, Whitley, 816 F.2d 1350, 1393 (%th
Cir.1987). But where some mitigaiing factors
exist, there must either be a new sentencing
hearing before a jury or the state appellate courn
must reweigh or conduct hanmless error review in
order 1o give the defenddnt the individualized
considerations required by ihe Constitution.
Clemons [v. Mississippi], 494 U.S. [738] at 746,
752, 110 S.Cr. [1441] at 1447, 1450 {108 L.Ed.2d

Page 14

725 (1990) .

Id. a1 1489-30. Even though we conclude thag the
prevention of lawful arrest aggravator shoutd have
been stricken, there remain four aggravators thal the
State has proven beyond a reasonable doubl. In
mitigation, Witter offered the testimony of several
members of his family and the testimony of a
clinical psychologist, all of whom testified :hat
Witier grew up in a very abusive and dys' -
family. We conclude that the rem:
aggravators clearly outweigh the mitigating evidence
presented by Wiiter.  Moreover, for the same
reason, we conclude that the district court's failure
to strike the prevention of lawful arrest aggravator
*901 amounts to harmiess error. See Chapman v.
California, 386 U.S. 18, 87 S.Ct. 824, 17 L.Ed.2d
105 (1967). We therefore conclude that even though
the district court erred in allowing the preveation of
lawful arrest aggravator to be considered by the
jury, Witter's sentence of death is still proper.

Mandatory statutory review.

" Finally, we conclude, pursuant toc NRS 177.055,

e evidence fully supports the finding of
Nl it aggravating circumstances, (2) the

sentence of death was not imposed under the
influence of passion, prejudice or any arbitrary
factor, and (3) the sentence is not excessive,
considering both the crime and the defendant.

CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated above, we conclude that
except for Witier's challenge to the prevention of
lawful arrest stanitory aggravator, all of Witter's
arguments are without merit.  Accordingly, we
affimm Witter's judgment of conviction. With
regaid to the prevention of lawful arrest stamtory
aggravator, we conclude that the State has failed to
prove the aggravator beyond a reasonable doubt.
Nevertheless, because we conclude that the
remazining four aggravators clearly outweigh the
mitigating evidence presented by Witter, we affirm
Witter's sentence of death,

END OF DOCUMENT

Copr. © West 1998 No Claim to Orig. U.S. Govt. Works
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Attorney for Plaintiff
THE STATE OF NEVADA

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK coNTY, NEVADS
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‘ol THE STATE OF NEVADA, CASE NO.  C117513

| _
10 | Plaintiff, DEPT. NO. X
R ! I : ~vs- DOCKET No. W
"_'12 WILLIAM LESTER WITTER,
_ #1204227
L D . .
Y Defendeit;;i

,_w:_ 1s]

. -._"..'- .

d 16
a7)
18 We, the Jury in the above. entitled caee, havznq found thed'

19| Defendant, WILLIAM LESTER WITTER, Guilty Of COUNT I - MURDER OF THE | B
ZZOJFTRST ”DEGREE, designate that the agq:avatxng..clroumstance or f 
'_\ZI'CirCumstances ﬁhich.have been checked below have been,eetablished-de}‘
. heyond a reasonable doubt. | | _.
fv”_ The murder was committed by a person who wa._Jf
-previously convicted of a felony involvxng the useif}fﬁ
or threat of violence to the person of another.

The murder was committed whi;e the person was |

engaged in the coﬁmission of or an.oattempt. to:.

 commit any Burglary.

-~ [ceat
z&z:s




‘The Durder was committey :whili "tjlid _ﬁc;iqn' wne
engaged in the coﬂmisSion of ©

commit any Sexual Assault.

The murder Wwas commxttad to avoid or prevent af

lawful arrest or to effect an escape f£rom custody
DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this

13 day of July, 1995

T -

r an attempt to |
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RECEIPT OF COPY of the above and fbrégoing State’s Op‘position to Defend’ant*'s _

~ Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus is hereby acknow]cdged this - day of Scptember '
1998

DAVID SCHIECK, Esq. -
ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT

BY kQ(uu.ék \)(’;tmu_ﬁv fé 2 ( P
302 E Carson #600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
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: DISTRICT COURT o
CLARK COUNTY NEVADA .

¥ THE STATE OF NEVADA,
_ . Plaintiff, o | E
| 'CaSé_ No. C117513-' : BT B
Dept.No. XV
Docket L .

Defendant.

STATE’S SUPPLEMENTAL OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANT’S
~ PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS _
(POST-CONV[CTION) L

DATE OF HEARING: 2-26-99
‘TIME OF HEARING: 9: 0{} AM.

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada by STEWARTL. BELL Dlstnct Attorney, through N
' GARY L. GUYMON Deputy District Attormney, and files tlus State’s Opposmon fo Defendant s |

Petmon for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conwctlon)
~ This opposntlon is made and based upon all the papers and pleadmgs on ﬁle herem the

| attached pmnts and authorltles in support hereof, and oral argument at the time of heanng, if |




As th:s isa supplemental bnef the State mcolporates by reference the Statement of Faots
from State s ongmal Opposmon to Defendant $ Petltlon for Writ of Habeus Corpus - -

" THE DEFENDAN’I‘ FAILS TO SUCCESSFULLY MAKE A
CLAIM FOR INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL ‘

* As this is a supplemental brief, the State meorporates by reference its earlter argument

and adds the following: | | | |
' "  This Court granted the Defendant an ewdennary hearmg based on hls Petttton for Wl‘lt .
11 | of Habeas Corpus. At the evrdenttary hearing, defendant was given the OPPOrtlmny to presem .
evidence to support the claims ralsed m his Petmon, yet defendant failed to elicit 2 any tesnm Ony :
that would support hlS clatm of meffectwe asmstance of counsel At the evadentl&ry heanng, ] B
: 'efendant presented testlmony from two Wltnesses Philip Kohn (“Kohn™), his trial counsel, and I :
i ) Robert Milier (“Mlller”), his appellate counsel Both witnesses testified that then: demsxcms

| .20 502 686 P 2d 222 225 ( 1984), held that to the extent that a defendant advances merely “naked" f
allegatlons he 1s pot entttled to rehef Accotdmg]y, thls Court should deny defendant s Petmon

A. INEFFECTIVE ASSISTAN CE OF TRIAL COUNSEL

1. Defense counsel dld not fail to mvestigate and present evidence at trial _
| The defendant argued that tnal counsel failed to lnvestlgate and retain an expert in Fetal 31'._ - .
Alcohol Syndrome (“FAS”) which prejudlced hls defense. The defendant is riot entitled to relief :_ .
' -on thls issue for two reasons. First, the defendant failed to present any tesnmony from a FAS
expert who would have testtﬁed on his behalf Second Kohn test:ﬁed that he did i mvesngate a B
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FAS defense and sought to obtain a FAS expert, but he had been unable to find an expert who
would testify on the defendant’s behalf,

At the evidentiary hearing, defendant had the opportunity to present evidence to support
his claim of ineffective assistance of counsel. While defendant has alleged that he was
prejudiced by trial counsel’s failure to investigate and retain an expert in FAS, he has not

presented this Court with any evidence to support this allegation. Defendant has failed to

provide any information that would indicate he did suffer from FAS. Additionally, even if

defendant could have retained an expert to testify that he suffered from F AS, defendant is unable
to state how the outcome of his case would have been affected by such testimony. In State v,
Brett, 892 P.2d 29, 64 (Wash. 1995), the defendant claimed it was error for the trial court to
exclude expert testimony that he was diagnosed with FAS. The court denied defendant’s claims
of error, explaining that a diagnosis of FAS “would place nothing more than a label on
[defendant’s] lower intelligence and behaviora! probiems, evidence which was already before
the jury. With or without the diagnosis or label, the defense could argue that such evidence
mitigated i favor of the lesser sentence.” [d, Because FAS is not an affirmative defense, but
merely helps explain a possible cause for an individual's low intelligence, defendant cannot
show that the failure to present FAS testimony was prejudicial.

Second, at the evidentiary hearing, Kohn detailed his efforts to Investigate a defense
based on FAS and retain an expert on FAS. Kohn testified that he flew to San Jose, California
to conduct an extensive investigation of the defendant’s case. (TT 6). After spending a week
interviewing witnesses, he discovered information which he believed gave the defendant a viable
defense, FAS. {TT 6). To investigate FAS, Kohn read The Broken Chord by Michael Doris
which explained the symptoms and effects of FAS. (TT 3). Kohn explained that due to the
relative novelty of FAS, it was difficult to obtain information on the Syndrome. {TT 9}.

Kohn attempted to retain an expert on FAS but after much effort, discovered that he could
not find an expert who was willing to testify on defendant’s behalf, (TT 37). Kohn did leamn
that to present a FAS defense, he would need to obtain a geneticist. (TT 13). Kohn called the

University of Nevada Reno, University Medical Center, and University Medical Associates to

-3- PAWPDOCSOPP FOPPARCHEY BAORI0R4002 WPD
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‘locate a geneticist, to no avail. (TT 13). Kohn then contacted Susan Doctor in Reno who was |
| working on a Ph.D. in psychology whose field of expertise was FAS. (TT 14). Ms. Doctor: e .
refused to see the defendant unless he was first examined by a geneticist who would detennme I -
_. whether there was reason to believe he suffered from FAS. (TT 14). Kohn was eventually able : 1
 to locate a geneticist, Dr. Colene Morris. Kohn called Dr, Morris at Ieast ten times, but each'*' i

time she refused to speak to him, claiming to have no interest in testifying for the defendant s

(TT 12-13). | _ |
Having no luck in locating an expert in FAS, Kohn then contacted several defense |

attorneys with the hope that they could provide him with the name of a FAS expert. ('IT 18). |

Kohn eventually spoke to an attorney with the Cahfomla Appellate PI‘O_}eCt in San Francisco who |
| provided him with the names of FAS experts (TT 19). Kohn leamed that these experts were | B
 not available to him. (TT 19). In 1995, Kohn realized that several FAS -experts resided in | '_ _. I
Seattle. (TT 14). Before these experts would examine the defendant they required one of thelr o
- geneticists to fly to Las Vegas, visit with the defendant and write a report. (TT 14-15). Based _
| on this report, the experts would decide whether to examine defendant. (TT 15). Kohn did not _ .
- retain these experts because they told him that this process would take some time. (TT 18).
' Kohn sought a continuance to allow the experts time to examine defendant, but because he was
unable to provide the court with a time frame of when they could examine the defendant, the trial | - l
court denied the continuance. (TT 17-18). o
| In an effort to retain a local expert on FAS, Kohn spoke with Ann Colernan Harry Hess, . N
_ Dr Masters, Dr. Etcoff anth Pole. (TT 20). Kohn discovered that because FAS was a ground' N

breaking field at that time, even these local experts who dealt with alcohol-related conditions on
a daily basis were not qualified to testify about FAS. (TT 20). Kohn eventually retained Dr
Etcoff, a licensed psycholognst who testified that defendant may have had attention deﬁclt _

| hyperactivity disorder, anhsocxal personality disorder, and deve]opmental arithmetic disorder. -
li (ROA 2042- 43) _ _ _
The above efforts clearly refute defendant’s claim that Kohn failed to investigatc a FAS 5 N

 defense and failed to retain a FAS expert. Kohn clearly expended a great deal of effort to |
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investigate a FAS defense and retain FAS expert. Kohn’s efforts were altimately unsuccessful
through no fault of his own. Kohn restified that since the time of trial, he has learned a great
deal about FAS. (TT 10). At the evidentiary hearing, Kohn opined that his newly acquired
knowledge has strengthened his belief that defendant did suffer from FAS. (TT 1 1). However,
this Court must “judge the reasonableness of counsel’s challenged conduct on the facts of the
particular case, viewed as of the time of counsel’s conduct.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 690, 104
S.Ct. at 2066. In 1994 and 1995, despite the fact that little was known about FAS, Kohn made
numerous attempts to locate a FAS expert. Accordingly, Kohn’s representation was reasonable

and did not constitute ineffective assistance of counsel.

Defense counsel’s did not fail to investigate and present evidence at the
penaity hearing.

The defendant argued that Kohn was ineffective as he did not call a gang expertora FAS
expert to testify at the penaity heanng. The inability to retain a FAS expert has been discussed
above. In addition, the decision to call or not calt a gang expert was a tactical one. As
aforementioned, trial counsel’s strategy will be “virtually unchallengeable absent extraordinary
circumstances.” Doleman, 112 Nev. at 847,921 P.2d at 281, sec also, Howard, 106 Nev. at 722,
800 P.2d at 180; Strickland, 466 U.S. at 691, 104 S.Ct. at 2066; Mecker, 693 P.2d at 917.

At the evidentiary hearing, Kohn testified that he had not been provided with the
discovery regarding the gang involvement. (TT 21). Kohn testified that he had no notice that
the defendant was involved in a gang except for the defendant’s tattoos and an inference that he
may have been in a gang at some time or another. (TT 22). Kohn stated that when he learned
that State might present gang evidence, he asked for reports but was told there were none, (TT
22). When the State did present evidence from gang experts, Kohn immediately sought a
continuance in order to retain his own gang expert. (TT 22-23). Kohn's failure to present a
gang expert was not unreasonable under the circumstances, as he believed that gang evidence
was only admissibie if defendant had been a gang member at some point in his life. (TT 23).

Defendant did not tell Kohn of his previous gang affiliation, therefore Kohn could not have
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22

24
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27
28

anticipated the need to retain a gang expert.

Furthermore, Kohn’s failure to retain a gang expert was not unreasonable because as he
stated, an expert was not necessary to refute many of the claims made by the State’s gang | |
experts. (TT 25). For example, one of the State’s witnesses testified that defendant’s 49er shoes |
were indicative of gang involvement. (TT 25). Mr. Kohn testified that he considered the |
testimony that defendant’s shoes were indicative of gang involvement to be “ludicrous.” (TT | "

25). As this Court aptly pointed out, a jury could have reached this same conclusion without the |

| testimony of a gang expert. (TT 25). Thus, Kohn’s conduct in failing to retain a gang expert

was not deficient and did not prejudice defendant.

3. Defense counsel did not concede guilt in opening statement.

The defendant argued that because defense counsel, Bassett, agreed that the facts the |

| prosecutor gave were “terrible, horrible, disturbing facts,” that would have to be dealt with, that |

Bassett conceded the defendant’s guilt and did not act as an advocate for the defendant and was

 thus ineffective. In State v. Olivieri, 49 Nev. 75,236 P.1 100, 1101 (1925), the Court stated that |
“[i}t is the duty of counsel making a statement to state the facts fairly, and to refrain from stating | -

facts which he cannot, or will not, be permitted to prove.”

At the evidentiary hearing, Kohn explained why it was necessary to make some

' concessions as to defendant’s guilt: Kohn explained that because overwheiming evidence of |

defendant’s guilt existed, it would have been virtually impossible not to concede some guilt. (TT [ |

27). Defendant was facing the death sentence so Kohn knew that if defendant was convicted,

there would be a penalty phase. Kohn felt it was prudent to not present a defense during the guilt
23 Ii phase that would have impaired Kohn’s credibility so that during the penalty phase, the jury
would listen to him. (TT 26). This tactic was identical to defense counsel’s strategy in People |

v. Bolin, 956 P.2d 374, 400 (Cal. 1998), in which defense counsel conceded guilt in the closing |-

argunicnt in order to preserve his credibility for the penalty phase. The court found defense |

counsel was not ineffective, stating, “Conceding some measure of culpability was a valid tactical

' choice under these restrictive circumstances.” Id. Given Kohn’s motivation for not presenting |
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a defense, his decision to not put on a defense during the guilt phase was a well-rationed,

effective tactical decision.

the opening statement of the prosecutor

The defendant argued that trial counsel failed to object to improper argument dunng 3 :

opening statement. The prosecutor, howevet, may outline his case and propose facts he intends [

to prove. Rice v. State, 113 Nev. 1300, 1312, 949 P.2d 262, 270 (1997). Even if the prosecutor |

overstates what he is later able to prove, misconduct is not present unless he does so in bad faith. B

Id. In Browne, 113 Nev. at 310, 933 P.2d at 190-91 (1997), the Nevada Supreme Court held th_#_t 1 =

reference to a defendant as a “selfish and cruel man” did not rise to the level requiring reversal. | R

Sce People v, Benson, 802 P.2d 330, 353-54 (Cal. 1990) (holdiﬁg prosecutor’s comment “this |

crime s perhaps the most brutal, atrocious, heinous crime,” was merely a comment on the nature |

of the offense and was permissible); se¢ also Runningeagle, 859 P.2d at 173 (holding that | . g

prosecutor’s use of the words “horror” and “evil” were merely a characterization of the evidence | . 8

that should have been in closing argument instead of opening statement, but a new trial was not | - |

warranted).

Kohn testified that his decision not to object to the State’s opening argument was al €K
tactical decision. Kohn explained that he was “trying to still curry favor with the jury” and | - | |
unless something was truly objectionable, he would not object. (TT 29). Again, because there | |

was overwhelming evidence of defendant’s guilt, it was important for Kohn to maintain hlS o

credibility with the jury and objecting to the State’s opening argument would likely have been_ "

it more harmful than helpful. Because the Nevada Supreme Court is so quick to find improper B
opening statements to be harmless error, Kohn s tactical decision not to object cannot be sand E g
| to be ineffective assistance of counsel.
vy

F
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Defense counsel was not ineffective in failing to object to victim impact
evidence.

Defendant argued that it was ineffective for counsel not to object to victim impact
evidence in the admission of a photograph of the victim and the prosecutor’s opening statement.
At the evidentiary hearing, defendant failed to ask Kohn why he did not object to the admission
of the photograph. Therefore, this contention is nothing more than a naked allegation with no
factual support and must fail. With regard to prosecutor’s opening statement, Kohn testified that
his decision not to object to the victim impact testimony was a strategic point. (TT 31).
“Experienced advocates might differ about when, or if, objections are called for since, 4s a
matter of trial strategy, further objections from counsel may have succeeded in making the
prosecutor’s comments seetm more significant to the jury.” Sasser v, State, 993 S.W.2d 901 , 910
(Ark. 1999). “Because many lawvers refrain from objecting during opening statement and
closing argument, absent egregious misstatements, the failure to object during closing argument
and opening statement is within the wide range or permissible legal conduct.” [d, Kohn testified
that his decision not to object was strategic and Defendant has failed to disprove this claim,

therefore this Court must presume that Kohn acted effectively.

Defense counsel conld not arglue under Nevada law that character evidence
1

could not be considered unt
against the mitigators.

after the jury had weighed the aggravators

The defendant urges this Court to find that defense counsel was ineffective because he
did not propose a jury instruction followed by another jurisdiction despite Nevada's explicit
rejection of this premise. The Supreme Court of Nevada has rejected this premise in Lisle v,
State, 113 Nev. 679, 941 p.2d 459, 475 (1997). There is no Nevada authority which supports
the interpretation that character evidence cannot be considered until after the jury determines that
a defendant is death eligible. Id, A defendant’s character is relevant to the jury’s determination
of the appropriate sentence for a capital crime, it is not limited to only after the jury decides the
defendant is death eligible. Id, (Citations omitted) Character evidence is relevant to determine

the sentence. [d,
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Kohn tcstrﬁed that he dld not propose the jury mstructron because he wanted to focus on

|l the fact that because defendant had the final burden of provmg mitigation. (TT 32). Kohn
explained that at the time of dcfcndanr_ s trial, he believed this was true although later the N_e.vac_ia' | i : B
_ Supreme Court declined to adopt this position. (TT 12). At the time of trial, Kohn's decision |
5] to focus on the dcfcndant § burden of proving mmgatmg factors rather than ona proposed Jury. | '-
mstructron was a proper trial strategy ‘This Court should “not use hindsight to second~guess al -3
&1 tactrcal decision made by trial counse] which does not fall below the objective standard ofcare.” | | ]

M 792 S.W. 2d 95, 100 (Tex.Crim. App. ]990) Because Kohn’s strateg} was_ . |

reasonable at the tlme defendant has provrded 1o support for this ailegatlon of meffectlve- Y

assrstance of counsel.

B. INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF APPELLATE COUNSEL

1. Appellate counsel was correct in the decision not to raise a Batson issue.

The defendant 'ar_gued that appellate counsel should have raised a Batson issue ondirect | ¥
~appeal. His argument is that the State exercised a peremptory challenge against one of only two
' African-Americans left on the jury panel. The defendant objected citing Batson v, Kentucky, {
476 U.S. 79, 106 S.Ct. 1712 (1986). Appellate counsel was not ineffective for deciding not to
'brir_rg. this issue on appeal because the State provided a race-neutral explanation for challenging |

|| the prospective juror.

Batsop and its progeny set forth a three-step process for evaluating race-based objections |
to peremptory challenges. First, the opponent of the peremptory challenge must make a p_rima _

facie showing of racial discrimination. Once a prima facie showing has been made, the burden -

of production shifts to the proponent of the strike to come forward with a race-neutral

24 explanation. Purkettv. Elem, 514 U.S. 765, 767-68, 115 S.Ct. 1769, 1770-71 (1995). If a race-

25

' neutral explanation is tendered, step three requires the trial court to decide whether the opponent

- 26 | of the strike has proved purposeful racial discrimination. Id,

27

- 28

Counsel on appeal, Miller, testified at the evidentiary hearing. (TT 42). When asked why | '.
he did not raise a Batson issue on appeal, Miller said he had two reasons. (TT 44). First, the
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bclleved the juror was African-American, while others said they were unsure of the j juror’s race

i (TT 45) The prosecutor indicated to the trial court that he had nothing in hlS notes regardmg | -

thej Juror’s race. (3 ROA 813, 816). Miller stated that because of the unclarity of the j _]uror s race, 3

6 [ he decided this issue was unlikely to succeed on appeal and it was a tactical decision not to ralse' -

71 this issue. (TT 45).
B Defendant has not proven what was the race of the juror in question and also was unable

9 10 show that the State’s race-neutral explanation was invalid. The only notation the prosecutor |

11 decision. This was a race-neutral explanation. The Court in Purkett clearly stated that “the ¥
12 || ultimate burden of persuasion regarding racial motivation rests with, and never shifts from, the
13 § opponent of the strike.” Id. Defendant has failed to provide this Court with any evidence that |
14  the prosecutor was motivated by race when he sought to strike the juror. Therefore, Millei_"s
15 [| decision not to raise this issue on appeal 'fnust be considered a propcr tactical decision.

16 | _

171 2/3. ellate counsel was not ineffective in decldmg not to Petltmn the Court for
- iy : earmg

19 | According to NRAP 40(c)(2) rehearing may .only be considered by a court in the | .
21 }f amaterial matter in the record or otherwise, or ii) In such other circumstances as will promote
22 {i substantial justice. Whitchead v. Nevada Commission on Judicial Di cipling, 110 Nev. 380, |
23 jf 388, 873 P.2d 946, 952 ( 1994). Inmmhggg the petition was not considered proper because |

24 || it did not address any “material matter,” it simply asked the court to withdraw or change “faulty

25 assumptions, misstatements of fact and mischaracterizations of the legal arguments. .. .” Id,

a7 In his petition, the defendant contended that the court erred in a calculation of a date. At |

~10- PAWFDOCS\OPPIFOPPARCHIVE 308 30894002, WPD

!l had with regard to the | Jjuror was that he did not believe that she was capable of making a N

20|l following circumstances: I) When it appears that the court has overlooked or misapprehended | - |

26 {| The court held that rehearings are not granted to review matter of no material consequence. Id. L

- 28|l the evidentiary hearing, the defendant asked Miller if he had considered filing for a rehearing | - § :




based on this miscalculation. (TT 45). Miller admitted that his failure to point out to the
Supreme Court that they had miscalculated this time was not a strategical decision but rather |
'_oversight. (TT 47). Despite Miller’:s- oversight, his failure to seek a rehearing on .th'is matter was _ :
not deficient because this issue was of no material consequence. | |
When the defense asked for a continuation of the penalty hearing because it had not | B

H_ received the discovery indicating the defendant’s gang involvement, and .thcrefOre had n§ reason |
- to procure a gang expert for the penalty phase, the court incorrectly believed that the defense was | §

notified “almost a full year before the penalty hearing.” In fact, the defense was only notified | -

- R B - Y N S

of these facts a few days before the penalty hearing. It was not ineffective assistance of | - : )

e
=

appellate counsel to fail to raise this, however, because the Nevada Supreme Court indicated that | - .

-
i

i even if defense had time to secure a gang expert and present testimony, it would have done little | © -

(o
b

to mitigate the defendant’s involvement. Id, at 11,921 P.2d at 893.

—
H W

4.  The prosecution did not shift the burden to the defendant, so appellate |
counsel was not ineffcctive in failing to raise this issue. - ]

[
Lh

The defendant argued that when the prosecutor stated that neither the State nor the }

[T
-~}

Il defense had called an expert on how alcohol affects a person’s state of mind, that shified the | |

L

burden to the defendant. Trial counsel objected. The court commented that the jury “knows that

—
D

there is no burden. He’s just saying what was and was not presented at the time of trial.” The { - -

defendant argued that appellate counsel should have raised this issue on direct appeal.

I
>

At the evidentiary hearing, Miller explained that it was a tactical dec_isiori- not to raise this |

~
——

| i$sue on appeal. (TT 48). The trial court had remedied the problem at the time by saying that |
|| the jury knows that the defendant has no burden. (TT 48). Miller went on to testify that after | :

N
[FERE 8 ]

Il the objection was sustained, defense counsel did not make a motion to strike or a motion for

[0 T ¥
LV R

mistrial and that to the best of his recollection, that was probably the reason he did not appeal
 this issue. (TT 48). '
'Although Miller could have raised this issue on appeal, it likely would have failed

NN
B T -

because the trial court immediately remedied any harm caused by the prosecutor’s comments. | '

o0
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appeal. “Few aspecis of a jury trial are more committed to a district court’s discretion than the | g

In choosing not to raise this losing issue, Miller was effective because he recognized the {

"importance of winnowing out weaker arguments on appeal and focusing on one central issue :

if possiblc, or at most on a few key issues.” Jones, 463 U.S. 745, 751 -752, 103 S.Ct. 3308,3313, | - §
77 L.Ed.2d 987.( 1983). Because a "brief that raises every colorable issue runs the nisk of bur)?i'lig'
 good arguments...in a verbal mound made up of strong and weak contentions," had Miller raised | -

- this issue, the other issues that he did raise could have been compromised. Jones, 463 U.S. at

753,103 SCt at 3313. Accordingly, Miller acted effectively in not raising this uﬁpcrsuasive B

issue on appeal.

Appellate counsel was correct in not raising the issue of denial of trial
counsel’s challenge for cause of juror Miller. '

The defendant claimed that it was ineffective for counsel not to appeal the denial of trial

 counsel’s challenge for cause of a juror. The prospective juror Miller, in this case, had not [~

formed an opinion about the defendant’s guilt or innocence, but indicated that he would not }

consider the childhood of a defendant as a mitigating circumstance. Additionally, the court had | -

| previously instructed defense counsel not to use the term “mitigation™ during voir dire, as the
P Y g g

court could not conclude what would be allowed as mitigators at this point in the trial. (1 ROA

352-55). When questioned why attorney Miller did not raise this issue on appeal, he stated he

| could not remember his reason but thought he probably reviewed it and was aware of it. (TT

49).

decision whether to excuse a prospective juror for actual bias. Moreover, trial courts possess |- -
a peculiar ability to determine whether a prospective juror’s claimed ability to decide a case |
| impartially is genuine.” United States v. Claibome, 765 F.2d 784, 800 (Sth Cir. 1985). In
' .Ql_aim:ng, the district court determined that the prospective jurors in question on appeal would
weigh the evidence impartially despite their initial preconceptions of the defendant’s guiltor | -

innocence. Id. The fact that the defendant used peremptory challeng‘_es. to strike the two jurors, ..

-12- PAWPDOCS'\OPPFOPPARCHIVE30830894002.WPD
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the court found to be “not a denial of justice” but a “proper utilization of the peremptory tool.”
id, Likewise, in the instant case, the court found the jurors passed for cause. This was in the
court’s discretion, and had Miller raised the 1ssue on appeal, the court would have likely have
upheld the decision of the trial judge. Thus, Miller was not ineffective for choosing not to

appeal this losing issue.

?pgellate counsel was not ineffective in deci}t?ing not to address the reference
o the defendant’s acts of juvenile rape and violence in prison which came out
in the penalty phase.

Defendant argued it was ineffective for Miller not to appeal the admission of a certified
copy of the defendant’s prior bad acts. At the evidentiary hearing, Miller testifted that he
believed this evidence was admissible and so this issue would be unsuccessful on appeal. Miller
was correct that the evidence was admissible and therefore he was not ineffective for failing to
raise this 1ssue.

At trial, the defendant objected to evidence of prior bad acts, a bench conference took
place, and the following day, the defendant made a record of his objection to this information
being admitted citing D’ Agostino v, State, 107 Nev. 1601, 823 P.2d 283 (1991}, Upon reading
D’Agostino. it is distinguishable from the case at bar because in D Agostino a jail informant
testified that the defendant, while in prison, had told him that he had killed “some old man in
New York.” Id. at 1003, 823 P.2d at 284, The informant did not specify the time, place, or
identity of the man. Id, The Supreme Court of Nevada opined that absent these detatls, the
defendant was prejudiced by such unverifiable accusations. Id, The Court was careful to point
out, however, that “[pJast criminal activity is one of the most critical factors in the process of
assessing punishment.” Id, at 1004, 823 P.2d at 285. The opinion addressed specifically the
reliability of jail-house informants that are under pressure to cooperate with the State. Id.

in contrast, the information that came in regarding the defendant in the mstant case was
reliable. It was part of a certified copy of the record of the Department of Corrections that was
read verbatim to the jury by a parole officer. Additionally, it gave the year, place, age of the

defendant, and punishment imposed for the sex offense. Surely, this was not the kind of
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information that the Court was concerned about in D’ Agostino. Because this evidence was in-

- fact rcllab]c, it was properly admitted by the trial court, and Miller was not mcffectlve in 3

: -demdmg not to make a faulty argument on appeal.

7. Appeliate counsel did not err in deciding not to appeal the trial court’s L
“ decision to admit photographs of the scene, the murder weapon, and the .

autopsy into evidence.

Miller testified that he did not appeal the admission of photographs of the victim because . | I_ )
' the chance of prevailing was almost nonexistent. (TT 50). Miller testified that it was a stt‘ateéiti- I
decision not to appeal this issue because the Nevada Supreme Court is generally unwilling to -. ]
find admission of photographs error. The admission of photographs of victims, crime scenes, | | E
and weapons is within the sound discretion of the trial court, and absent ali_ abusé of thJ_"s' |

discretion, the decision will be upheld. See Greene v, State, 113 Nev. 157,931 P2d 54,60 | - |
(1997). In Wesley v, State, 112 Nev. 503, 916 P.2d 793, 800 (1996), the Supreme Court of =

| Nevada held that a trial court was justified and did not abuse its discretion when it admitted

_ ailtopsy' phbtographs of the murder victims.. The Court concluded that the p‘robat'ivc. value

outweighed the prejudice because the photographs assisted the jury in understanding the “namf_é | B

 and quality” of the wounds inflicted by the stabbings. Id. The photos also were used to explaiﬂ B

the findings of the autopsy. Id, Although the Court found the photographs to be “graphlc and }

1 troubling to human sensibility,” the trial court had not abused its discretion in allowing them.

In light of the Nevada Supreme Court’s reluctance to find the admission of photographs

1 to be abuse of discretion, Miller was not ineffective for choosing to appeal this issue. The

22 |t pictures in question included the interior and exterior of the cab, the knife used to murder the |

victim, and autopsy photos. The defendant é_rgued that there was no probative value because the |

defendant did not contest the identity of the victim, the cause of death, or the events of the

|l murder. However, the defendant plead not guilty, and the State had a responsibility to present

evidence to establish all the elements of the crimes. The trial judge determined that the |

probative value did outweigh the prejudice. Miller was not ineffective in decidihg to exclude

this unpersuasive argument in light of the Nevada case law.
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| The perfonnance of both tna.l and appellate counsel was effecnve The declslons the_
i attomeys made were tacnca] and i in the best i interest of their client. In hght of the overwhehnmg _-

ev:dence of gmit the defendant was not prejudlced by any c.f the dCCISl(mS of elther tnal or?'
{ appel]ate counsel " Thus, the State respecifully requests that t]'us Court deny the defendant’
Supplemental Pomts and Authonnes 1in Support of his Petition for Wnt of Habeas Corpus (Post;f
Con\rlctlon) ' T T
DATED -this;?._.-aay of September, 2000.
N  Respectfully submitted,
STEWART L.BELL

DISTRICT ATTORNEY .
Nevada Bar #000477 s

—

2N =S o ® 3o w

BY. e .
EDWARD R.J. KANE
- Chief DeBputy District Attorney

N_evada ar #001438

200 RECEIPT OF A COPY of the above and foregomg STATE’S SUPPLEMENTAL | |
o I OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANT’S PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS (POST--: o
" CONVICTION) is hereby acknowledged thxs _i__ day ofSeptcmber 2000. o
'DAVID M. SCHIECK, ESQ.

.

302 E Carson Ave #600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
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| DAVID M. SCHIECK, ESQ.
| Nevada Bar No. 0824
302 E. Carson, #600
- Las Vegas, NV 89101

1 702-382-1844
‘Attorney for WITTER

DISTRICT COURT
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E R I

W 60w O U B 0 DD e 2L

- CASE NO. C 117513

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
' DEPARTMENT NO. XV

Plaintiff,

b

|vs.

- e e

WILLIAM LESTER WITTER,

DATE: = 2-26-99
TIME: 9:00 a.m.

.
Red

Déféndant.
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DEFENDANT’S POST HEARING BRIEF
~IN SUPPORT OF PETITION
i svtindubiind : .

COMES NOW, Petitioner WILLTIAM LESTER WITTER, by and

g* 14
g

.;Z
2

g
it
Wy

J§¥ 

“David M. Schieck

-
=y

fth:oﬁgh his attorney DAVID M. SCHIECK, ESQ., and submits the

e

 fo;1owiﬁg Post Hearing.Brief in support of the Eetitibn for
['Hrit of Habeas-COIpus;7_- | |
STATEMENT OF THE CASE -

'f;wILLIAM LESTER'WITTER”(néreinafﬁer feféfred to as.ﬁlTTEﬁ}
;Qastcharged wifh.Murder with use of a'peadly Weapbn: Attehpt
}Murder with use of & Deadiy Weapon; Attempt sexual Asséu;t.with_;' o
'fﬁseuof-a.oeadiy'Weépon; and Burglary-élleging tﬁat_oﬁ-@r.abqut b
:.'¢ §th§.i4tH day of'November, 1993'WITTER wilifully and:ﬁith maiicé__{::f;.

-ﬂ fanreth0ught killied james_Cbx;during'the commission Of.burglarYQ'
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and attempt sexual assault of Kathryn Cox. The Preliminary
Hearing was held on January 7, 1994 and WITTER Wwas bound over
ont all charges.

the Eighth Judicial District Court,

Department IX on January 25, 1994, entered pleas of not guilby

A AT R " I X

to all of the counts. Also on January 25, 1994 the State filed

its Notice of Intent teo Seek the Death Penalty,

WITTER'S trial commenced in June, 1995 and lasted 8 days,

O w3

and the jury returned a verdict of Guilty on all counts, The

enaity hearing lasted 4 days and the Jury returned a verdiot
P Y : ¥ Y

of death by lethal injection. The Judgment of Conviction was

entered on August 4, 1995,

WITTER pursued an appeal and the Public Defender’s Cffice

. Attornay At Law
302 £, Carson Ave., Ste. 800
{702} 382-1844

was appointed. The Nevada Supreme Court issued its Opinicn on

Las Vegas. NV 83101

>
)
09
£
it
»
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July 22, 1998 affirming the conviction and sentence. Rehearing
\was deniod on December 13, 1996, WITTER'S Petition for Writ of
Certiorari was denied by the United States Suprems Court on May
12, 1997,

A Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post Conviction} was
timely filed October 27, 1997, and an evidentiary hearing

conducted on February 26, 1999,

For purposes of this Post Hearing Brief, WITTER
incorporates by this reference the statement of Facts and
related information from his Supplemental Points and

Authorities filed in Support of the Petition for Writ of Habeas

Corpus,




STATEMENT OF FACTS

On February 26, 1999 an evidentiary hearing Was conducted
with the following Lestimony eiicited:
Philip Kohn had been & iicensed attorney since 1978 in

' california and since 1985 1in Nevada. (RT 3} He was employed

by the Clark County public Defender from November, 1892 through
January, 1999 at which rime he became the Clark County Special
q public Defender. [(RT 3} He hecame the head of the murder team

I LHESS Novembaer 1994, (RT 4}

12

111 Tn November or December 1893 he was assigned to act as
A
s

122!lead attorney for WITTER. (RT 4) Kedric Bassett served as
|

13}isecond chair when the case proceeded to rrial in June, 18%5.

14 tohn became aware of fetal alcohol syndrome (FAS)

15

{702} 3621844

Aliormaey Al Law
02 &. Carson fSve., Ste. 600

approximately during the summer of 1994 and undertook to

Las Vegas, NV 891D

pDavid M. Schieck

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

27, The Court had denied Kohn's last reqguest for continuance

investigate wherther such 4a defense could be present in WITTER’ S

3

He, however, never hired ap expert in FAS,
which he admitted was a mistake. (RT 7) There was a picture

of WITTER put into evidence when he was two or three years old

FAS.  (RT 9) In June 1995 when they went to trial Kohn had

|
i
|
in which his eyes look like they are right out of the book on E

made contact with FAS experis wut had not retained them nor met

them in person. {RT 10)

% when he was working on FAS as a defense because he could shot
971} that WITTER was retarded. (RT 10} WITTER'S adolescent

behavior was also consistent with FAS in rhat he was well




behaved until he was' 14 and first started to drink and that was
when he started getting in trouble. (RT 11}

One pxoblem.that Kchn had was that the experts required a

geneticist to examine WITTER and he could net find one. (RT
_12—13} He could have made arrangements for a geneticist but he
needed one more continuance from the Court and the request was

-denled. {RT 15) In chambers the trial judge told Kohn that if

© 60 =1 G G Ee G N e

ehe had 0.J.’s money he could do something like this, but did

not believe Kohn could ever get it on. (RT 15) Kohn was

-y
=

|unable to give the trial court a time from as to when the

Y
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et
L

1 doctors would be able to come to Las Vegas and conduct the

B

necessary examinations. (RT 17} Kohn was emphatic in chambers

o
it

‘that a great deal could be done in the penalty phase; {RT 18}
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o
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At the penalty hearing Kohn laid the foundation for a FAS

[~ ]
:’.

‘defense through witnesses about WITTER'S mother’s alcohol

9
.13
F
L
-1

—h
-}

problems. (RT 19)

o

The State presented evidence at the penalty hearing that

oy
0

WITTER was a member of a gang. (RT 20) Kohn had no notice

=

"that such.evidence.was going to be presented. (RT 21} When

M
p—t

‘the State indicated that it'woﬁld'be calling experts on gangs

R

from California, Kohn asked for a continuance, which was
': -denied.. (RT 22} '1f he had eny idea what Qas coming he would

It nave called a gang expert. {RT 23) He'believed he cculd get a
e:gang expert from Callfornla on short notlce but not within the

| next four days between-verdlct and the scheduled start of_the

'penalty hearing. (RT 24}




Kohn had no plan of defense for the guilt portion of the
trial, his only goal was to keep WITTER from.receiving the
death penalty. (RT 26) Kohn tried to keep as much credibility
t'as possible in the guilt phase so the jury would listen to_him
._ﬁin the penalty phase. (RT 26) WITTER was not happy about this
 as he wanted to win the case. (RT 27} Kohn was sétisfied that
{{was no defense Eo the murder charge and that to come up with
some half-baked idea to give the jury would have turned them
 0ff;' (RT 27) It was a strategic decision not to present a .
:défenée dﬁring the guilt phase; {RT 285 ‘1t was ﬁot his intent
 td waive objeétion te the preSentation of the State's evidence.
.(RT 28}

Kohn testified concerning the failure to'object to

. -hflorney At Law .
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in the argument section below. {(RT 28-31) Some of the
.failﬁres to object were strategic and some were because he
'.missed them. . (RT 31)

Kohn did not submit a jury instruction at the penalty
:Pﬁase limited use of.chafacter evidence,.but has since done so.
_(RT.32} He didn’t argue it in WITTER’S case but should have
 fd§ne so. {RT 32) It was not a strategic decision. (RT 33)

| Kohn tfies cases differently now as a result of continued
?;raining, expérience; and the evolution of issues,. {RT.34-35}"
'.If 5e tfied WITTER’S case over again he would get a much better
trial this time_and he would have done things differently. {(RT

395)




® o Y
Robert Miller, a twenty year attorney with the Clark
fCounty Public Defender’s Office prepared the direct appeal in
WITTER'S case. (RT 43) Miller had not raised the Batson issue
On.direct appeal because he felt it wasn’t a clean issue_to
present and that he did not have a chance to succeed based. on
| the record. (RT 44-45) Miller felt it'was.incumbent upon him

to raise all issues which he felt might have merit in both the

W e e S o R W N e

' federal or state system. (RT 45-48)

Miller failed to point out in his request for rehearing of

- i
-

the denial of the direct appeal that the Court had incorrectly

i
o

| stated that Kohn had a year’s notice of a shank being found in

[
e

I WITTER’S cell. (RT 46-~47) Miller simply missed the point.

{RT 47)
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Miller did not raise the burden shifting argument of the
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State in closing argument because the objection had been

b
‘l.

sustained and the jury admonished. ({RT 48) Miller could not

._..
o0

'recall why he had raised the jury selection issue invelving

-t
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consideration of wmitigation. (RT 49} The bad acts from the

»
(==

-PSI_waS not raised because Miller did not believe it would

nN
-

_succeéd, but if he was doing it over would raise the issue.

B

{RT 50}  Finally, Miller did not raise the admission of
gruesomé photographs because he did not believe it would

i} succeed in State court or turn the tide in federal ccurt. (RT




ARGUMENT
T.

WITTER RECEIVED INEFFECTIVE
STANC '

The Sixth Améndment-guarantees that a person accused of a
crime receive effective assistance of counsel for his defense,
- The rigﬁt extends from the time the accused is charged up to
:an& through his direct appeal énd includes effective assistance

tfor any arguable legal points. Anders v, Califorpia, 386 U.S.

738, 87 S.Ct. 1396, 18 L.Ed.2d 493 (1967). The United State

8O0 = & W W N e
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| Supreme Court has consistently recognized that the right to

-
o

counsel is necessary to protect the fundamental right to a fair

i
&3

' trial, gﬁaranteed under the Fourteenth AmendMent‘s Due Process
‘Clause. PRowell v. Alabama, 287 U.S. 45, 53 S.Ct.55, 77 L.Ed.
1158 (1932); Gideon v, Waipwright, 372 U.S. 335, 83 S.Ct. 792, 9

L.Ed.2d 799 (1963). Mere presence of counsel does not fulfill
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-
[ LB

. Afiorney At Law

302 E. Carsen Ave,,-Ste. 500
“Las Vagas, NV 89101

—
[z}

1
. Nl
m.
.~
o ®
A

b
)

the constitutional requirement: The right to counsel is the

-

right to effective counsel, that is, "an attorney who plays the

.iole'neceSSary to ensure that the trial is fair.” Strickiand,
._466 0.5. 668, 104 S.Ct. 2052, 80 L.Ed.2d 657 (1984); McMann v,
Richardson, 439 U.S. 759, 771, 90 S.Ct. 1441, 25 L.Ed.2d. 763
 (1970) . |

| A; SPaéific areas of deficiont‘parformancé 5y txiﬁl

: counsgl_inc;uda the following as allegnd.in-th§ Petition filed
| herein and are supborfad by the esvidentiary hearing:

1. Failure to Investigate and Present Evidence at the




Trial Portion of the Case on Fetal Alcohol Syndrome.

During the evidentiary hearing Kohn testified.that he was
aware of FAS as mitigation of sentence priér to the
commencement of the trial. Despite being affordéd a number of
| continuances to present the defénse'he failed to succeed'in
doing so and then was denied a final contipuance. The record
1 in this regard speaks.for itself. Prior to the second day of
Jury sélection Kohn admitted on the record'thaf he -was not
fuily prepared for trial:

“"MR. KOHN: ... Last Thursday, before calendar
call, we met in chambers and the District Attorney
and the Court and I talked about my client’s previous
motion to have me relieved as counsel, bhecause he
wanted someone to look at the FAS, in terms of a
defense to his case.

I think that’s what was confusing yesterday on
. the record as to the 25th and all that. But in any
case, I asked the Court for one more continunance;
that T was satisfied that I did not have a defense to
the trial phase; but in talking to experts in
Seattle, Washington, it seemed there was a great deal
that could be done in. terms of the penalty phase.

E
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And I did not advise the Court that T had an
expert on retainer, and I don’t, and the Court pretty
muach said ....simply denied my motion to contlnue the
case.” {(II, p.3)
The record shows that the case was first set for trial on
' October 14, 1994 and continued on defense motion over the
objection of the State. The trial was reset for May 1, 1995
-1] and again continued over the State’s objection at the request
of the defense. Both requests were to find an expert on fetal

|| Alcohol Syndrome. The State objected to the final continuance

"5.and the Court sided with the State:




STHE COURT: The Court’s recollection of that
motion in chambers was very much as the State pubt it
and that s, I had granted a couple continuances in
the past to give the defendant net only time to
procure a witness, put in fairness to the defendant’s
case, 1 through it was important that the Court go
fhe extra mile in giving you time Lo procure an
expert witness as to rhe Fetal Alcchol Syndrome.

And in the Court’s memory, the Court has given them
ajimost a year to do that. And counsel keeps telling
me what progress he nasn’t made and the problems
involved in doing that, but has made very little
progress in actually finding an expert who'll restify

inn this casea.

and counsel asked for maybe three more weeks to
do that, and the Court didn*t think it reasonable,
Mpr. Kohn, to put off the ryial once agaln, gight at
the last minute, to give you three weeks for
something you haven’t been able to do in more than &
year, and have no 1eads really on people who have
agreed to come down and do it, and that’s why the
Court dented the coptinuance.”  (I1, p. 4-51

Konn presented no evidence of the effects of intoxication

Attorngy Al Law
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guilty of all of the charges in order Lo maintain his

credibility with the jury. as evidenced by the record, WITTER
wanted FAS presented as a defense to the charges and gid not
agree to the having his guilt conceded to the Jjury.

There is uncontradicted authority that trial counsel may

never, concede a defendant’s guilt before a Jury without the
consent of the client. Wwhen counsel concedes guilty during the
trial peortion of the case in spite of the client’s earllier plea
of not guilty and without the defendant’s consent, counsel
provides ipeffective assistance of counsel regardless of the

weight of the evidenue against the defendant or the wisdom of




counsel’s “honest approach” strategy. Frapncis v. 2Praggins,

720 £.2d 1190 {1ith Cir. 1983} {cert. denied, 470 U.g. 1059,

105 5.Ccr. 1776 (1985} }; Wiley v. 2owders, €47 F.2d 642 {6th

Cir. 1981) (cert. denied 454 U.3. 1091, 102 5.Ct. 656 (1981);

State v, Harbisop, 337 3.E.24 504 (N.C. lQBS}(Cert.denied, 476

V.30 1123, 106 s.0¢. 1852 (1386)). The adversarial process

protected by the Sixth Amendment requires that the accused have
|
!counsel acting in the role of the advocate, The right to the

effective assistance of counsel is thus the right of the
!

accused to require rhe Prosecution’s case to survive the

crucible of meaningful adversarial testing. U.S. V. CLQDLC, 466

U.S. 648, 656, 104 5.C1. 2039, 2045 {1584,

It is respectfully asserted that WITTER was denied

Altorney At § aw
{702} 382-1844

302 E. Carson Ave | Sle 809
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his trial attorney conceded his guilty at the trial portion

without his consent .,

2. Failure to Investigate and Present Evidence at the
Penalty Hearing.

During the evidentiary hearing Kohn admitted that he could
have obtained a d9ang expert from California to contest that

State’s gang experts, but indicated that he dig not have

sufficient time to get the expert. However, a closer look at
Kohn's testimony showed that he Was no notice and shouldg have

had the expert or board and ready to testify:

Q. HWould it have been prudent, based on those
tattoos, to perhaps investigate whether Or not he had
any gang ties and there was any information that

10




might come up at the benalty hearing?

A. Mr., Witter and I discussed gang involvement .,
I knew that he had been in the California Youth
Authority. T knew that he had been in the California
Prison System.

I practice law in California for 14 years and 1T
have been a prosecutor in California. I was
certainly aware of prison gangs.,

Would it have boen prudent?  Probably. 71 never
saw it coming. His only -- the only way to get in
gangs, to me, 1s ~- when I am reading bis file, is to
show that at some point in his life he was a member
of a gang that I would think weuld be so improper
under the First Amendment. That never crossed my
mind they would actually put on that evidence.” (RT
23).

Thus 1t is clear that Kohn was not blind sided by the State byt

rather ignored the information in the hope that the State would

not put it into evidence. The Court saw through this in

Alorney Al Law
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“Now counsel comes again, at this time, July
10th, at the time of the penalty hearing, and 5ays,
once again, they havenp’t had enough time to do
whatever it is they need to do.

And I have to inform counsel, again -- and I do
it again on the record, generally these penalty
nearings are held within two, threa, four days after
trial, and that’'s enough time to prepare.

Counsel, at the time this trial started, said he
wasn't ready. After a yaar and half of preparation
in this case, he st31] said he didn't have his
experts and couldn’t get experts and wanted a3
continuance atb that time, and the Court denied it,
because the Court felt like they'd had enough time to
prepare.

Defense counsel has consistently said they
wanted a continuance because they haven’t had time to
prepare.

Even since last Thursday, that’s peen four days

I




togprepare for this penalty hearing; and defense

counsel has access to the defendant all during those
days, and all during the 12 or so days we’ve had

since the time of the trial, has had ac¢cess to his
client.” ({IX, p 21~22)

The record shows that no gang expert was called by the
defense to explain away the graphic testimony about gangs and

viclence. Neither was any witness called, either expert cor

non-expert,  to explain that possession of a shank in prison is

O 00 w1 S T e W N e

more a matter of simple survival than any indicia of violent

character.

- -
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3. Trial counsel failed to object to improper argument

during the opening statement of the prosecutor,

d C ad
7 B X

bDuring the evidentiary hearing Kohn was guestioned

H..
e

.conterning his failure to object to the various claimed
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“...She will tell you she will never forget the
look on the defendant’s face as she looked into his
eyes, and she’ll describe the evilness she saw on the
defendant’s face that night” (v, p. 14)

o [T~ T -

respect to this argument Kohn stated:

he:
]

“I knew it was close, that was, at that point
tactically I was trying to still carry favor with the
jury, and my feeling was, unless it was something
truly objectionable that would have been maybe
reversible. So, yes, I recall that. I remember

. hearing it, and I remember, you know, the hair on the
"~ back of my neck bristling, but I didn’t think this
was worth the objection” (tr. 29).

B

The prosecutcr further argqued:
“And the defendant then begins to approach

Thomas Pummil and he’s coming at Thomas Pummil, and
Thomas Pummil toeo, like Kathryn Cox, sees evilness in

12




this man and'realizes there’s something wrong and
" this man is bent on doing heinous, helnous evil
things” (V. 20)

| Kohn stated:

“I don’'t remember this one as well, but-cértainly
that was my thinking at the time, it is not egregious, let
it go” {tr. 29} '

The prosecuto

“The eVLdence will prove this was a senseless
murder; that a loving husband’s life was lost in an
effort to save his wife; that his wife, Kathryn Cox
was subjected to evilness that many of us can’t even
imagine, the perpetration of sexual acts, the
repeated stabbing and the intrusion into her car that
evening as she awaited her husband.” (V P. 32)

Kohn's explanations: .

“Again, same answers. to evilness in terms of
reference to that as being penalty phase. Victim
impact ‘in that didn’t hit me. It hit me that
paragraph was too argumentatlve. At the time it hit
me, but T could tell he is winding down. It was
argumentative and that goes to evilness, but I didn’t
think it was worth interjecting at the time” (tr.
-30}. '
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" David M. Schieck

The prosecutor-

“Kathryn Cox will testify to not only the
physical scars that this crime has left on her, but
the emotional scars. The crime scene she sees again
and again in her mind, as she will tell you she will
never forget the defeéndant and his face, the tone of
his voice and his actions that night as he

perpetrated these evil acts.” (V, p. 27)

| Kohn’s response:

-“Probably goes outside the bounds of telling the
jury what they will hear. That's not for me to
decide....I missed it” (tr. 31)

It is IespéctfullYgurgéd that WITTER was'denied'his right -

" to the effective assistance of counsel by'the failure of his




'attorney to object and prevent improper and prejudicial
farguments to the trial jury during the opening statement and
that same denied WITTER to due proéess of law and a
:fundamentally fair trial.

4. Triai counsel failed to offer an instruction that
informed the jury that character evidence could not be

':considered by the jury until after it had weighed the

‘aggravating circumstances against the mitigating.

[
o=

With respect to this claim Kohn admitted that he should

ik
L]

| have raised the issue and that it was not a strategic decision

'R

on his part {(tr. 32-33). Subsequent to the evidentiary hearing

e

in this case the Nevada Supreme Court has expressly indicated

i'that the instruction should be given in capital cases.

(702 382-1844
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Court approved of an instruction that told the jury in relevant

-]

part:

-
e

“[olther arrests, conduct or bad acts, if any
committed by ...[the defendant] are to be considered
for character only and not as aggravating
circumstances.

BEE G

Evidence of any uncharged crimes, bad acts or
character evidence cannot be used or considered in
determining the existehce of the alleged aggravatlng
circumstance or circumstances”™
Trial ccunsel was 1neffect1Ve in not offering an

_'instruction in accord with the above cases and WITTER was

:pfejudiced thereby.




B. Specific areas of deficient paxformanca'by appellate
| counsel wers included in the Petition and Supplement filed

ﬁergin.and the subject of-tcetimpny at the avidentiaxry hegring:
| Just as with the testimony of trial counsel the
 evidentiary hearing testimonywof appellate counsel.is provided
 with respect to each allegation:
| 1. Appellate counsel failed to aigue to the Nevada
| Supremé Court that WITTER’S Due Process Riéhts-were ﬁioiated by
the State’s exclusion of minerities from the jury panei.

With respect to this claim which is set forth in detail in

| the Supplemental Points and Authorities filed herein, appellate
counsel explained his failure to raise the issue as follows:

“7 felt in reviewing the transcripts that issue .
had just become too -- waters had become too muddy on
it. Tt wasn’t a clean issue to present. For one
thing, there was a dispute as to some people thought
she was black, some people thought that she wasn't.
This is just off the straight transcripts. . That was
unclear whether the juror was even black. There was
also the contaminating effect, if you will, that the
defendant was not black and the objection was going
to the exclusion of a black juror, and also the fact
that the State stated a race neutral reason for
exercise of the peremptory challenge. Based on that
1 felt it got muddled enough. It was not a clean
enough issue to raise. 1 didn’t have a chance of
succeeding” {tr. 45)
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A proper objection had been raised by Kohn undex Batson v,
Kentucky. (IV, P. 117-118).

“MR. KOHN: I believe his right to trial under
the Fourteenth, Sixth and Seventh amendments is
violated by them striking people of color. We are
down to two black people, she’s one of the two.

THE COURT: First off, I should note the
defendant isn’t a person of color, so I think it’s an

15




‘unusual challenge, but I’1l let the State put on
their reasons.

MR. GUYMON: Your Honor, I agree with your
reading of the Batson case. My notes, I did not
reflect anything about her race at all. My notes —-
my statement as to 87 is absolutely blank,
indifference as to race, other than the fact I put I
did not believe she was capable of making a decision.

THE COURT: I should note I didn’t know she was
Hispanic or anything either. Her name is Elois Kline
Brown. 1It‘’s not a -- you say she’s black?

MR. KOHN: She's black, your Honor.

S o w1 @ W e W N

THE COURT: I wasn't aware of that either,
‘counsel.

— -
-

T not that for the record and I overrule it in
this matter, because I don’t think it even applies in
this instance.” (IV, p. 118}.

- ek
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It has long been the law that a defendant has the right to

be tried by a jury whose members are selected pursuant to non-
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26 S.Ct. 338, 339 (1906); Batson v, Kentucky, 476 U.S. 79, 106
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1s5.Ct. 1712 (1986). The exercise of peremptory challenges by

the government in a racially discriminatory manner violates a

bk
L=

| defendant’s right to equal protection. A defendant may

= b
- O

establish a prima facie case under Bafgon by showing that “he

S

is a member of a cognizable racial group and that the
prosecutor has exercised.peremptory challenges fo remove from

' the venire members of the defendant’s race.” Batsopn, 476 U.S.
| at 96, 106 5.Ct. at 1723. Second, the defendant is entitled to
rely on the fact thét peremptory challenges constitute a jury

éelection practice that permits “those to discriminate who are

i6
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of a mind to discriminate.” &\fﬁmwg;glg, 345 U.8. 559,

562, 73 S.Ct. 891, 892 (19853). Finally, the defendant must

show facts sufficient to raise an inference of interest by the

- government to discriminate based on all of the relevant

circumstances. Batson, 476 U.S. at 96, 106 5.Ct. at 1723,

'If a defendant presents a prima facie case of

: discrimination, the burden shifts to the government to come

| forward with a racially neutral explanation for the use of its
' strikes. To satisfy this requirement, the proffered reasons
'must bear some relationship to the case at bar. TIf the
-government offers éxplanatibns.that are facially neutral, a

defendant may nevertheless show purposeful discrimination by

proving the explanation pretextual. U.,S. v. Joe, 928 F.Z2d 99,

102 {4th Cir. 1991).

Trial counsel made a valid Batgson objection to the first
strike exercised by the State -- a strike that removed 50% ofz

the Africaneﬂmericans'that had been c¢leared for cause.

'Appellate counsel should have raised a constitutional challenge
;to the jury selection, both because the issue had merit and to:
:preserve the issue for further review if nécessary;. It was a
'fviolaticn of the Sixth Amcndment to fail to raise the issue on

| appeal.

2. Failure to Petition the Court for Rehearing on

Clear Errors Contained in the Supreme Court’s Opinicn.

in addressing'the issue concerning the continuance of the

| penalty hearing to allow time to obtain a gang expert, the

17




_'Nevada Supreme Court stated that:
“In the present case, on June 20, 1995, almost a full
year before the penalty hearing, the State notified
Witter’'s counsel that it was investigating an alleged
disciplinary problem (possession of a shank)
Cipvolving Witter”
The record is clear that the pendalty hearing occurred in
July, 1995, The Supreme Court was operating under a false

| factual belief when it issued it’s opinion affirming WITTER'S

| penalty. Appellate counsel was obligated to bring such a

Pl
=

glaring error to the court’s attention and attempt to obtain a

-k
1

{| rehearing on the issue. When asked why the issue was not

Joum
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{ raised to correct the glaring error, appellate counsel stated

b
[}

at the evidentiary hearing that “I think I just flat out missed

—
v

. that one.” (tr. 47}
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the burden of proof. During the closing argument of the State
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at the trial phase of the proceedings the following occurred:

b
v

"I submit to you that there has been no evidence
of how alcohol affects a person’s state of mind and
their intent or their ability to form intent, or just
what effect alcohol may or may not have to impair a
personfs state of mind or intent, Neither the State

‘nor the defense called a witness tec that effect.
There is no evidence of mental impairment.

B8

MR. KOHN: Your Honor, I’d object. Counsel is
commenting on what we did and we have no burden. I
think that is improper.

THE COURT: That’'s true. The jury knows that
there is no burden. He’s just saying what was and
was not presented at the time of trial.” {Vol. VIIT,
pﬁ 66)- . )

It is generally outside the bounds of proper argument to

18




! comment on a defendant’s failure to call a witness. Colley v,
axggg,.98 Nev. 14, 16, 639 P.2d 530, 532 (1982). This can be
viewed as impermissibly shifting the burden of procf to the
|| defense. Barren v. State, 105 Nev. 767, 778, 783 P.2d 444, 4561
:{1989}. Such'shifting is improper because “[i]t suggests to
ffthe:jury that it was the defendant’s burden to produce proof by -
- explaining the absence of witnesses or evidence. This |
 'iﬁplication is clearly inaccurate. Ba;;gn, 105 at 778. See
-also;_agss v, State, 106 Nev. 924, 803 P.2d 1104 (1990): lIp re
:Hinghig, 397 U.s. 358 (1970). |
Appellate counsel gave the following reasoning fér not
raising the issue on diréct appeal:

“I think my thinking on that was that at that
point the objection was made and basically the
objection was sustained. Mr. Kohn made the
objection. I think the Court’s response was
something iike, that’s right. The jury knows there
is no shifting of the burden, the then the court went
on to make some explanation as to how it interpreted
the comment. Basically what you has was an obijection
and standing of the objection, and, no as far as I
recall, no follow up after that with a motion to
strike or with a motion for mistrial, and to the best
of my recollection, that probably, the failure or the
lack of those motions is the reason that I didn't
follow up on it.” (tr. 48).

Las Vegas, NV 89101
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.4; Failure to raise the denial of trial counsel’s
':challehge for cause of juror.Miller. During voir dire ﬁriai
ic_'ounse_l.challenged‘juror Miller for cause and same was denied
:'by the Court:_

| "MR. KOHN: Do you believe the way in which a

defendant was raised in important to your decision as
to penalty? '




MR. MILLER: No.

MR. KOHN: Can you explain that?

MR. MILLER: T think the individual should be
accountable for his self. How he was raised —- I was
raised in the coal country. It didn’t bother me. 1
went to school. Everybody has the same
opportunities. I think it’s what you make of
yourself.

MR. KOHN: So if we put on evidence of a bad
childhood, that’s not something you would consider in
mitigation stage; is that correckt?

MR. MILLER: Yes.

KOHN: You would not consider it, right?

MR. MILLER: No, I would not consider it.

MR. KOHN: Your Honor, I would ask he be struck
for cause.” (IV pages 38-39}.

after the Court inquired, juror Miller changed his

(7029) 382.1844

L Anormney AL Law
302 £, Carson Ave., Ste. 600

testimony and stated that he would consider the evidence of

Las Vegas, MV 895101

| childhood, but then when Mr. Kohn again asked him, Miller
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stated that he may not have to agree and that he really dldn't
!l +hink that childhood mattered (IV, p.42). Kohn then renewed
“the challenge for cause and the Court again denied same {IV,
45). At the next break a full record was made concerning the
1l challenge (IV, p.53-57).

At the end of the preempt process, KOHN was required to
use his last preempt against Miller (IV, p. 126}, and then
notéd that there was another jury that he_would have preempted
Iif he had not had to use his last one on Miller (IV, p. 141);
In Thompson v. State, 111 Nev. 439, 894 P.2d 375 (1995)

the Nevada Supreme Court reversed a conviction of four counts

20




of robbery with use of a deadly wéapon based on the faiiu;e of
the trial court to grant a_Challenge for cause as to one |
._potenfial juror. In reversing the conviction the Court noted,
;and cited with approval, Bryant v. State, 72 Nev. 330, 305 p.2d
360 {1956} that: o

“It is not enough to be able to point to detached
language which, alone considered, would seem to meet
the statutory requirement, if, on construing the
whole declaration together, it is apparent that the
juror is not able to express an absolute belief that
his opinion will not influence his verdict.”

.Bzxﬂnif 72 Nev. at 334-35.
The Thompson Court then went on to state that:

. “We also conclude that it was prejudicial error
that prospective juror number eighty-nine was not
excused for cause. At the conclusion of voir dire,
the defense had exhausted all four of its peremptory
challenges. Therefore, if the defense had used one of
its peremptory challenges to excuse prospective juror
number eighty~-nine, then a jurer that was
unacceptable to the defense would have remained on
the J ury-” . . L

. _ Afiormey AvLaw _
T A02 E. Carson Ave., Ste_ 600 .
Las Vegas, NV 89101
{T02) 382-1844
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| Thompson, 111 Nev. at 442-443. Kohn cited the Thompson Case.ﬁo
_'the.00urt during his challenge to juror Miller. The matter was
- properly preServed and a vaiid.issue and should have been
raised on direct appeal. When aéked_to.explain his reasoning

| in not raising the issue appellate éounsel testified;

Q0  Why not?

A I really don’'t recall why I didn’t raise that
on appeal.

Q- So it is possible you missed it or possible
.-you didn't believe it had any merit?

A I think I probably reviewed it and was aware
of it, but as far as to what my specific reasoning on

21




it was, I don't recall.” (tr. 49)

5. Appéllate éounsel_failed.to raise the issue of tenuous
and specious evidence to support the allegations of juvenile
 rape and force and violence in prison. During the course of
the benalty hearing trial counsel objected to the WITTER’S
parole officer reading into the record a history that was nbt

supported by sufficient factual specificity or correboration:

@ g s T N e W N e

“MR. KOHN: Yes, Your Honor.

When the State placed in evidence yesterday the
parol evidence, I approached the Bench and objected,
and the Court -- I assume the Court meant I could put
on the record later my objection.

N e O

THE COURT: Sure.

[y
]

MR. KOHN: There were two considerations. One
was about @ rape. There’s one line in the report
that talks about a rape when he was 15; did some
juveniie hall time.

[
o

3
3
<
2
y 2
<

(702) 382-1844.
[
¥

_Las Vagas, NV 85101 - .

402 €, Carson Ave., Ste, 600

. b
&

Doesn’t discuss if it’s a misdemeanor, felony or
even if there was an adjudication.

There was also a line that Miss Rose testified
to, as to an incident of force and viclence in the
prison, but never tells what it was or what the
allegation were. And my concerrn is that you have
these bald allegations without any type of
explanation.

And I was looking at the b’Agostino, cap b-a-g-
o-s-t-i-n-o0, versus State, 107 Nevada 1001, and T
believe that is just the type of evidence that they
meant to exclude. And I asked the Court to exclude
it and the Court indicated it was going to allow that
evidence anyway.” (X, p.65). :

The language and reasoning of the Court, in Q_Aggﬁx;ng

has broad appllcatlon to the admission of ev1dence of any priorxr




crimes:

“__.but it should be remembered that in death cases
the procf of other crimes is intended not to show the
guilt of the accused but, rather, to display the
character of the convict and to show culpability and
just deserts on the party of the homicidal convict.
past criminal activity is one of the most critical
factors in the process of assessing punishment, for
whatever purpose punishment might be inflicted. Past
misconduct relates to the criminal’s blameworthiness
for the charged homicide and relates, as well, to
whether the jury deems it necessary for public safely
to impose an irrevcécable, permanent quarantine upon
the murderer...Improperly admitted evidence of past
criminal conduct is even more damaging in a penalty
hearing than it is in a guilty-determining proceeding
because the past conduct goes to substance of whether
the murder should or should not be punished by
death....”

D’ Agosting, 107 Nev. at 1003-4.
Appeilant counsel was ineffective in not raising this

| issue on direct appeal. When questioned at the evidentiary

Attorney At Law
302 €, Carson Ave,, Sie, 800
{702} 382-1844
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! hearing he explained:
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“I think my thinking at that time was probably

that in light of the Crutch opinion that may well

have been -- that the Crutch opinion may have closed

that door. 1In retrospect, I am not so sure I make

the same decision now. If I were writing that

opinion, that appeal again today, I might well have

included that.” (Tr. 50).

6. Appellate counsel failed to raise the issue concerning
the admission of gruesome and prejudicial photographs which had
been preserved for appeal by trial counsel. At numerous times
during the proceedings, trial counsel objected to the use of
unnecessarily bloody and gruesome photographs on the grounds

that the probative value of the photographs was outweighed by

their prejudicial impact. The objections were tO photographs




of the bloody interior and exterior of the cab (VI, p-11; 69),
1 the bloody knife (VI, p. 6), and autopsy photographs.
Appellate counsel failed to raise the issue orr the direct
appeal and offered the following explanation:

“That was a strategic decision in ~- Ffirst of
all, as to the chance of prevailing in the Nevada
Supreme Court, the opinion seemed to be solely on
what is so gruesome and so horrific that the court is
willing to find error there. T have not seen one
prevail, unless you have, again, a picture of a child
with intestines laid out with the innards laid out,
which is what we need to define.

B 00 sl T W Wt RN me
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I didn’'t see it as something that would turn the
tide in federal court, so it was based on those
reasons. It was a strategic decision not to include
those issues, this issue.” (Tr. 51}

bt ek
L -

CONCLUSION

et
b

The performance of trial and appellate counsel was

Aftorney At Law
 302°E, Carson Ave., Ste. 600
(702) 382-1844

deficient. WITTER was prejudiced by the performance of his

Las Vegas, NV B0
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attorneys and should be granted relief from the judgement and a

new trial.
DATED this |2  day of September, 2000.

RESP FULLY SUBMITTED:

DAVID M. SCHIECK, ESQ.
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Defendant’s Post Hearing Brief in
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DISTRICT ATTORNEY

‘ORDR
'STEWART L. BELL

‘Nevada Bar #000477
1 200 S. Third Street

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155

_groz) 4554711

ttomey for Plamtlff

'DISTRICT COURT -
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

 THE STATE OF NEVADA

Plamtlﬂ

v ' - | CaseNo.. C117513
Dept. No. XV

" 10| WILLIAM LESTER WITTER, B S Docket L
{ #1208227 ) -

y Defendan_t. -

FINDINGS OF FACT CONCLUSIONS OF .
LAW AND ORDER

DATE OF HEARING: 2—26-99
TIME OF HEARING: 8:3¢ AM.

THIS CAUSE ‘having come on for heanng before the Honerable Sally Loehrer, Dlsmct - -

Judge, on the 26th day of February, 1999, the Petitioner not bemg present, represented by '_
| DAVID M. SCHIECK, ESQ the Respondent bemg represented by STEWART L. BELL, |

sl g On .Ianuary 21 1994 Wlllram Lester Wltter heremaﬁer “the defendant,” was-} | "'
/ charged by way of Informatlon w:th one count of Murder With Use ofa Deadly Weapon (Felony | .
NRS 200. 010 200.030, 193. 165) for the brutal slaying of James Haro]d Cox. The defendant | - |
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- was also charged with one count cach of Attempt Murder Wit}i Use of a Deadly Weapon (Felo_riy .' _
. NRS 193.330, 200.010, 200.030, 193.165), Attempt Sexual Assault With Use of a Deadly | ) ]
I Weapon (Felony - NRS 193.330, 200.364, 200.366, 193.165), and Burglary (Fclony NRS |-

205.060) for the brutal stabbing and attack of Kathryn Terry Cox.

2)  The defendant was adjudged by a jury to be guilty on ali four counts. The jury | L

- subquuentl_y" determined that the defendant should be sentenced to death by lethal inject'iqn for
_ the murder conviction. On August 3, 1995 the district court adjudged the defendant g‘uilfy and '.
sentenced him to death for the Murder conviction to four (4) consecutive twenty year terms of - .
| 1mpnsonment in the Nevada State Prison for the Attempt Murder and Attempt Sexual Assau}t '_ “
' -convncnons and to a consecutive ten year term of 1mprisonment for the Burgla_ry conv:ctlo_n_. |

_ ' An Amended Judgment of Conviction was filed on August 11, 1995.

3)  The defendant filed a timely Notice of Appeal on August 31, 1995. An appcal was '

:_ filed, and the State responded. The Supreme Court of Nevada affirmed the convictions and ) | )
issued a remittitur dated December 23, 1996. The defendant filed a Petition for Writ of Habcas. i '_
| Corpus (Post-Conviction) on October 27, 1997, and filed the Supplemental Points and | ~ §

Authorities in Support of the Petition on August 11, 1998. An evidentiary hearing was grantcd
and took place on February 26, 1999, during which defendant’s trial counsel Phlllp Kohnand | =

' defendant’s appellate counsel Robert Miller testified. The Pocties ¢1 w4 B i

5.'.5,;3_1,.5 ‘M&hc.-m&'cup._ Cor

4)  The defendant failed to prove his claim of ineffective assistance of trial counsel. |
In order to assert a claim for ineffective assistance of counsel the defendant must prove that he

was denied "reasonably effective assistance” of counsel by satisfying the two-prong test of

Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 686-687, 104 S.Ct. 2052, 2063-2064 (1984); sce, State

v. Love, 109 Nev. 1136, 1138, 865 P.2d 322, 323 (1993). Under this test, the defendant must

show first that his counsel's representation fell below an objective standard of reasonableness,

 and second, that but for counsel's errors, there is a reasonable probability that the result of the .

'pmcecdmgs would have been different. Sge, Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687-688 & 694, 104 S.Ct. |

at 2065 & 2068.

PAWPDOCS\ORDR\FORDR 083089400 LWPD §
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:-pomon of defendant’s case. At the evidentiary hearing, counsel explained that he knew if I
defendant was convicted, there would be a penalty phese. Because of the overwhelming | 4

evidence of defendant’s guilt, counsel felt it was prudent to not present a defense during the guilt | ._
phase so as not to impair his credibility at the penalty phase. Not every_ crime is defensibl_e_, and : ::
an attotney is not required to “do what is impossible or unethical. If there is no .'bona. ﬁde .
-ttefense to the charge, counsel cannot create one and may disserve the interests of his client by -l
attempting a useless charade.” United States v. Cronic, 466 U.S. 648, 656 .19, 104 S.Ct. 2039, | - _' X
2046 n.19 (1983). The decision not to dispute defendant’s guilt in order to presei've credibility | B
|| for the penalty phase was a proper trial strategy. Re_qﬂgl,_ﬂqlm, 956 P.2d 374, 400 (Cal. 199'8)1.' .
| Counsel's strategy was a “tactical” decision that is “virtually unchallengeable absent 11

: extraordinary circumstances."” HQ_ﬂ:_d_‘Slagg 106 Nev. 713, 722, 800 P.2d 175, 180 (1990) -

6)  Trial counsel was effectlve because he did investigate a FAS defense. Counsel |

: ﬂew to San Jose, California where he researched defendant’s family background and spent one B 3
week interviewing witnesses. Counsel also read The Broken Chord by Michael Doris, whxch .

detailed the symptoms and effects of FAS, which was a ground-breaking field in 1994 and 1995. | B

At the time counsel was preparing for trial, litile was known about FAS, yet counsel conducied

extensive investigation into this possible defense. Counsel’s efforts to investigate a FAS were P

reasonable. A court must "judge the reasonableness of counsel's challenged conduct on the facts | - B

of the particular case, viewed as of the time of counsel's conduct.” Smgkland 466 U.S. at 690, | N
104 5.Ct. at 2066.

7)  Trial counsel was effective because he did attempt toretain a FAS expert Counsel

learned that he would need a geneticist to support a claim of FAS. To locate a genetlcnst,
| counsel contacted three university medical facilities and eventuafly located a local geneﬁcist, Dr.
1l Colene Morris. Ceunsei contacted Dr. Morris on at least ten occasions, but each time she-.
/ |i refused to speak with him. Counsel then contacted .'setreral' defense attorneys in an effort to

obtain the name of a FAS expert. Counsel e_ventually'contacted FAS experts who resided in | )

“3. PAWPDOCSIORDRIFORDRI08130894001. WED |

5)  Counsel was not meffecnve for choosing not to present evndencc at the tnal .
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I Seattle, but they refused to meet with defendant until he was first exémined bya genetiéis"t. | B
iCourisel' requested a continuance to allow time for such examination, which the trial court {
'd'cnied. Counsel then contacted five alcohol-related experts, none of whom were able to test_ifj' . |
about FAS due to the newness of the field. At trial, defense counsel presented téstimony fro m .
a licensed psychologist who testified that defendant may have had attention deficit disorder, B

antisocial personality disorder, and developmental arithmetic disorder. Based on counsel’s |

conduct, there is no merit to defendant’s claim.

8): Defendant cannot show that counsel was deficient for failing to retain a FAS B

 expert because defcndant failed to present any evidence that FAS would have been a valld -' __
defense in his case. At the evidentiary hearing, defendant prebcnted no evidence as to what af -

1 | FAS expert would have said had such expert been obtained. Under Haxmmmjg 100 Nev L |
| 498, 5_00, 686 P.2d 222, 225 (1984), defendant was required to present facts to support his

allegations. Without such facts, defendant’s claim is a naked allegation that _dbes ot entitléd
hlm to relief. Id.

9)  Defendant was unable to show that the outcome of h:s case would have been
different had counsel retained a FAS expert to testify at trial because FAS is a mitigator, not an

affirmative defense. A diagnosis of FAS “would place nothing more than a label on

' [defendant’s] lower intelligence and behavioral problems, evidence which was already before

the jury. With or without the diagnosis or .Iabel, the defense could argue that such evidence
mitigated in favor of the lesser sentence.” State v. Brett, 892 P.2d 29, 64 (Wash. 1995).

10)  Counsel was not deficient for failing to present a gang expert during the penalty | 8

hearing because he believed that gang evidence was only admissible if defendant had beena | .

gang member at some point in his life. Defendant did not tell counsel of his previous gang |

affiliation, therefore counsel could not have anticipated the need to retain a gang expert. It was -

reasonable for counsel not to call a gang expert because at the time of trial, counsel could not

have anticipated the need to call a gang expert. A court must '_'judgé the reasonableness of I : ]

[} counsel's challenged conduct on the facts of the particular case, viewed as of the time of

counsel's conduct.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 690, 104 S.Ct. at 2066.

-4- PAWPDOCS\ORDRFORDR\IOB30854001. WPD |
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I1)  Counsel’s failure to retain a gaug expert was not deficient because an expert was
not necessary to refute many of the claims made by the State’s gang experts. As aforementioned’, |

trial counsel’s strategy will be “virtually unchallengeable absent extraordinary cnrcumstances

| Howard, 106 Nev. at 722, 800 P.2d at 180.
12)  Defendant was not prejudiced by counsel’s failure to call a gang expert. The | |

|| Nevada Supreme Court, upon considering whether the defendant was prejudiced by the district | |

court’s refusal of a continuance that rendered it impossible for defendant to obtain a gang expert,

: éoncluded that even if the defendant had been able to secure an expert to testify as to the gang | .

9 || violence in prisons and the need for a shank, “such testimony would have done little to mitigate ;' _ |

his involvement.” Witter v, State, 112 Nev. 908, 920, 921 P.2d 886, 894 (1996).

13} Counsel was not ineffective for remarking, during opening statements, that the| T

facts the prosecutor gave were “terrible, horrible, disturbing facts.” Defendant claimed that this I

statement conceded defendant’s guilt. This statement was not a concession of defendant’s guilt, |
but rather was a concession that the facts of the crime were disturbing. Accordingly, counsel’s | -

opening statement was proper, as “[i}t is the duty of counsel making a statement to state the facts |

16 jf fairly, and to refrain from stating facts which he cannot, or will not, be permitted to prove.” |

17

6 : statement because it was permissible under Nevada law. A prosecutor is allowed to outline his | N
case and propose facts he intends to prove. Rice v, State, 113 Nev. 1300 1308, 949 P.2d 262,
1l 270 (1997).  Prosecutor’s are gwen great freedom in what they may say during opemng

State v, Qlivieri, 49 Nev. 75, 236 P.1100, 1101 (1925).
18

14)  Trial counsel was effective for choosing not to object during the State s opening -

 statement. In its opening argument, the prosecutor commented that the defendant was a man |

'Bz “bent on doing h‘emous, heinous evil things.” Counsel- decided not to object because he was
."‘tr'ying to curry favor with the jury” with the hope that the jury would be more willing {o listen | B
1o him during the penalty phase. The decision not to object was part of trial counsel’s strategy
| that is “virtually unchallengeable absent extraordinary circumstances.” Howard, 106 Nev. at 722 I

800 P.2d at 180. |
| 15} Defendant was not prejudlwd by counsel’s failure to object to the State’s opemng B =

-5- PAWPDOCS\ORDR\FORDRIORI0894001, WPD
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statement- even if the prosecutor overstates what he is later able to prove, misconduct is not
present unless he does so in bad faith. Id, See People v. Benson, 802 P.2d 330, 353.54 (Cal.
1990) (holding prosecutor’s comment “this crime is perhaps the most brutal, atrocious, heinous
crime,” was merely a comment on the nature of the offense and was permissible).

16}  Defensc counsel was ot ineffective for choosing not o object to prosecutor’s
opening statement, which said that the victim has not only physical scars but also emotional
scars. Defendant claims that such remarks were “improper victim impact evidence.” Defense
counsel stated that it was a strategic decision not to object to such remarks. Because victim
impact evidence is not categorically barred by the eighth amendment under Payne v, Tennessee,
501 U.S. 808, 111 S.Ct. 2597 (1991), it was proper trial strategy not to object to the statement.
“Experienced advocates might differ about when, or if, objections are called for since, as a
matter of trial strategy, further objections from counsel may have succeeded in making the
prosecutor's comments seem more significant to the Jury.” Sasserv. Stage, 993 S.W.2d 901, 910
{Ark. 1999)

17)  Defendant was not prejudiced by counsel’s failure to object to the State’s opening
statement because even if defense counsel would have objected and the remarks of the
prosecutor had been stricken, it would not have made any difference on the outcome of the trial.
There was so much overwhelming evidence of guilt by way of the identification of the defendant
by one of the victims (Kathryn Cox), three secunty guards, and the bus driver; physical evidence
of the deceased victims blood found all over the defendant; and a confession by the defendant

that ke committed the killing, that the inclusion of this statement was merely harmless error. Sce
NRS 178.598; Chapman v. California, 386 U.S. 18,24, 87 8. Ct. 824, 828 (1967); and Usited
States v, Hastings, 461 U.S. 499, 510-11, 103 S.Ct. 1974, 1981 (1983).

18)  Defense counsel was not deficient for failing to object to the admission of

photographs of the victim. Defendant claimed he was prejudiced by the admission of a

photograph of the victim attending a class reunion in Hawaii. It was not error for counsel not
to object to these photographs, as under Nevada law, a trial court’s decision to admit a

photograph will be upheld absent an abuse of this discretion. S¢e Greene v, State, 113 Nev.

B PAWEDOCSORDRIFORDRIION 30804001 WP
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157,931 P.2d 54, 60 (1997) (upholdingtrial court’s admission of a photograph of victim when

he was alive). Counsel’s failure to object was a tactical one presumably based on a famnllarity il

 with Nevada case law. As such, it is “virtually unchaliengeable absent extraordmary .

circumstances.’ > Howard, 106 Nev. at 722, 800 P.2d at 180.

19)  Defense counsel was not ineffective for failing to offer an instruction that { -

 informed the jury that character evidence could not be considered by the jury until afterit had

weighed the aggravating circumstances against the mitigating circumstances. The S'Uprcme" -
Court of Nevada has rejected this premise in Lisle v, State, 113 Nev. 679, 941 P.2d 459,475

(1997). There is no Nevada authority which supports the defendant’s contention that chafacter_ o
evidence cannot be considered until after the jury determines that a defendant is death eligiblé.
' 1d. A defendant’s character is relevant to the jury’s determination of the appropriate sentence

for a capital ctime, it is not limited to only after the jury decides the defendant is death eligible.

Id. (Citations omitted) Character evidence is relevant to determine the sentence. [d.

20) Defendant cannot meet the second prong of Strickland because even if counsel | |

were ineffective, which he was not, defendant was not prejudiced by trial counsel’s performance. R

Strickland is a two prong test: the defendant must show that counsel’s representation fell below |

an objective s_tandard of reasonableness, and second, that but for counsel’s errors, .ther'e isa |
1 reasonablé probability that the result of the proceedings would have been different. In t’his'ca_'se-,_
 even if counsel were deficient in his performance, defendant was not prejudiced becauSc. no|l W
 matter what counsel did at trial, no reasonabie probability existed that Defendant would not be |
 convicted. There was so much overwhelming evidence of guilt by way of the identificationof |
the defendant by one of the victims (Kathryn Cox), three security guards, and the bus driver; | -

|| physical evidence of the deceased victims blood found all over the defendant; and a _cOnfe'_ssion 8

|l by the defendant that he committed the killing, that defendant cannot show he was prejudiced -

i by counsel’s performance.

APPELLATE |
The United States Supr'eme. Court has held that there is a constitutional right to effective

8 || assistance of counsel in a direct appeal from a judgment of conviction. Evitts v. Lucey, 469 US. |
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395, 397, 105 S.Ct. 830, 836-837 (1985); see also, Burke v. State, 110 Nev. 1366, 1368, 887 [

|| P.2d 267, 268 (1994). The federal courts have held that in order to cléim ineffective assistance |
ﬂ of appellate counsel the defendant must satisfy the two-prong test of smkmm&ﬁhmm -

' The defendant has the ultimate authority to make fundamental decisions regarding his | |
case. '.[QnQSL_B_amsi, 463 11.S. 745, 751, 103 S.Ct. 3308, 3312 (1983). Howeve.r,. the defendant. 3

- does not héve a constitutional right to "compel appdinted counsel to press nonfrivolous points .

I requested by the client, if counsel, as a matter of professional judgment, decides not to present

those points.” [d. In reaching this conclusion the Supreme Court has recognized the "importance | . .
._of winnowing out weaker arguments on appeal and focusing on one central issue if possible, or_.. . .
| at most on a few key issues." Jones, 463 U.S. at 751 -752, 103 S.Ct. at 3313. In g.)ar.ticular,_a'
|l "brief that raises every colorable issue runs the risk of burying good arguments...in a verbal
mound made up of strong and weak contentions." Jones, 463 U.S. at 753,103 S.Ct. at 3313. The
. Court has therefore held that for “judges to second-guess reasonable professional judgments and
impose on appointed counse! a duty to raise every 'colorable’ claim suggested by a client would |

disserve the very goﬁl of vigorous and effective advocacy.” Jones, 463 U.S. at 754, 103 S.Ct. at

21)  Appeliate counsel was not deficient for deciding not to raise a Batson issu¢ on

i appeal. Batson v. Kentucky, 476 U.S. 79, 106 S.Ct. 1712 (1986), set forth a three-step prpcess.
19 for evaluating race-based objections to i)ér‘cmptory challenges. First, the opponent of the {
peremptory challenge must make a prima facie showing of racial discrimination. In order to do

| so, ‘“the defendant must first show that he is a member of a cogn'izablc”raciali group, . . . and that |

1 the prosecutor has exercised peremptory challenges frorh the venire members of the defendant’s |

38 race.” Once a prima facie showing has been made, the Iburden of production shifts to the |
proponerit of the strike to come forward with a race-neutral explanation. Pugkett v, Elem, 514

|| US. 765,767-68, 115 S.Ct. 1769, 1770-71 (1995). If a race-neutral explanation is tendered, step-" -

i three requires the trial court to decide whether the opponent of the strike has proved purposeful

7 racial discrimination. Id.

22)  Appellate counsel was not ineffective for not raising a B_atsgn ch‘allengé bccause_

-8-  PAWPDOCS\ORDRFORDRUIOSI089400LWPD |
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- defendant failed to show that the juror in question was a member of a cognizable racial grou;ﬁ_ _
Atthe time of the peremptory challenges, the jurors were not present. Neither the prosecutor nor

the court had noted that the juror was African-American because they were not aware that race

was an issue in the case because the defendant appeared to be Caucasian. The names of the |

deféndant and his family do not suggest any particular race. Due to the uncertainty of the juror’s

race., appellate counsel chose not to raise this issue on appeal. Appellate counsel was not
ineffective because he clearly chose to exclude this weak argument. The Supreme Court has
recognized the "importance of winnowing out weaker arguments on appeal and focusing on one
central issue if possible, or at most on a few key issues.” Jones, 463 U.S. at 751 -752, 103 S.Ct. i
at3313

~ 23)  Appellate counsel was effective for not raising a Batson chalienge because the

| State offered a race-neutral reason for exercising its peremptory challenge. The prosecutor | |
indicated to the trial court that he had nothing in his notes regarding the juror’s race. The only |
notation the prosecutor had with regard to the juror was that he did not believe that she was"

 capable of making a decision. Because a race-neutral explanation was tendered, the defendant

was required to prove purposeful discrimination. Purkett v, Elem, 514 U.S. 765, 767-68, 115

' S.CL 1769, 1770-71 (1995). Defend’a_nt was unable to show that State’s reason was not facially '

-valid, th'emfbre this issue would not have suéceeded on appeal, because “the uitiinat'e burden of

persuasion regarding racial motivation rests with, and never shifts from, the opponent of the

“strike.” Id.

24)  Appellate counsel was effective in deciding not to petition the Court for a

rehearing. According to NRAP 40(c)(2) rehearing may only be considered by a court in the |

following circumstances: i) When it appears that the court has overlooked or misapprehended |

2 material matter in the record or otherwise, or ii) In such other circumstances as will promote |
| substantial justice. Whitehead v, Nevada Commission on Judicial Discipline, 110 Nev. 380, | |
388, 873 P.2d 946, 952 (1994). In Whitchead, the petition was not considered proper because |
it did not addré'ss any “material matter,” it simply asked the court to withdraw or change “faulty

1 assumptions, misstatements of fact and mischaracterizations of the legal arguments. AR [ B
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The court held that rehearings are not granted to review matter of no material consequence. Id.

25)  In his Supplement to his Petition, the defendant argued 1) that there were
irreconcilable differences within the court’s opinion that the court had indicated it would
maintain irrespective of the contradiction, 2) that there remained three, not four, aggravators
after the court struck one down, and 3) that the court erved in a date. None of these claims are
of any material consequence, With regard to the first claim, the court indicated that it was being
contradictory, so it would not have changed its position on rehearing. With regard to the second
claim, it is of no consequence that the court made a clerical error or miscalculated the remaining
aggravators because the finding of only one aggravator is enough to invoke the death penalty and
three still remained. NRS 200.030(4)(a). With regard tc the third claim, defendant was not
prejudiced by counsel’s failure to point out that the Court erred in calculating the time from
when the shank was discovered in defendant’s cell until defense counsel was nofified of the
shank, thereby giving counsel no time to retain a gang expert. The Court indicated that eveﬁ
if defense had time to secure a gang expert and present testimony to this regard, it would have
done little to mitigate the defendant’s involvement. Witter v, State, 112 Nev, at 919, 921 p.24
at 894.

26)  The prosecution did not shift the burden to the detendant, so appellate counsel was
not ineffective in choosing not to raise this issue. Defendant argued that when the prosecutor
stated that neither the State nor the defense had called an expert on how alcohol affects a-
person’s state of mind, that shifted the burden to the defendant. In Lisle v. State, 113 Nev. 679,
941 P.2d 459, 476 (1997), the court held that the burden was not shifted to the defendant when
the prosecutor made only a few general remarks about the lack of expert witnesses, not a specific
witness during the penalty phase. Because the burden was not shifted, appellate counsel was
effective in deciding not to bring this meritless argument.

27)  Defendant was not prejudiced by appellate counsel’s decision not to argue that the
state shifted the burden to the defendant by commenting on fact that neither the State nor the
defense had called an expert on how alcohol effects a person’s state of mind. Trial counsel

objected to this statement, and the court responded that the jury “knows that there is no burden.

=10 PAWPDOCSIORDRFORDRUIGE 0894001 WPD




It He's just saying what was and was not presented at the time of trial.” Defendant was not
|| prejudiced by appeliate counsel’s decisionnot to appeal this statement because any harm caused
by the statement was remedied by the court’s statement. Counsels decision not to appeal the .

‘4§ statement was tactical decision based on his belief that this issue was unpersuasive. Becausea| B

“brief that raises every colorable issue runs the risk of burying good arguments . . . in a verbal

6 ound made up of strong and weak contention”, counsel’s decision was effective. J_o_ngs_x, 1 B
' | anns 463 U.S. 745, 751, 103 S.Ct. 3308, 3313, 77 L.Ed.2d 987 (1983).

28)  Appellate counsel was correct in not raising the issue of denial of trial counsel’

) 1§ challenge for cause of juror Mlller, who indicated that he would not consider the childhood of |

1l a defendant as a mitigating circumstance. This issue would have lost on appeal unless the

| defendant could prove the trial court had abused its discretion. “Few aspects of a jury trial are

16 { challenges to strike two jurors who admitted having preconceptions of defendant’s guilt or B
17

- innocence was “not a denial of justice” but rather was a “proper utilization of the peremptory |~ |

tool.”) -

29)  Appellate counsel was not ineffective in deciding not to address the reference to

i the defendant’s acts of juvenile rape as this was reliable evidence that was admissible.

Defendant claimed that this evidence was “tenuous and specious.” However, this evidence was

22 fcliable,.'as it was introduced through a certified copy of a criminal report which stated that in |
 § “1978, [subject] was arrested at the age of 15 for rape while residing in Hawaii. He served in
4l juvenile hall.” It was part of a certified copy of the record of the Department of Corrections that
|| was read verbatim to the jury by a parole officer. Additionally, it gave the year, place, ageof | - :
the defendant, and punishment' imposed fof the sex offense. Thus, defendant would not have |
|l succeeded in appealing this evidence under D’ Agostino v. State, 107 Nev. 1001, 823 P.2d 283 |
28 || (1991), Which found that the admission of testimony' by a jail informant who testified that the

-11- PAWPDOCS\ORDRIFORDRI30813089400L WPD {
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|| defendant, while in prison, had told him that he had killed “some old man in New York” was

unreliable because informant did not specify the tlme place, or identity of the man. 151. at 1003, .

823 P.2d at 284.

- 30)  Appellate counsel was not ineffective in deciding not to address.the reféren‘cé- 'to_ o
force and violerice in prison which came out in the penalty phase Defendant clalmed itwas |
meffecnve for appellate counsel to fail to argue that it was improper for parole officet Rose to " 1
tesnfy as to the defendant’s misconduct by way of force and violence in prison. Defendant did -

‘not make an objection to this information at the time Ms. Rose was testifying and in fact asked- L
“her follow up questions regarding this information on cross-examination. It was not untll the | B
_ next day that defense counsel put his objection to this information on the record. Second this . _

- is again not the kind of mformatlon that the Court in D’ Agostino meant to exclude. Agam thé 3.

mformatzon came from a certified report, was testified to by a parole officer (not a jail- -house

mformant) and indicated that the defendant was punished with additional jail time for thc. |

 violent behavior. This evidence was in fact reliable, and appeilate counse! was not ineffective

in dec:dmg not to make a faulty argument on appeal.

31)  Appellate counsel did not err in deciding not to appeal the trial court’s decision |

' to admit photographs of the scene, the murder weapon, and the autopsy into ¢vidence. lee\mse, |
the trial Jjudge did not abuse his discretion in allowing photos of the interior and exterior of the

 cab because this aided the jury in understanding the scene in which the crime took place.' The |

judge did not abuse his discretion in allowing a ;Sicturc of the knife, the murder weapon. Finally,

| the judge was proper in allowing the autopsy ph‘otos. The defendant prbpérly states that such

photos are admissible to aid in the ascertainment of the truth if the probative value outwelghs

 their prejudicial impact. The admission of photographs of victims, crime scenes, and weapons
|l is within the sound discretion of the trial court, and absent an abuse of this discretion, the |
decision will be upheld. Greene v, State, 113 Nev. 157, 931 P.2d 54,60 (1997). Appellate |

 counsel was effective in deciding to exclude this unpersuasive argument in light of the Nevada

case law,

W77
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Based on the Findings of Fact and Conclusnons of Law herem contamed itis hereby I

ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant’s Peition for Writ of Habeas
41 Corpus (Post-Conviction) shall be, and it is, hereby denied.
. DATED this_=2/ __day of September, 2000.

DIETRICTJUDGE

|l STEWARTL.BELL
Il DISTRICT ATTORNEY
5 Nevada Bar #000477 :

.u District Attome
i Nevadlz?%art%(}m%s y
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 DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, WEVADA

e CATETY

CASE NO. CTTIH#s23
- DEPT. NO. XV

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
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Plaintiff,
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(vs. ' NOTICE OF APPEAL
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k

WILLIZM LESTER WITTER,

1ec

" DATE: N/A
TIME;: N/A

Pefendant.
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THE STATE -_OE‘ NEVADA.'- Plaintiff, hereing.

(702} 382-1844
-
. e

z
-y
:

'STEWART BE:LL, District Attorney, and

- Las Vegas, NV 89101

" 403 £, Carson Ave., Ste. 600
—
=

' David M:

DEPARTMENT XV OF THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT .
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, IN BAND FOR THE' COUNTY OF CLARK:

[
®° =

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that WILLIAM WITTER, by and through

b
=)

:_ﬁhls attorney DAVID M. SCHIFCK, ESQ " hereby appeals to the’
"Supreme Court of the State of Nevada from the dem.al of his .
._'P.et'lt-'lOI_l_- for Writ of -Habeas. qupus (Post Conv1ctlon}

Dated this 23 day of October, 2000.

DAVID M. SCHIECK, ESQ.
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' IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
S/
WILLIAM LESTER WITTER, Suprenz%gq rt No. /86927
Appellant, “‘%_gp et
Vs, (
THE STATE OF NEVADA. Distric] Court Case No.  C117513
Respondent e 20 | iy PH 0l

LERK'S CERTIFICATE FILED

STATE OF NEVADA, ss.
[, Janette M. Bloom, the duly appointed and qualified Clerk of the Supreme Court of the State of
Nevada, do hereby certify that the following is a full, true and correct copy of the Judgment in this

matter.
JUDGMENT

The court being fully advised in the premises and the law, it is now ordered, adjudged and decreed,
as follows: "ORDER the judgment of the district court AFFIRMED."

Judgment, as quoted above, entered this 10th day of August, 2001.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have subscribed my name and affixed
the seal of the Supreme Court at my Office in Carsan City,

Nevada. this 5th day of September, 2001.
Janette M. Bloom, Supreme Court Clerk

8
S 8B T By: _% 3% e
% 0 gl Chief Beputy Clerk
| v } -
2o =
=g
~
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IN THE SUPREME COURT CF THE STATE OF NEVADA

WILLIAM LESTER WITTER, Nc. 36927

Appellant,

vs. o

THE STATE OF NEVADA, Fig— EB

Respondent. AUG 10 2001
JANETTE M_BLOOM

CLERK OESUPREME COURT
BY
CHIFF DEPUTY CLERK

ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE

This 1s an appeal from an order of the district
court denying a post-conviction petition for a writ of habeas
corpus. Appellant William Lester Witter claims that his trial
and appellate counsel were ineffective in numerous ways. We
conclude that necne of his claims warrant relief.

On November 14, 1993, Witter stabbed Kathryn Cox
numerous times, attempted to sexually assault her, and stabbed
her husband to death when he came to her aid.! Witter was
convicted of first-degree murder, attempted murder, and
attempted sexual assault--all with use of a deadly weapon--and
burglary. He received a death sentence for the murder. After
this court affirmed Witter’s conviction and sentence, he
petitioned the district <court for habeas relief. An
evidentiary hearing was held, and Witter’s trial and appellate
counsel testified. The district court denied the petition.

Claims of ineffective assistance of counsel are
properly presented in a timely, first post-conviction petition

for a writ of habeas corpus because such claims are generally

'See Witter v. State, 112 Nev. 908, 913-14, 921 P.2d 886,
890-21 (1996}, receded from on other grounds by Byford v.
State, 116 Nev, 215, 994 pP.2d 700, cert. denied, 121 S. Ct.
576 (2000).

C’l')&%}
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not appropriate for review on direct appeal.? A claim of
ineffective assistance of counsel presents a mixed question of

3 7To establish

law and fact, subject to independent review.
ineffective assistance of counsel, a claimant must show both
that counsel’s performance was deficient and that the
deficient performance prejudiced the defense.® To show
prejudice, the claimant must show a reasonable probability
that but for counsel’s errcrs the reéult of the proceeding
would have been .different.? Judicial review of a lawyer’s
representation 1is highly deferential, and a c¢laimant must
overcome the presumption that a challenged action might be
considered sound strategy.®

First, Witter asserts that his trial counsel was
ineffective during the guilt phase in failing to present
evidence that he had fetal alcchol syndrome (FAS). Though the
record indicates that Witter’s mother drank alcohol while
pregnant with him, at the evidentiary hearing Witter failed to
provide evidence demonstrating that he suffers from FAS or any
similar ailment, Thus we conclude that Witter shows neither
deficient performance by counsel nor prejudice. Even if we
assumed that evidence of FAS could have been presented, Witter
fails to shew that it would have made any difference. He
speculates that it could have provided “a defense to the
requisite mens rea of premeditated murder.” Whatever the

merits of this speculation, the State also charged a theory of

’See, e.g., Feazell v. State, 111 Nev. 1446, 1449, 906
P.2d 727, 729 (1995).

'Kirksey v. State, 112 Nev. 980, 987, 923 P.2d 1102, 1107
(1996).

‘14, {citing Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, €87
(1984} ).

*Id. at 988, 923 P.2d at 1107.

®Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689.
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first-degree felony murder and presented overwhelming evidence
to support it.

Second, Witter maintains that his trial counsel was
ineffective during the penalty phase because he did not call
an expert witness “to explain away the graphic testimony about
gangs and viclence” and Witter’'s possession of a shank in
priscon. On direct appeal, this court rejected Witter’'s claim
that the trial court abused its discfetion when it did not
grant a continuance te allow defense counsel time to respond
to the State’s evidence on these matters.,’ We conclude that
counsel’s failure to present evidence on these matters did not
prejudice Witter: we already determined on direct appeal that
such evidence had little mitigating value and its absence was
not prejudicial.®

Third, Witter alleges that the prosecutor made four
remarks in his opening statement referring to Witter’s
“evilness.”® Witter contends that his trial counsel was
ineffective because he failed to object to the remarks. At
the evidentiary hearing, trial counsel testified that he did
not consider the first three remarks worth objecting to at the
risk of alienating the jury, and he missed the fourth remark.
Witter cites no authority establishing that the remarks

constituted misconduct. Even assuming the remarks were

'Witter, 112 Nev. at 919-20, 921 P.2d at 894.
®TId. at 920, 921 P.2d at 894.

"Witter failed to include in his appendix the trial
transcripts or other materials necessary to review several of
his claims. We remind Witter’s counsel that the appellant is
responsible for providing the materials necessary for this
court’s review, See Jaccbs v. State, 91 Nev. 155, 158, 532
P.2d 1034, 1036 (1975). Reference to facts stated in
appellant’s briefs to this court or to the district court is
not sufficient. See Sparks v. State, 96 Nev. 26, 29, 604 P.2d
802, 804 (1980); c<f. NRAP 28(e). We have nevertheless
accepted the facts as alleged by Witter where they are clearly

continued on next page .
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improper, we conclude that counsel reasonably chose not to
object to the first three and that none were so extreme that
they prejudiced Witter.

Fourth, Witter c¢laims that his trial counsel
unreasonably failed to offer an instruction informing Jjurors
that they could not consider character evidence until they had
determined whether aggravating circumstances existed and had
weighed any such circumstances against any mitigating
circumstances. Witter 1s correct that jurors should not
censider character evidence, i.e,, "“other matter” evidence
admitted under NRS 175.552(3), until they have decided whether
a defendant is death eligible.!® The district court cited

Lisle v, State' in concluding that a jury can consider such

evidence before it has weighed aggravating circumstances
against mitigating circumstances. This conclusion 1is

incorrect, as explained in Middleton v. State.'?

Though Witter was entitled to reguest such an
' instruction, he has net shown that not giving it violated any
rule ¢or law. Nor has he offered any reascon, such as improper
argument by the prosecutor, to believe that Jurors relied on
the “other matter” evidence 1in determining his death
3

eligibility." Therefore, he has failed to demonstrate either

deficient performance by his counsel or prejudice.

. continued
and fully stated and the State has accepted them in its
answering brief,

“See Evans v. State, 117 Nev. ; P.3d (Adv. Op.
No. 50, July 24, 2001); Byford, 116 Nev. at 239, 994 P.2d at

716.
1113 Nev. 679, 704, 941 P.2d 459, 475-76 (1997).

12114 Nev. 1089, 1117 n.2, 968 P.2d 296, 315 n.9 (1998)
(rejecting any language in Lisle that suggests that evidence
admitted under NRS 175.552(3) can be used to determine death
eligibility itself).

*cf. Evans, 117 Nev. at , P.3d at

- RA000208



Fifth, Witter contends that his appellate counsel
was ineffective in failing to argue that the State vicolated

Batson v. Kentucky.'® Trial counsel objected to the State’s

peremptory challenge striking an African-American member of
the venire. The prosecutor stated that he_had not even noted
the race of the veniremember, only his belief that she was not
capable of making a decision. Because Witter was not himself
black, the trial court questioned whegher Batson applied and
ruled against him. At the evidentiary hearing, appellate
counsel said that he had not raised the issue in part because
the State had given a race-neutral reason for the challenge.
The trial court erred to the extent that it based
its ruling on Witter’s not being black. The due process rule
against striking potential jurors simply because of their race
also applies to cases where the defendant is not the same race

15 Nevertheless, we conclude that

as the excluded Jjurors.
appellate counsel reascnably decided not to raise the issue
since the State gave a race-neutral reason for striking the
veniremember, Nothing indicates that this reason was a
pretext and that the actual motive was purposeful racial
discrimination. Therefore, the issue would not have been
successful on appeal.!®

Sixth, Witter asserts th;t his appellate counsel
should have petitioned for rehearing because this court
misstated a fact in affirming his conviction. Our opinion
stated that “on June 20, 1995, almost a full year before the

penalty hearing,” the State notified defense counsel it was

investigating Witter's alleged possession of a shank in

Y476 U.S. 79 (1986).

Ppowers v. Ohia, 499 U.S. 400, 402 (1991} .

'SCf. Purkett v. Elem, 514 U.S. 765, 767-69 (1995).

. RA000209
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prison.?’ Therefore, we <concluded that “Witter was not
prejudiced by the district court’s decision to allow only four
days between discovery and the penalty hearing.”!® The penalty
hearing actually began on July 10, 1995, which gave counsel
notice of twenty days, not almost a year. However, this error
was not material and did not warrant rehearing under NRAP
40(c). 1In concluding that Witter had adequate time to prepare
for the penalty hearing, we cited similar cases deeming one
week’s notice and six days’ notice sufficient.!® Therefore,
twenty days’ notice was sufficient as well.

Seventh, Witter contends that appellate counsel was
ineffective in not arguing that the prosecutor improperly
shifted the burden of procf to the defense. According to
Witter, during closing argument at the guilt phase the
prosecutor told the jury that neither party had presented
evidence as to the effects of alcohol on a person’s state of
mind and that there was no evidence of mental impairment. The
presecuter’s remarks may have been a fair response  to
arguments made by the defense,?® but neither rparty provides the
trial transcripts necessary to be sure about this. Bowever,
even assuming that the remarks improperly shifted the burden
of proof, they were not egregicus, and when defense counsel
objected, the trial court agreed with counsel and reiterated

te Jurors that the defense had ne burden of proof. He

Y"Witter, 112 Nev. at 919, 921 P.2d at B894.
‘®1d. at 920, 921 P.2d at 894,
T4, at 919, 921 P.zd/aL 894 .

®°Cf. Lisle v. State, 113 Nev. 679, 706-07, 941 P.2d 459,
477 (1997) (State did not improperly shift burden of proof
when it made general remarks about lack of expert witnesses to
point out that defendant failed to substantiate his claim of
abuse as a mitigator).
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conclude that appellate counsel reasonably declined to raise
the issue because the remarks did not prejudice Witter.

Eighth, Witter contends that his appellate counsel
was ineffective in failing to argue that the trial court erred
when it denied defense counsel’s challenge for cause of a
potential Jjuror. The juror told counsel that he would not
consider possible mitigating evidence that Witter had a bad
childhood. 1In response tc questioning ﬁy the trial court, the
juror said that he would consider such evidence. Despite
defense counsel’s protest that the potential juror was saying
one thing to him and another to the court, the court denied a
challenge for cause.

Witter «cites no apposite authority for the
proposition that the potential juror should have been struck
for cause. However, the sentencer in a capital case cannot
refuse to consider relevant mitigating evidence,?® so we
conclude that the juror should have been struck for cause if
he was unable to consider evidence of Witter’s childhood

difficulties as a possible mitigator.

Witter cites Thompson v. State, where this court

stated that detached language by a potential juror indicating
impartiality cannot be considered alone: the juror’s whole
declaration must be considered and must show that he or she
will not be influenced by partial opinions.?* We have further
stated that a trial court has broad discretion in ruling on
challenges for cause, which involve factual findings of

credibility.” If a potential juror’s responses are equivoecal

“!'See Eddings v. Oklahoma, 455 U.S. 104, 113-15 (1982).

?111 Nev. 439, 442, 894 P.2d 375, 377 (1995).

“Walker v. State, 113 Nev. 853, 865, 944 P.2d 762, 770
(1997) .
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or conflicting, this court defers to the trial court’s
determination of the juror’s state of mind.?' We conclude that
Witter was not prejudiced by appellate counsel’s failure to
raise this issue because the trial court acted within its
discretion in finding that the potential juror’s statements as
a whole showed that he would fairly consider the evidence.
Ninth, Witter complains that his appellate counsel
did not challenge the State’s use of.certain evidence which
trial counsel objected to at the penalty hearing. Witter
fails to provide the appropriate record, specific argument, or
relevant authority necessary to support his claim.?® The
evidence at issue was apparently a California Department of
Corrections document which referred to a pricr crime and other
misconduct by Witter. Witter does not include in the receord
the actual document. He claims that the eaevidence lacked
sufficient specificity or corroboration, citing only

D'Agostino v. State.’® D’Agostino is not on point; it involved

unspecific evidence of alleged admissions by the defendant
that he had killed other people.?’ We conclude that Witter has
failed to demonstrate that the evidence here was not properly
admitted.

Finally, Witter contends that his appellate counsel
should have challenged the admission of photographs as
unfairly prejudicial. He <c¢laims that his trial counsel
objected to the photographs numerous times, but he fails to
cite the record to support this claim. He also describes the

photegraphs of the crime scene, murder weapon, and autopsy as

2414,

*°See Jones v. State, 113 Nev. 454, 468, 937 P.2d 55, 64
(1987); Jacobs, 91 Nev. at 158, 532 P.2d at 1036.

26107 Nev. 1001, 823 P.2d 283 (1991} .

’See id.
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"unnecessarily bloody and gruesome.” Aside from this
conclusory assertion, he provides no analysis and cites no
authority for the proposition that the evidence was
inadmissible. Thus, he again fails to support his claim with
reference to the record, specific argument, or relevant
authority. At the evidentiary hearing, appellate counsel
testified that he made a strategic decision not to raise this
issue because it had little chance ofhsuccess. We conclude
that Witter has not shown that this decision was unreasonable,
Accordingly, we

ORDER the judgment of the district court AFFIRMED.

; J.
Young
Ty
; J.
Leavitt
&ﬂm‘ r J.
Becker

cc: Hon. 8Sally L. Loehrer, District Judge
Attorney General
Clark County District attorney
David M. Schieck
Clark County Clerk
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